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fomething in the Writing not exprefled in the In-
ditment, which may explain the Claufes in the In-
dictment, fo that they may bear another conftruc-
.tion : and in that Trial it was agreed the whole
Writing ought to be read, and was read accord-
ingly 5 and it was the Duty of the Court to have
ordered it, whether the Prifoner or Jury had de-
fired it or not, as they are upon their Qaths to do
right : but in Colonel Sidney’s Cafe, when prefied
by him, it was denieds; only fome particular Paf-
fages he might bave read if he would, which he
did not accept, upon a very good Reafon which he
gave, which was, that he knew not the Paflages of
the Book, or at leaft he did not remember them,
and therefore could not call for them, ’Tis true,
that Practice in civil Matters is allowed to fave
time, where the Mifchief is not very great; be-
caufe of a Paffage in a Deed or Writing, mate-
rial for either Parcy, omitted in reading, the Mat-
ter may be brought about again; but in Crimi-
nal, much lefs in Capital Profecutions, they can-
not be, unlefs a way can be found to bring 2 Man
to Life again.

Almoft all the Circumftances of this Tral are
Originals ; the fumming up of the Evidence againft
him was barbarous, being Inveives, and no Con-
fequences. It was faid he was not only guilty of
the Praltices he was accufed of, but that he could
not have been otherwife, becaufe his Principles led
him to 1t 3 and it might with as good Reafon have
been urged, that he not only was become, but was
born a Traitor. The laft matter remarkable in the
T'rial, was that of an Overt- A&, of which the Court
faid it was refolved by all the Judges of England,
that if I buy a Knife of 7.8, to kill the King,
and one Witnefs prove I bought a Khnife, and an-
other prove I bought it for that Purpole, 1t 15 two
Witnefles of an Overr-A&t within the Statute of
Fdward the Sixth.

It were fitto know who the Judges were who

gave that Refolution, if it were but for the Autho-

rity of the Cafe; for I doubt the Reafon of it will
convince no Man: They might as well have re-
folved, that eating or drinking, or the moft or~
dinary Adls of a Man’s Life, is an Overi-Aét of
High-Treafon.

‘The Law hath taken that Care for the Evidence
of High-Treafon, which it hath not done in any
other Cafe, that it muft be proved by an Overt-
Act, proved by two Witnefles, One would think
at the firflt Sight of the Sratute, that there fhould
be two Witneffes to the fame Fact; but that hath
been adjudged otherwife, yer ftll it was refolved
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there muft be two Witneffes: but if this Refolu-
tion be Law, 1t is plain there needs but one.  *T'is
true, if 2 Man does an A& for which he can give
no Reafon, as placing a Mine of Powder in a Place
the King ufually pafleth over, or planting a Piece
of Cannon to fhoot at a Place the King ufually
pafleth by, if he cannot give a credible Reafon why
he did it, and another fwears the Purpofe of the
thing, 1t is two good Witnefles within the Act.

[t hath been faid, if a Man be bound to his
good Behaviour, and wears a Sword, it is a Breach
of the good Behaviour; and perhaps, heretofore,
when Swords were not ufually worn bur by Sol-
diers, 1t might be {o, becaufe 1t ftruck a Terror in
other People as much as a Blunderbufs, or the like
unufual Weapon ;5 or the going armed in a Coat
of Mail, for any Perfon but a Soldier, doth at this
Day. Yet no Man will fay that, now Swords are
ufually worn by all Sorts of People, it is a Breach
of the good Behaviour ; and fo that which here-
tofore was a Crime, by Cuftom: now is become
none. It is therefore the unufualnefs and the unac-
countablenefs of the Circumftance make it an Evi-
dence, which cannot be afligned as a Reafon in the
Overt- A€t mentioned.

The laft thing 1 take notice of, is, that Colonel
Sidney retufed to afk the Lord Howard any Que-
{tions ; from whence was inferred, that he affent-
ed to the Truth of the Matter fworn : but it is well
known, ’tis no prudence to afk a thorough-pac’d
Witnefs 2 Queftion ; in Mr. Hampden’s Trial, his
Counfe] refufed {o to do for that Reafon.

The next who fell a Sacrifice, according to Col-
ledge’s Prophecy, was Fames Holloway; he was
outlawed, and taken beyond Sea; and being in-
duced with Promuies of Life, to accufe himfelf of
things (whether guilty or not) ¢nough to make
good an Indi¢tment of High-Treafon againft him,
1t was indeed generoufly oftered him that s Out-
lawry fhould be fet afide, and he have the liberty
to be tried, and defend himfeli as well as he could :
but knowing that what he had faid fince he was
taken would be brought in Evidence againft bim,
he refufed his Trial; and becaufe he would not
purchafe his Pardon at the Exzpence of innocent
Men’s Blood, by accufing others, of what he did
not know they were guilty (if his dying Speech
is to be believed) he was executed.

I thould not have mention’d this, but for the fake
of the next Perfon’s Cafe, which was Sir Thomas
Armftrong’s, who was outlawed for High-Treafon,
when he was beyond Sea ; he was raken and brought
to the King’s Bench Bar.,
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Armitrong.

T Common Law, if a Perfon was beyond
A Sea when an Outlawry was pronounc’d a-
gainft him, 1t was an Error in Fadt, for

which the Outlawry was to be revers’d; and it is
an Error in all QOutlawries but for High-Treafon
to this Day. By the 6th of Edward V1. that Error
1s taken away in High-Treafon, but there isa Pro-
vifp in that Statute, that if the Perfon outlaw’d
thalf within a Year after the Outlawry pronounc’d,

yield himfelf to the Chief Jultice of the Kiug’s
Bench, and offer to traverfe his Indiétment, and
on his Trial thall be acquitted, he thall be difcharg’d
of the Outlawry, Upon the Conftruétion of this
Statute, no Judgment was ever given that I know
of ; and the reafon is, no Man outlaw’d was ever
deny’d a Trial till this time, if he was taken within
a competent Time, The reafon of making that

Statute was thiss Men would comimit Trexlon,
and
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cofently fiy beyond Sea, and ftay there till the
:{%?tr?eﬁes. wﬁo Ijltloulyd prove the Treafon were dead;
hen retarn, and reverfe the Outlawry for the Error
of their being beyond Sea s and the Wltneg'es be-
e dead, they were fafe: and thereforf: this Sta-
rute takes away that Error in part, tho’ not in the
whole, and doth in effect fay, that the Perfon out-
taw’d fhall not have advantage of that Error, un-
lefs he comes and takes his TrEal.‘mthm a compe-
wont rime, which that Statute limits to a year after
the Qutlawry. pronounc’d. .
This being plainly the Senfe of the Statute, 1t
was Injuftice to- deny the Favour or Right of a
Teiak to Sir Thomas Armfirong, which was never
deny’d any Perfon before nor fince, where it was
agreed that all the Witneffes againft the Perfon ac-
cas’d were alive, as in Sir Thomas Armftrong’s Cale
they were, barely upon the Quibble of the Word
render, which in no Cafe that ever I read was dif-
ferenc’d from fakes, but in one Cafe, which 1s
Smith and Afbe’s Cale in Cro. Car. 58. in an O_ur—
lawry for Debt 2gainft Hufband and Wife, which
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will not extend to, or warrant the Judgment in this
Cafe: and if there- were but a Doubt in the Cafe,
as it cannot be deny’d there was, the Outlawry
ought to have been wav’d, or at leaft Counfel for
the Prifoner heard as to the Point.

It was a vain and unjuft Reafon (and only tending
to mncenfe the thing) affign’d by the Attorney, that
the Prifoner was one who actually engag’d to go,
upon the King’s hafty coming to Town, to deftroy
him by the way; whereas the Prifoner offer’d to
prove his Innocence in that and other Matters of
which he was accus’d: and even that Objection
againft him was an Invention of the Attorney’s for
any thing appears; but then it was refolv’d to fiop
at nothing, and Succefs had made them fearlefs.
Eitzharris and Colledge *twas own’d had hard mea-
fure, and that their Cafes might be forgotten, their
Quarters were buried; but Sir Thomas ArmfProng’s
were expos’d, tho' the Proeeedings againft him

were equally as unjuftifiable as in the other two
Cales.
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& Think fit to remember in the fame Reign, tho?
hefore this time, one Cafe, to fhew how the
Courts of Juftice were remufs or violent, ac-

cording to the fubject Matter.
All will agree, that the Murder of Mr. Thynne

was one of the moft barbarous and impudent Mur-
ders that ever was committed ; and of that Mur-
der Count Conning fmark, tho’ he elcap’d Punifhment,
was the moft Guilty. |

I do not complain that in that Trial the Chief
Juftice directed the Prifoner the way to make the
King’s Counfel fhew the Caufe of Challenge a-
gainft the Perfons call’d on the Jury, and challeng’d
for the King, without any Realon. It was his Duty
fotodo; and he ought to have direCted Fitzharris
the fame Method, which he did not: but he was
blameable that he did not afk the Liestenant and
Polander what they had to fay for themfelves, which
was always done before and fince that rime, and
ought to be, which was an Injuftice ; and therefore
two of the Prifoners at the time of their Sentences
faid, they were never try’d, tho' I believe no great

Injury to them, becaufe they had liwle or nothing
to have faid for themfelves,

But if they had been afk’d, they would have
faid as they did before their Trials to the Juftice of
Peace who committed them, and as they did after
therr Condemnations, that Count Conuing fmark
put them upon doing what they did, which might
have influenc’d the Jury to have found the Count
gutlly, which was contrary to the Defign of the
Court; and it was for the fame Reafon the Chief
Jultice would not permit the Juftice of Peace to
read the Examination of Stern and Borofky,

I do agree, that what they faid before the Juftice
of Peace was not Evidence againft the Count; I
agree that the Count being indicted and try’d as Ac-
ceflory, at the fame time the Principals were in-
diCed and try’d, the Principals conld not be good
Witnefles 2gainft the Count, becaufe properly a
Principal ought to be convidted before the Ac-

ceflory be try’d ; and cherefore, tho* for Expedition
both are try’d together, yet the Verdi€l always is
and ought to be given againft the Principal, before
that of'the Acceflory.

But I deny what was in that Trial laid down for
Law, that the Acceflory being In the fame Indit-
ment with the Principal muft be try’d at the fume
time, It is true, the Countdefir’d his Trial might
be put off for two or three Days, which the Courg
knowing what was beft for the Count deny’d, and not
for the above pretended Reafons 5 for an Indictment
againft many may be joint, and yet the Trials may
be {everal : the truth 15, 1n {uch Cafes the Indi¢tment
is joint and feveral.

Suppofe the Acceffory, at the Trials of the Prin-
cipals, had not been in cuftody ; will any Perlon
{ay, that if afterwards he was taken, he can’t be
try’d upon that Indiétment in which he was join’d
with the Principals?

But befides a hundred Precedents not printed,
there is the Cafe of George Salifbury & al. in Plowden,
Fol, 100, where it was refolv’d, that tho’ an Indiét-
ment againft many 1s joint, yet the Venire may be
feveral againft each Perfon, and confequently the
Trials may be feveral ; and if fo, then the times of
the Trials may be feveral, but that which is to be
complain’d of is, that the Count, in the Opinion of
all Mankind, at that time and fince, was the moft
ouilty Man 3 yet the care taken to pumifh the lefs
guilty, as Stern and Borgfky, was in order to let
the moft guilty efcape ; for I think both Sterz and
Borgfty might, and would have been good Wit-
neffes againft the Count, if the Court would have
permitted it. The Count might have been indicted
as Acceffory to Uraiz only; for the Acceflory to
all the Principals is Acceflory to every of them fe-
verally: and when the Court in their private Con-
fciences -were fatisfy’d the Count was moft guiity,
they ought to have been cunning, affuti, as my
Lord Hobart calls.it, to have broughe him to Puapifh-

ment. But "twas {aid, Stern and Borsfky being in-
X dicted
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dicted of the fame Crime with thé Count, they

could not be good Witnefies againft him, which I

think is no more Law than Truth: Truth 1t was
not, for the Count was indifted as Acceflory, the
reft as Principals. But taking it that all were 1n-
di€ted and try’d as Principals for the fame Factar
the fame time, why is not the Evidence of the one
good againft the other ? Firft, 1 think there 1s no
exprefs Refolution for that Poinc of Law, but a
Jate Rule given at Kingffon Aflizes upon the Trial
of 2 Maid and one Saterwaite for burning of an
Houfe ; and therefore there is a Liberty to examine
by Reafon how the Lawis. I agree it a Man isin-
dicted and try’d for killing another, he fhall not be
admitted to fay, B. did it by himfelf; burI think he
may be a good Witnefs to prove that he and B. did
ir; that is to fay, he fhall not give any Evidence
againft another, which tends to acquit himielf as
well as accufe another; and I think he may give
Evidence which accufes another of the fame Crime
whereof he is indited, if it doth not tead to ac-
quit himfelf, | |
For it is agreed on all hands, that being guilty
of the fame Crime, doth not difable a Witnufs:
for then Rumfzy and feveral Perfons in the Lord
Ruffel’s Plot, as it was call’d, had not been good
Witefles. In the next place, the Circumitances
of an IndiGment agairft the Witnefles for the fame
thing he teftifies againft another, do not difable
him ; I¥iddrixzton was indi€ted for the fame things,
of which he gave Evidence againlt feveral others as
his Complices in Robberies. Nay, the Law hath
given fomewhat more Credit to the Lvidence of a
Perfon indicted, as a Witnefs of the fame things
againfl others, than it does toa Pcton not indicted ;
as in the Cafe of an Approver, which,
*S.P.C.Libe g5 Stamfurd * fays, was a Perfon in
2655 Prifon (not at large) for the Fact for
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" Rewarks on” Mr. Cornifly’s Tyial.

which he:was indiGted, arraign’d upon an Indiétment.
or an Appeal of Felony, who before a Coroner
aflign’d by the Court, confefles himfelf guilty of
the Felony of which he is indi¢ted, and not of any
other, and confefles other Perfons naming them as
Coadjutors with him in commicting the Crime of
which he 1s indicted, and not of any other Crime;
fo much Credit fhall be given to that Confeflion,
that Procefs fhall be made out againft the Perfon
impeach’d, who, if taken, fhall be arraign’d on
that Approvement, as if an Indi€tment by a Grand
Jury had been found againft him: and if the Law
gives {o much Credit to an Approver, I think no
Perfon can fhew me a Reafon why a Perfon indifted
is not a good Witnefs againft another for the fame
Crime. '
. P T s
et S
D ¢ 3 il
good Witnels; which implies, that
otherwife he 1s not : But it muft be confider’d, that
the reafon of that 1s, that an Approver being 1in-
dicted, as he always is, and confefling the Indiét-
ment, 1$ convicted ;s and a Perfon convidted of Fe-
lony carnot be a Witnefs till pardon’d, But it
wiil be o Argument why Stern and Borrfey had
not been good Witnefles againft the Count before
they were conviéled s and 1t was a like picce of
Juttice, that whereas the Count was the moft aullty
he was acquiited. cr

Ura:z being the next greateft Offender, was
honourably 1nterr’d, and Steiir and the Polaiid:r,
ivho were the lealt Offeaders in that maiter, were
hang’d 1n Chains,

It was fomewhat like the New-Englond ., P
Law, remember’d by Hudibras =, of Cm;;”::”
hanging an ulelefs innocent Heaver for
an uleful guilty Cobler,

2
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Renmarks wpon By, Corndk’s Trial.

HERE yet remain two Perfons Profecu-
tions to {peak of 3 the one is Mr. Corifb,
who was taken the — of Offober, 168 5. and

was arraign’d on an Indi¢tment of High-Treafon
the Monday after, for confpiring to kill the late
King Charles the Second; and knowing james
Duke of Mounmeuth, I¥Villiam Ruflel, Ely; and Si
Thomas Armfirong, to be Rebels and Traitors, pro-
mis’d to be affifiing to them m their Treafons :
To which he pleaded Not Guiley. He delir'd to
put off his Trial, becaufe he had no notice fill
the Saturday betore at twelve a-clock, and he could
oer no Friend to come to him till eight a-clock
at Wight; and then he was permiited o {peak
with no body but in the Prefence of the Goaler :
he had been allow’d no Pen, Ink, or Paper. He
was told by the Court he ought not to have 1,
without leave given on a Petition preferr’d by him,
and that he was taken Twefday before, which to
that time was almoft a Week,- IHe faid, his Chil-

ren had perition’d the King the Night before to
put offhis Trial, and it was referr’d to the Judges:
he did not know whether he was commutted for
Fligh-Treafon againlt the prefent, or the former
Ring, and he had a material Wituefs an hundred

)

and forty Miles off 5 but was told by the Court,
they had no power to put off his Trial, It is
true, they faid the Lord Ruflel’s Trial was put off
till the Afternoon, (which was not true) but that
was a Favour which could not be challeng’d by
another asa Right, He complain’d he had not a
Copy of the Pannel, but was anfwer’d, it was not
his Right to have it.  Then the Attorney faid, he
had not deferv’d fo well of the Government as 1o
have his Trial delay’d, and therefore he was pre-
fently try’d.

Rumfey {wore, that about the latter end of O-
ber, or beginning of Nevember, the Farl of Shafte[-
bury defird him to go to Mr. Sheppard’s Houle,
where was a Meeting of the Duke of Mormcuth,
Lord Raflel, Lord Grey, Sir Thomas Armfirong,
Mr. Fergufon, and Mr. Sheppard 3 he came late,
and they were juft on going away; he deliverd
his Meflage, and they told him that Mr, Trenchard
had difappointed them. He had not been there
above a Quarter of an Hour, but Mr. Sheppard was
call’d down, and brought up Mr, Coraifh, and told
them Mr. Corsifh was come; who came into the
Room, and excus’d his not coming fooner, and

that he could not ftay, for he was to meet about
the
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the Charter ; whereupon “Mr. Fergujon opened his
Bofom, and under his Stomacher pulled out a Pa-
per: they told Mr. Cornifh they had had'it read,
ond defired to read it to him:. Mr. Fergufon read
it, Mr. Sheppard held the Candle while it was
reading, and afterwards they atked Mr. Cornifh how
he liked'it: who faid, he liked 1t very well. He
remembered two Points in it very well, the one
was for Liberty of Confcience, the other was, thac
a1l who would affit in that Infurrection, who had
Church or King’s-Lands in the late War, fhould
have them reftor’d to them. Ke did not hear all
the Iaper, and obferved only thefe two Points; it
was a Declaration on a Rifing, and when the Ri-
fing was to bhave been, it was to have been dif-
eried abroad: there was a Riling intended at thac
ime, and Mr, Corzifb faid, he liked the Declara-
tion, and what poor Intereft he had he would join
with it. e had great dealings with Mr, Coruifh,
and Mr. Coruifh was a very horelt Man, it was out
of Compaflion he had not acculed Mr. Cornifh be-

fore.
Mr. Goadenough faid, there was a Defign to rife,

in Londsir, and for that purpofe to divide the City
into twenty Pares, and to raife five hundred Men
out of cach Part, to take che Tower, and to drive
the Grards out of Town. Before that was agreed
on, he bzing by chance at Mr. Corinfi’s Houl,
faid, the Law will not defend us; fome other way
was to be thought on. Mr. Corsifh faid, he won-
dred the City was fo unready, and rhf; Country fo
ready. Mr. Goodenough reply’d, there Is {omething
thought of to be done here; but in the firft place
the Tower mult be feized, where the Magazine is,
Mr., Cornifb paufed a litde, and faid, I will do
what good 1 can, or what 1can, or to that pur-
pole, he fud.

He afrerwards met Mr. Cornifh on the Exchange,
who afked him how Affairs went ;5 and this was in
Eaflor-Term 1683, He had fome matters with
Mr. Corzifip abour managing the Riot, which was
brought againlt him, Mr, Corzifh, andothers: He
came to Mr, Cornif’s Houfe about the Bufinefs of
the Rior, and no Perfon was by at the Dilcourfe.
Mr. Gosfright teliified for Mr. Cornifh, that he op-
poled Mr. Goodeirongh’s being, Under-Sheriff, and
faid, he would not truft an Hair of his Head with
him, he was an i1l Maa, obpoxious to the Govern-
ment, and had done ill things, and he would not
truft his Eitate and Reputation in the Hands of
fuch an Under-SheriT 3 and he believed Mr. Gaod-
enovgh and Mr, Cornifh were never reconciled. M.
Love, Mr. Fekyl, and Sir William Turner, teftified to
the fame purpnfe: Mr. Lane fpoke our of the
printed Trial of my Lord Ruffel, and faid, Rumfey
10 tat Tmal faid he did not hear the Declaration
read, for it was read before he came.  Dr, Calamy
fnd, Mr. Coraifl did often come to Church, and
receive the Sacrament, My, Soeppard faid, he was
Suopena’d by the King, and by Mr. Cornifh the
Night before; and that Mr. Cornifl’s Son was
was with him the Afternoon of the Day before, who
preft hin to be at the Trial the next Day; that
there were Accounts depending between him and
Mr. Coruifh, whereon there was about one or two
hundred Pounds due to Mr. Cornih, and Mr. Cor-
#illds Subgana was {zrved firft upon him. At one
of thole Mectings at his Houfe, Mr. Coraifh came
to {peak a few Words with the Duke of Moa-
?.F‘J{?!HZ?,’ or {fome other, he could not be pofitive in
thaty 1t was many Years ago: he did not flay
ab%}'e hali 2 quarter of an Hourin the. Houfe s
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Sheppard came up Stairs, and went out with Mr:
Cornifh, and there was not one Word read, not
no Paper feen. while Mr, Corrifb was there: he
remembred there was a Declaration read, Fer=
gufon pulled it out of his Shoe: he could not tell
whether Mr. Cornifi was at his Houfe the Nighe
the Declaration was read, but he was pofitive no
Paper was read while Mr. Cornifh was there, for
Mr. Cornifb was not looked on to be one of the
Company: he did not know who Mr. . Coruifh
came to {peak with, when he came to his Houle ;
My, Cornifp was but once at his Houle when the
Duke of Msnmouth was there: he did not remem-
ber that Mr, Cornifb was in the Company when
Mr. Ramfey was thete; he faid, he had awended
the Court from eleven a-Clock till half an Hour
paft three.

This being the Sum of the Evidence given in
the Trial for and againlt the Prifoner, lec us fee
whether thofe Inferences could be made from ic
as were made by the Court and Counfe} : and whe-
ther, on the whole, an honeft Jury, tho' but of
little underftanding, could have found him guilty
of the Treafon in the Indi¢tment,

It is agreed on all Hands, that a Peuy Jury
may and muft confider the Credibiliiy of a Wit-
nefs, (tho’ in the Lord Shaftefbury’s Cafe it was faid
a Grand Jury ought not fo to do)and if 16, fure-
ly Rumfzy was not a credible, tho’ he was not a
difabled Witnefs 5 no more than a Man who owns
himfelf 1o be a Man of Falthood, a profligate
Wretch, and perjured by his own Confeflion,
tho” not convicted of ir: he had notorioufly con-
fefied himfelf guiity of High-Treafon, and of be-
ing in the-Defign of an intended barbarous Murder ;
he had fworn in the Lord Ruffel’s Trial, he had
named all the Perfons atr the Meeting he {poke of,
of which Mr. Corifb was none; and being taxed
in this Trial with i, he excuafes his Perjury with
Compaffion to the Prifoner, which was mean, foo-
hith, 2nd contradictory : he perjured himftlf to fuve
the Prifoner, and then fwore Truth to hang him.
He had not Prefence of Mind enough to excule
himfelt in the manner 2 Witnefs in the Lord Ref-
S's Trial did, that his God, his King, and his
Country, put him unwillingly 0 aét that part.
jefides that in the Lord Ruffz’s Trial, Rumfey
fwore he was not at the reading the Declaration,
and contradied Sheppard, who {wore thoughe he

was there.
Bur that paflage was proved only by a Witnefs

‘who had read it in the Trial, which, [ confefs, in

(brictnefs of Law is not Evidencey nor if the Wigs
nefs had faid, he heard Rumfey {wear {o at the
Lord Ruffel’s Trial, it had not been Evidence, un-
lefs a Record of that Trial had been produced in
Court, which was not done., Bur all thole things
being but mere Circumftances, fhew the Injuftice
of fpeeding his Trial, and denying him Counfel
Would not any Counfel have told him that
in ftrictnefs of Law a paffage in a printed Trial
was not Evidence, and was it not eafy for him to
hive got a Witnefs to have faid that he had
heard Rumfey {wear fo at that Trul? were not
allthe Judges who facupon him, and all the King’s
Counfel who were againft him, prefent atthe Lord
Ruffel’s Trial, and perfetly remembred what Rum-

fey then {wore as to the pretended Declaration, and

might ke not have fubpena’d them to have teflis
fied that master. Nay, was it not theirr Duty to
have done it even without a Swbpena ¢

D d \ To
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To fay it was againft the King, and therefore
they could not-do it; or they were in the Comi-
miffion to try him, and ctherefore they could not
do it is neither Law nor Reafon. Every Man
knows that 2 Judge in a civil Matter tried be-
fore: him, and a Counfel, even againft his Chient,
has been enforced to give Evidence, (provided ic
be not of a Secret communicated to him by his
Client) for in that particular a Judge ceales to be
a Judge, and isa Wimels; of wpofe Evidence th_e
Jury are the Judges, tho’ he aftter re-affume his
Authority, and is afterwards a Judge of the Ju-
ry’s’ Verditt. o
© A Judge may f{ue, and muft be fued in his
Court, but ‘1n chat Cafe he ceales to be a Judge
and js a Suitor, tho' he re-affumes his Authority
in all other Matters: and if it be fo 1n civil Mat-
ters, let any Man fhew me a Reafon why the
Law 15 not {o in criminal Matters ; there 1s no
exprefs Law againft it, and it will be abfurd in
Reafon to fay the Law is not fo: for at thatrate
the King may put any Witnefs, he knows the Pri-
foner intends to produce for himfelf, into the Com-
miflion for trying him, and fo deprive the Pri-
foner of the Benefit of his Evidence; as in this
Cafe Sheppard, whofe Evidence ought to have bzen
of greac ufe (as fhall be fhewn) tho® it was not
of any avail to the Prifoner, might have been put
mto the Commiflion to have tried Mr. Coriifi,
for he was as much qualified for it, as Sir Fames
omith then Lord Mayer, or any Judge upon the
Beneh, And if they might have been Witneffes
for the Prifoner, if fuhpana’d, they might have
been Witnefles for him even without afking ; and
it was a2 Duty incumbent on them, tho’ not as
Judges, yet as chriftian Men, foto be.

Humanity commands the Difcovery of Truths,
which prevent the fhedding innocent Blood ; and
Chriftianity commands a Man to do as he would
be done by, I think the Queftion need not be
afked what they would have had done, if it had
been their Cafe.

The Reafon that all matters of Law are, or
ought to be, tranfacted publickly, is, That any
Perfon, unconcerned as well as concerned, may,
as amicus Curie, inform the Court better, i he
thinks they are in an Error, that Juftice may be
done: and the reafon thatall Trials are publick,
15, that any Perfon may inform in’ point of Fa&,
tho’ not fubpena’d, that Truth may be difcovered
in civil as well as criminal Matters,

There is an Invitation to all Perfons, who can
inform the Court concerning the matter to be
tried, to come into the Court, and they fhall be
heard. It 1strue, if the Judges or any Perfon had
teftified what Rumfey faid ac my Lord Ruffel’s Tri-
al, it had not been Evidence without the Record
of the Trial; and it is as true, that neither the
Record, nor atrue Copy of it could have been pro-
cured between Mr, Corsiff’s Commitment, if it
were on Friday (2s 1 have heard it was) tho® the
Court faid it was on Tuefday, much lefs between
the noticeé of his Trial which was Saturday-noon,
and the time of his Trial which was Monday-
MOriig.

Bur then what Juftice was there in fpeeding his
Trial, fo as to deprive him of the Circumftances
of his Defence? for that was but a Circumftance,
and not an effential Macrer,  And what Account
tan be given why the Court, when they were
well fatistied that it was in the Prifoner’s power
to.procure fuch a Wimnefs, and fuch a Record, did
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not ftay till ke did it? Or if it would be too
long in doing, why thould they not have put
off the Trial for that time, and given the Priz
foner a convenient time to do it 2

The firft in civil Mateers, hath been frequently
done, when a Deed or Witnefls hath been .want-
ing, 1f 1t could be done in a convenient time,
and 2 Trial has been put off before it came on,
tho® after it came on they have not done it, be-
caufe there is no great Milchief in that, for either
Party bath power to bring it about again; but
not fo in capital Macters, and therefore furies in
capital Matters have been frequently difcharged
after {worn, where the Evidence hath been de-
feltive, “

Itis true, my Lord Cofe faich, thata Jury once
charged with a Prifoner, cannot be difcharged buc
muft give therr Verdict ; but it is as true that he
fays fo in favour of the Prifoner, that when the
Evidence againft him appears defective, he thail
not be continued a Prifoner till more Evidence can
be found, or procured againft him, though the Prac-
tice of late Days hath been quite contrary, wiz.
to difcharge the Jury where the Iividence againit
the Prifoner hath been defe@ive, but enforce them
togivea Verdi&t where the Prifoner’s Defence hath
been defetive ;s tho’ to their knowledae if he had
longer time to do i, he had been able to produce
the Witnefies who could clear him: but by whae
Law or Reafon I am to feek., Yer I confefs, if
Ruinfey’s owning his Perjury in the Lord Ruffels
Trial, in the very point {worn againlt the Prifoner,
and {o {rivoloufly excufing ir, would not difcre-
dit him, I know not that any Record, Wimnefs,
or Evidence would have availed Mr, Cornifh,

And add to Rumfey’s contradi@ing himfelf, that
Sbeppard, who never contradicted himfclf, and
hag been a Winefs in both Trials, agrees, thar
what Rumfcy had fworn in my Lord Reffel’s Tiial,
as to Mr. Ceraift’s not being there, was true.,

But admitting Ramfey had never perjured him-
felf, but was of equal Credit with Sheppard; yet
when they contradidted each other in a point which
arried no  probability or improbability with i,
in a capital Matter the Jury ought to believe i

Javorem vtz for it makes the matter ac leaft

doubtful : and therefore the Jury ought to have
acquitted the Prifoner, for a Reafon in Law, and
which was given in Colonel Sidney’s Trial (the’
fhewithly) by the Court, wiz. that it is better thar
twenty Noceats thould efcape, than one Innocent
{uffer,

But to pals from the Credibility of the Wit-
nefles to the Matter of his Evidence, this was the
fecond time that this fort of Evidence in any Cafe
ciminal or civil was permiited to be given in
Evidence 3 and there are the fame Exceptions to
it, as are above affigned to the Evidence of Sheg-
pard.  As to the Declaration in my Lord Ruf-
Jef's Trial, if a true Copy of part of a Deed or
Writing was never yer permitted to be given in
Evidence, much lefs hath or ought the Purport of
Part of a Writing be given in Evidence, efpecially
when fuch a Reafon is given why the Wirnefs re-
membred but part of ir, as is given by Sheppard
in my Lord Raffel’s Frial, and by Rumfey in chis
Tral, viz, that he did not hear all the Paper
read.

And furely  Goodenough could no way fortify
Rumfey’s Evidence, being clearly of another mat-
ter, and that fo very uncertain, that no heed oughe
to have been given to ir.  When Gosdzisngh told

' Mr,
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M. Cornifh fomething ought to be done in the
City, but in the firlt place the Zower ought to
be {vized 5 to which he anfwered, he would do what

ke could, or what good he could : thefe words may
as well relate to Goodenough’s prefent Difcourfe,
where.he complains that the Law would not defend
them tho’ innocent, as well as to the feizing the
qyezer « and if they fhould refer to the laft, yet
they may be well enough interpreted, that he would
Jo what he could, or what good he could, to pre-
vent the feizing the Tower. And if they are capable
of two Senfes, they ought to be interpreted in the
belt for the Prifoner.

Befides, - the Words are fpoken not as a thing de-
figned, bur as a Matter, without which all other
Matters were in vain, and might be meer matter of
Dilcourfe, as was that between Blague and Mate
Lze abour taking the Tower : and if there was fuch
a Delign on foor, it doth not appear that Mr, Cor-
aifh was ever acquainted with it. The fame may
be faid as to what he afked Goodenough, when he
afkced how Maiters went : may not thofe Words well
enough be applied to the Bufinefs of the Riot,
Gosdeisugh managed for Mr. Coranfh and others ¢
And if what Gsodensugh {21d was Evidence of a De-
fizn of feizing the Tower, that, aswellas the Trea-
fon againft the Gaards, was Trealon by the Act of
the lae King, and not by the 25th of Edward the
"Third, 1f it be true Do&trine which was laid down
in the Charge to the Earl of Shaftefbury’s Grand-
Jury: and if fo, he ought to have been profecuted
tor 1t within fix Months, and indiéted within three
Months, il the Doétrine 1n Colledge’s Trial be true;
and yet this Delign, 1f true, wasin Eqfler-Term,
1653, and the Profecution not till Offeber 1685,

There was yet one piece of Evidence urged a-
oainft him, viz. of his own Witnels Sbeppard, who
politively teftificd {for him as to the main, yet in
a Circumftance feemed to teftify againft him, which
was Mr. Cornifi’s being at his Houfe when the Duke
of Aenmonth and the reft were there, when the De-
claration was read 5 and upon that piece of Evi-
dence, as 1f it had contraditted what Mr. Coraifl
faid before, there was a mighty Triumph : whereas,
the moft that could have been made of it was, that
Mr. Corafb in part of his Defence was guilty of
an uncruth., And even that was not fo in Faé 5 for
being charged to have been at Sheppard’s the Niche
the Declaranion wasread, he anlwered he was never
at a Confule in his Life, le never was at Sheppard’s
in any Confult, he never was there with my Lord
Ruffel, as he remembred ; he had been at Sheppard’s
feveral nmes, but never liked Fergufou for his Mo-
rals, and therefore never liked to be in his Company,
and he did not know but that he might enquire for
the Duke of Monmonth in other Places, and this is
all Vir, Cormifb fays to that matter,

Sheppard fays, Mr. Cornifh came into his Houfe
at one of the pcetings to fpeak with the Duke of
Moninouth or fome other, he could not be pofitive
10 that, 1t was {o many Years ago, and did not ftay
halt 2 quarter of an Hour : he could not fay it
was the Nighe che Declaration was read 3 he did
not know whether Mr. Coraifs came to fpeak with
“the Dulke of Adzmouthor nor; he could not remems-

ber waether Mr, Coraifs was there in Company
Vou IV,

¥ - ~
He fems to mmean the Cafe of Joan Pecry and her tavs Sons,
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when Rumfey was there 5 there were not above three-
Perfons there when Mr, Cornifh came, which was
the Duke of Mowmmoutb, Mr. Fergufon, and he could:
not tell whether the other was the Lord Ruffé/, or
the Lord Grey.

Now it would be hard to find out the Contradic-
tion between Mr, Coruifli’s Sayings and Sheppard’s:
Evidence ; both apree that Mr. Cornifh hath been
often at Sheppard’s Houfe, and neither denies or af-.
firms that he was or was not there the Night the
Declaration was read, for a good reafon ; which.
was, that Mr. Cornifh knew nothing of it, and Shep-
pard knew not which of the Nights he was there,
Mr. Cornifo faid he was not there with my Lord.
Ruffel as he remembred, and Sheppard doth not
affirm he was there wicth the Lord Ruffel.  Shep-
pard fays, that he was there when the Duke of A22:-
month was there, and Mr., Coraifh doth not fay thac
he was not there with the Duke of Adonmouth.
Sheppard faid, he fpoke to the Duke of Aermonth,
or {ome other Perlon, but he thought it was the
Duke of Monmoeuth, which is no direct Affirmation
that he {poke to the Duke; and Mr. Coruifh doth
not fay, he did not {peak to the Duke of Monmentb.
So that if the Account of the Trial, fet out by the
Authority of, and figned by, Thomas Foues, bewrue,-
I cannot fee any manner of Contradiction between
Mr. Cornifb and Sheppard : and therefore, as the
Court and King’s Counfel did infer, that Sbeppard’s
Evidence, who pofitively denies the Truth of Ruu-
fey’'s Evidence, was fo far from nvalidating, that
it corroborated Rumfey’s Evidence, and cleared the
thing which was before fomewhat dark, beyond
all manaer of Contradiction, 1s a piece of efiron-
tery, So admitting Sheppard had faid Mr, Cornifh
was at s Houle the Night the Declaration was
read, and had contradifted Mr. Cormfd, is it a ne-
ceflary Coufequence, that he heard the Declaration
read, and promifed his Affiftance toit? Which mult.
be the Inference, if muft fupport Rum/ey’s Evidence,

It it be not a neceflary Conlequence, but a pro-
bable one, that ought not to weigh with a Jury, to
convict a Perfon of a capital Crime, efpecially not
of Treafon. The Statute of Edward the Third
{ays, probably Convifts that is, fays my Lord Cofe,
convitted upon direct and manifeft Proof, notupon
probable conjectural Prefumptions, or Inferences,
or Strains of Wit: And ro fay truth, when Verdiéts
have been given on fuch Evidence, they have been
often faulty. '

To give fome Inftancesof many, it is remembred
in our time ™ where Perfons were convicted of che
Murder of a Perfon abfent, but not dead, barely by
Inferences upon the Evidence of foolifh Wards and
A&ions 3 but the Judge before whom it was tried,
was fo unfatished in the Matter, becaufe the Body
of the Perfon fuppofed to be murdered was not o
be found, that he reprieved the Perfons condemned ;
yet in & Circuit afterwards, a certain unwary Judge,
without enquiring into the Realons of the Reprieve,
ordered Kxecution, and the Perfonste be hanged in
Chains, which was done accordingly ; and afrer—
wards, to his reproach, the Perfon {uppoled to be
murdered appeared alive,

My Lord Cske relates a Story - 1n his Time, of
an Uncle who beat his Niece, that had an Eftate,

Dd 2 which

John and Richard Perry, avba avere Executed at GlouceRer Lent-

Hffizes, 1001, for the Juppofed Murder of William Harrifon, avbo bad been conveged into Turky, and made a Slave for tavo Years,

and aftcricards cfeaped, and came back to Bn oland.

‘v This T at Warwicle Afizes, 8 Jac. 1. 3 Co. Inft. 232, By the Ciwil Lazv, unlefs there avas dired and pafitive prosf that the
Pevfon ncas billed, ns Circumflances avere adpitted azainft the Perfin acenfed of the Marder.  Digelt, lib. 39. tit. 5. §. 24,
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which on her Death would defcend to him ; the Girl
was heard to cry, Good Uncle, do not kill me 5 after
which fhe runaway, and concealed herfelf fome few
Miles from London. The Girl being miffing, and the
Neighbours remembring the Cry of the Girl, and
tacking it to the Probability that the Uncle might
be induced, for his Advantage, to murder his Niece
apprehended him, and he was indicted for it at the
Seflions ; and the Judges being unfatisfied in the E-
vidence, by reafon the Body of the fuppoled mur-
dered Girl did not appear, the Uncle faying that
fhe was run away, they gave him time to the next
Seffions to find her out, which he being not able to
do, thought to defend himfelf by preducing ano-
ther Girl very like his own Niece, which he did ac-
cordingly ; and being detected, 1t increafed the
Sufpicion, and by Inferences from all thofe Cir-
cumftances, he was convicted, and afterwards exe-
cuted.

Some Years after which, the Girlappeared, and
claimed her Eftate: and therefore it isa moft dan-
gerous and unwarrantable thing for a Jury, in ca-
pital Mateers, efpecially in Treafon, to convict a
Perfon upon the Evidence of Probakilities,

As the Evidence in this Cafe againit the Prifoner
was weaker than in any of the precedent Cafes, fo
the Ulzge of the Prifoner was more rigorous than
inany of them: inall the other Cafes, the Prifoners
had more Weeks allowed them to prepare for their
Trials, than this Perfon had Days ; all the other
Perfons, after notice of their Trial, were permitted
to have Friends, nay, Counfel, freely to come to
them, and confer with them in private, without
the Prefence of a Goaler, which was denied this
Perfon: All the others, except Colonel Sidrey, had
foft Words given them on their Trials 5 bur this
Perfon was rudely handled,

How often was he fnubbed and bid hold his
tongue? How often did he beg the Patience of the
Court, to hear him and s Witnefles? And when
he was heard, how was all he faid ridiculed? And
if ke faid he was innocent, he was bid remember
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my Lord Ruffel faid fo to his Death; when he fié
he was as innocent as any Perfon in the Court, he
was told, for all his Confidence, few believed him.
If he faid the Mitter fworn againft him was im-
probabie (which hath been taken for a pretry good
Topick for the difbelicf of a Matter teftified) how
is it ridiculed by Tmprobability, Improbability, Impre-
bability ? If he go to prove he is an honeft Man,
he is told that is all Appearance, If he fays he em-
ployed Goodenongh about the Riot, he istold that
isa Branch of the Plot.  If he call Mr, Goifright as
a Witnefs for him, the Witnefs is reproached with
having helped the Prifoner in packing Juries ; if
he call one to prove he received the Sacrament,
he 15 told, that was in order to qualify himfelf to
be a Sheriff; and fuch was his Ufage before, and at
the Trial,. fuch was 1t afterwards : to order him to
be tied when he was fentenced, was an Indignity not
ufed to Perfons of his Quality 5 a thing indeed per-
mitted, not commanded to be ufed, on boifterous
Criminals, who may be fufpe@ed to do a fudden
Mifchief, if their Arms were at liberty,

Of like kind was the Reproaching him with the
Chearfulnefs of his Countenance at his Condemna-
tion, and that it might be all of a ftrain, his Quar-
ters were expofed, a Severity ufed to none above-
mentioned, but Sir Thomas Armflrong 5 and in all
thefe Trials, Colledre made the beft Defence, and
perhaps, Circumitances confidered, the beft Defence
ever made upon an Indi¢tment of a Capital Matter,
and Mr. Coranifi’s was the weakeft, tho’ it l1gni-
fied nothing : for I believe that none who reads his
Trial, but will plainly fee he was fo befet, that the
Defence he, or any for him could make, would
have availed him nothing, and no account can be
given for the Proceedings againft Mr. Coruifh, in
the above manner, but that fome of the Judges,
whereof three who were on the Bench, had newly
come out of the /7eff, where they had been {o flufhed
and hardned, that nothing feemed to them rigorous

or cruel, and the reft feemed to vie with them in
the Praltice.
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HE laft Perfon which concluded the Tra-

gedy, was one Charles Bateman, a Chirur-
geon 3 his Demerits were, that he had been, or
at leaft was reputed to have been, Chirurgeon to
the Earl of Shafiefbury, and one whom his Lord-
fhip had a Kindnefs for, and therefore according to
the Cantof the Time, he was called a factious Fel-
low ; and he had revived the Memory of his Deme-
rits, by attending when Oates came from his Whip-
ping, and letting him Blood, Whether ¢ither of thofe
Circumfitances were true or not, I know not, but
they were believed: And therefore the gth of De-
cember 1685, he was indifted and tried for High-
Treafon. On his Trial he feemed to be diftracted,
and therefore, out of abundance of Charity, the
Court appointed his Sen to make his Defence for
him,

The Witnefles againft him were Keeling, who only
fpoke of a Defign in general, without mentioning
Bateman to be concerned in it, Thomas Lee and
Richard Geodenough fwore, at feveral times and pla-

7. Charles Bateman.

ces, his Difcourfe to them feverally, of feizing the
Tower, City, and Savoy, Baker for the Prifoner faid,
Lee in the Year 1683, would have had him infinu-
ated himfelf in the Prifoner’s Company, and dif-
courfe about State-Affairs, and by that he would
find a way to make Baker a great Man: upon the
Evidence the Prifoner was found guilty, Againft
Goodeiongh’s Evidence, there is only thisto be faid,
that he was pardoned, but fo far only, as to qualify
him to be a Witnefs, though not a very credible
one, not only the Guilt fticking to him, bur even
the Punifhment of what he had then lately done,
hanging over his Head ; and what was faid for fome
time, of all the Witneffes for the King, at that time,
and for fome time before, was true, they hunted
hke Cormorants, with Halters about their Necks,
though even thar matter by one of the King’s Coun-
el was boafted to the Jury, as a Circumftance of
more Credibility 5 for he aflured them there was not
a Witnefs which he produced had a Pardon, as the
Witnefles in the Popith Plot had, *Tis true, in

the
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#e Popith Plot, upon very good reafon, the Wit-
yeffes having confefled what they pretended to know,

¢ matters in which they had an hand, it was not
?hought proper to ule them as Witneffes, though

they had ufed‘the:_n' as Informers, till they Trer[i
pardon’d, left it might happen to be, or at lea
it would have been, fufpected, that ::hf: terror of
the Punifhment of the Crimes confefs'd might In-
Auence them to fwear falfely, to the jeopardy of
other Men’s Lives, to five their own ; which, as
the Lord Howard truly faid, was the Drudgery of
{wearing. But to Le’s Evidence, befides the Evi-
dence of Baker againft him, that_he woul_d have
procured Baker to have been a Witnels n‘gam{’c the
Prifoner, and enticed him with the promife of ma-
kiflg him a great Man; and befides that, 1t ap-
prars in Roufe’s Trial, that Roufe and !1(: WEre up-
on the Trepan with each other, to bring each o-
ther into the pretence of a Plot, 1n order to make
fome advantageous difcovery of it, of which Lee
got the ftart of Roufz; the Objetion which was
made to his Evidence, why Lee had not accufed the
Prifoner fooner, there being near three Years be-
eween the pretended Defign, and the Difcovery of
ir, was never fatisfactorily anfwered. It was a fool-
ith Story, to fay Goodenough could not be had be-
fore, and a fingle Teftimony in High-Trealon was
rot fufficient; cvery one knows, that though a fin-
cle Witnefs is not enough to convict a Man of
High: Treafon, yet a {ingle Perfon’s Teftimony is
enough to commit a Perfon accufed, and upon Con-
viction, on the Teftimony of a fingle Witnefs, to
malke him a Prifoner for his Life, witnefs Mr. Hamp-
den, and others 3 befides the fubjeéting him to o-
ther corporal Punifhments, infli¢ted at Difcretion,
witnefs Mr. Fobnfonn and Oates, And 1n 1683, when
the Words were pretended to be fpoken, Bateman
had not been fpared, if accufed ; and though it be
a good Realon for the Court to have given, why
they did not proceed againft the Prifoner till that
time, becaule there were not two Witnefies againft
him 3 yet it was no reafon for Lee, why he did
not accule the Prifoner before that time, efpeci-
ally he having been feveral times before that time
examined, not only of what he knew, but of what
Perfons he knew concerned : but to fay truth, Lee,
in the Trial, did not pretend to anfwer the Objec-
tion, but the Court, in the manner before, endea-
voured to anfwer it for him.

The laft Matter obfervable in this Trial, was the
permitting Bateman’s Son to make his Father’s De-
fence, which was an extraordinary unparallel’d Fa-
vour; it was the firlt and laft cime that, or any
thing like ir, had been done: The Lord Ruflls
Lady indeed was permitted to take Notes at the
Trial for her Lord, but he only was permitted to
make ufe of them. Fiizharri®s Wite when the
but whifper’d her Hufband, or but told him whart
jurors he fhouold challenge, and what not, was
feverely correfled, and threatned to be thruft out
of Court, for doing it in prejudice of the King. In
Colledge’s Trial, he was told, that Perfons that ad-
vis'd a Prifoner in Treafon, even before a Trial,
were guilty of a hiph Mifdemeanor 5 nay, a Sol-
ficteor had been indicted of High-Treafon for it:
and therefore nothing can excufe the allowing the
Prifoner Counfel in matter of Fa, as was done
in this Cafe, (it is not material, whether the Son
was a Barriiter at Law or not) but the Weaknefs
of éhﬁ' Prifoner, who to all appearance was moped
mad,
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But the Court by excufing their Favour upon

that account, incurred a worfe Cenfure ; for nothing
is more certain in Law, than that a Per-

{fon who falls mad after a Crime fup- 3 Cok. Zufir.
pos’d to be committed, fhall not be P 4

try’d for it; and if he fall mad after Judgment,
he {hall not be executed : T though I do not think
the reafon given for the Law in that Point wiil
maintain it, which is, that the Ead of Punifhment
is the ftriking a Terror into others, but the exe-
cution of a Madman hath not that effet ; which
1s not true, for the Terror to the Living is equal,
whether the Perfon be mad or in his Senfes: and
that 1s the reafon of breaking the Perfon executed
for Treafon, and expofing his Quarters, which
18 done rather to deter the Living, than for pu-
nifhing the Dead, Bur the true reafon of the Law
I think to be this, a Perfon of non fana Memoria,
and 2 Lunatick during his Lunacy, is by an Aé:
of God (for fo it is call’d, though the means may
be human, be it violent, as hard Imprifonmenr,
terror of Death, or natural, as Sicknefs) difabled
to make his jult Defence.  There may be Circum-
{tances lying in his private Knowledge, which
would prove his Innocency, of which he can have
no Advantage, becaufe not known to the Perfons
who [hall take vpon them his Defence 5 and that
1s the Realon many civil Aéions die with the Per-
fons againt whom they lay in their Life-times;
and that 1s the Reafon why in criminal Matters,
Perfons by ordinary courfe of Law cannot be con-
victed after their Deaths.

For 1n all civil Aétions there 1s as much reafon
for the Perfon injured, to have Satisfattion out of
the Eftate of the Perfon who injur’d him, in the
Hands of his Heir or Executor after his Death, as
there was to have it out of the Eftate of the In-
jurer, in his own Hands in his Life-time ; and there
1s as much reafon that the Heir or Exzcutor of a
Perfon who hath committed a Crime, which by
Law would have forfeited his Eftate, if in his Life-
time he had been attainted of the fame, thould for-
feir the Eltates they claim from him, as if he had
been attainted in his Life-time, which had pre-
vented the faid Eltates vefting in them. And it
hath been fometimes practis’d, where the Crimes
of the Perfons deceas’™d have been notorious, and
without any Doubt 3 as was the Cafe of feveral Per-
fons mention’d in the A& of Pains and Penalties:
which At had Example from many other Aéts of
Parliament in other Reigns, where the Perfons were
dead before Punifhment overtook them.

And though of late Years it hath been pretend-
ed, that the King’s Safety depends upon the {peedy
Trial and Execution of a Perfon guilty of High-
Treafon; yet this was never thought fo hereto-
fore, nor in truth in itfelf is fo: for it is plain, In
Reafon as well as Experience, that what 15 faid
of Witches, is true of all Malefaltors when once
they are in Cuftody, their power of doing Milchier

ceafes.
The King is therefore no otherwife benefited

by the Deltruction of his Subjeds, than thac the
Example deters others from committing the like
Crimes 3 and there being fo many to be made Ex-
amples of, befides thofe on whom the Mistortuncs
of Madnefs fall, it is inconfiftent with Humamty
to make Examples of them ; it is inconfiftent with
Religion, as being againft Chriftian Charity to {end
a great Offender quick, as it is ftil’d, into another

World, when e is not of a Capacity to fit him-
' ‘*"b felf

-i- 4 Co. REP' 124. b. Hals's H. P, C. pig) 11 P55
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felf for it. But whatever the Reafon of the Law
is, it is plain the Law is fo; and for remedying it
in High-Treafon, was the 33d of Henry the Eighth
made * , whereby it is enaéted, That if a Man fall
mad after he hath commicted High-Treafon, he
thall notwithftanding be try’d in his Abfence; and
if a Man fall mad after he is attainted of High-
Treafon, he fhall notwithftanding be executed.
Which Statute extending only to High-Treafon,
the Law continu’d, and yet is as it was at common

* 5Co. Inf Law in all other capital Matters; and
0. 12fL, ‘
576 even that * Statute was call'd a cruel

and inhumane Law, and therefore liv’d
not long, for it was afterwards repeal’d 1 : fo that
the Law, as to this matter, when this Man was tried
and executed, was as it was at common Law ; and
therefore if he was of won fane Memorie, he ought
not to have been try’d, much lefs executed.

© 1 know it will be objected, that if this Matter
of mon faus Memoria fhould be permitted to pue
off a Trial or ftay Execution, all Malefattors will
pretend to be fo: But I fay there is a great diffe-
rence between Pretences and Realities, and faia and
son faia Memoria hath been often try’d in || capital
Matters, and the Prifoners have reap’d fo little bes
nefit by their Pretences, it beingalways difcover’d,
that we rarely hear of it. In this Cafe the Prifoner
might have been try’d as well abfent as prefent, ac-
cording to that repeal’d Statute, for any advantage
he did or could reap by being prefent : and it feems
very probable the Court thought him diftemper’d 5
for if he was of fane Memory, his Son ought not
to have been permitted to make his Father’s De-
fence ; 1f he was diftemper’d, he ought not 10
have been try’d, much lefs executed. And this Per-
fon being the laft Man, as far as 1 can remember,
or can find by the printed Trials, who {uffer’d for
the Plot of High-Treafon firft {et on foor by Jitz-
barris, and carry’d on againft Colledge, and the o-
ther Perfons herein mention’d ;3 and the Defign
ftopping here, I think fit 1o end my Remarks on
the Proceedings of all Capital Matters with him,
But I think it 1s fit for me to make fome Apology
for the thing, and for myfeli, for taking on me
to cenfure the Opinions and Actions of Perfons

* Cap. zc. 1 & 2 Phil. and Mar. cap.

“Remarks on Mr: Bateman’s Trial.

whofe Characters carry’d Authority with them, I
confefs I never thought that either the Great Seal
or a Garment added to a Man’s Senfe, Learning,
or Honefty ; but he remain’d juft fuch, as to thofe.
Qualities, after his Preferment, as he was befores
and as to many of the Perfons refleCted on in thefe
Remarks, the Cenfure of Colonel Sidiey was true ;
and for the beft of them, it is plain they not on<
ly vary’d from one another in their Opinions, but
even from themielves in the Judgment of the fame
Cafe, bur always tending to the Deftru€tion of the
Perfon try’d for his Life ; witnefs the Opinion of
the Court in the Challenge of Jurors not having
a Frechold, and the defigning 1o levy War, not
Treafon within the Statute of Edw, I1I. and forty
other matters, And that not only gives a Liberty
to enquire, but naturally puts one upon the En-
quiry which of the two Opinions is right; tho' 1t
is impoflible for one not to think meanly of the
Perfon, who, in f{o great a Concern as a Man’s
Life, fhould be forath asto give his Opinion with-
out Confideration, or fo uniteady as to give dif-
ferent Opintons in the fame Cale : for if a Man
who tells Hiftory backward and forward, is juft-
ly fufpected in point of Truth, the Knowledge
and Sincerity of a Man, who gives different Opi-
nions in the fame Cafe, 1s jultly fufpected in point
of Law; which, together with the fulfome, but in-
jurious, Stuft' vented for Crown-Law, was the firft
Matter which put me on confidering and writing
what [ have done.

As for my felf, if Tully thought it a Reproach
to his Son if he did not abound with Philofophy,
having heard Cratippus for the {pace of a whole
Year, and that at Atbens; furely one who hath had
his Education at one of the three great Schools for
fome Years, and afterwards at the Univerfity, and
Jaftly, twenty-five years conftant Refidence inan Tnx
of Conrt, and twenty years attendance at 77:ftmii-
fler-Hall, and not diverted by the ufual Employs
of a Soliicitor ov Attoricy, may be allow’d withour
the Impuration of Conlidence to give his Cenfure,
upon confideration, on the extempore Judgments or
Opinions of Perfoss, the’ of greater Standing and
Character than himitlf.

19, 1 And. 107,
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XXVIII The Trial of John Hampden, * Efg; at the Olds

Bailey, for High-Trealon, Decemb. 30, 168s,.

[11S Day being appmnted for the Trial
of Mr. Hampden, after the Judges came
to the Court, and the Court was called, the

Officer was commanded to proceed to call over the
Fury whillt Mr. Hampden was bringing down.

Cryer. O-Yes, you good Men of the County of
Middlefex, fummon’d to appear here this Day, to
try the Iflue which fhall be between our Sovereign
1,ord tlic King, and the Prifouer that {hall be call’d
to the Bar, anfwer to your Names as they fhall be
call’d, every onc at the firlt Call, upon pain and
peril that fhall fail cthercon.

Clerk. Sir Hugh Middleton of Twwittenham, Bart,

Sir Richard Dunton of Thiftlewerth, Kat,

Sir Fobn Beiry of Stepney, Knt.

Siv Robert Clark of Holbern, Knt,

Sir Thomas Roe of the Strand, Knt,

Sir Fobn Fricad ot Hackney, Knt.

Sir Henry fobufon of Blackwall, Kat,

Richard Morley of Chelfza, s

Tohn Shales ot the Partth of St. Martin’s in the
Fields, Elqs *

Robert Foflet of Marybone, Elqg;

Fofias Clark of Chifwick, Efq;

Fobn Forfter of Kenfington, Elgs

Feffery Nightingale of Cripplegate, Efqg;

William Cleave of the fame, ]:.fq

Charles Hinton of Covent-Garden, Efq;

Fobn Stokes of Hatton-Garden, Elq;

Henry Hawly of Breuntford, Elg;

Thomas Cafh-of Bow, Lig;

Andrey Latwrence of the Parifh of St, Martin'’s in
the Fi:/ds, Efas

Nebemiah Ariold of Welkminfler,

Sumgn Smith of the fame, Efqs

IP:fiam Preflgrave of the fame, Efg;

Nichslas Barter of the Parifh of St. Martin's in the
Fields, Fiqs

Humphry Bu Afhaw of the Savoy, Efq;

Gilhert Herrs ¢ of the Parifh of St. Martin’s in the
Fields, Llq;

I7alter Bridall of the fame, Efq;

Thomas Liton of Stepney, Efq;

Natthew Batzinan of I7bite-chapel, Tfqs

Thoras Certis of the Parifh of St, Clement Danes,

Pcter Lugg of the Parith of St. Giles in the Fields,

Jobir Neridalz of St. Giles in the Fields, Gent.

James Susple of the Parifh of St Mertin’s in the
Ifu[ﬂ'f G{:‘ﬂ[‘

Thomas IVhitfeld of the fame, Gent.
Ricsaid Cosle of the faime, Gent.

G*’-*‘j’ Hfr’ C{fﬁ of the ilr'?f GLHL

;n!;n- Hais of the fame.

ﬁ,bﬂ Leefeir of the fame,

Richard Bro :Hf Id of Halborn, Gent.
.ﬂv’fiﬂ'! ’Zt.f. j_){,’l’Jr CL* NI H Grpr

Ligs

E‘{q
Elgs

r Jac. IL

Fames Fern of the Parith of St. Martin's in the
Fields, Gent.
Robert Brook of the fame, Gent, -
Jobn Vigures of Wefiminfler, Gent.
Edmund Aubrey of the Parifh of St. Martin’s in the
Fields, Gent.
Fobn Cannon of the Parith of St. Giles id the Fielgy;
Gent,
Jobn Baily of the fame,
Thomas Barnes of the fame,
Francis Edmunds of the fame,
Robert Longland of the fame.,
Edward Hamflead of the fame.
Thomas Hinton of the fame, Gent.
Fofeph Bliffet of IWhite-chapel, (ent.
Zechariah Grant of the fame, _
Richard Fitzgerald of the Parifh of St. Matin’s 1n
the Fields. '
Benjamin Bolthy of St. Giles in the Fields.
Richard Dorrel of the Savey, Gent,
Anthony Hall of the fame.
Stepben Phillips of the Parifh of St. Martin's in the
Fields.
I7illiain Stepbens of the fame.
Fobi Davis of the fame.
Richard Hutchinfou of the fame.
Anthony Nurfe ot Fulbam, Gent.
Robert Mbponr of the Parith of St
Gent.
Samuel Peacock of Iefimnfler, Gent.
Richard Boife of the fame,
Samuel Birch of the lame,
Peter Reeve of the fame,
homas Hutchins of the fame, Gent.
Fobn Hewlet of [Veftminfler, GenL.
Foby Towers of €ovent-Garden, Gent,
Richard Aubrey of Fhite-chapel, Gent,
Fobn Wells of Marybone, Gent.
[Villiam Gzrman of Sr Clement Danes, ent.
Thomas Harris of Hoelbern, Gent.
Bar. Parr of Eaft-Smith ﬁeld Gent.
Yohu Caffels of the Parith of St Martin’s in the
Fields, Gent.
Samuzl Bifbop of St. Clement’s Danes, Gent.
IVilliam Wheatly of the Parifh of St, Gilei in the
Fields, Gent.
Cb:v.fﬁapber Chambers of the fame.
Samuel Brown of the fame,
Benjamin Dun of the §avey.
Samuel fewel of the fame,
[ugh Hammerfbey of the fame.
Abrabam Harrifon of the Straud, Gent.
Thomas Nichols of Pancras, Gent.
IVilliam Dean of the Parith of St. Martin in the
Fields, Gent,
Thimas Parnel of the fame,
Matthias Cooper of the fame, Gent.
William Merchait of the fame, Gent,

Clement Danes,

Richard

* Burn, Hif. oawn Timés, Vol. L p. 646.
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Richard Campion of the fame, Gent,
Simon Smith of Woodftreet, Wefiminfler, Gent,

Thomas Green of Wefiminfter, Gent.

Clerk, Set Fobn Hampden to the Bar.
[ Fbich was done.

ohn Hampder hold uo thy Hand.
Y ? £ [Which be aid.

HE Furers for our Sovereign
Lord the King, upon their Caths
prefent, that Fobn Hampden, late of the Parifh of
St. Giles in the Fizlds, in the County of Afiddlefex,
Gent. as a falfe Traitor againft the moit illultrious
and excellent Prince, our Lord Charles the Second,
late King of England, Scotland, Frauce, and Ire-
land, Defender of the Faith, thy natural Lord,
the Fear of God in thy Heart not having, nor the
Duty of thy Allegiance any ways weighing ; but
being moved and feduced by the Infligation of the
Devil, the cordial Love, and true, due, and na-
tural Obedience, which a true and faithful Subyedt
of our faid Jate Lord the King, towards him our
faid Jate Lord the King, of right ought to bear,
wholly withdrawing ; and imagining, practiling,
and with thy whole Strength intending the Peace
and common Tranquillity of this Kingdom of Lug-
[1id to difquiet, moleft, and difturb, and War and
Rebellion againft our faid late Lord the King,
within this his Kingdom of England, to ftir up,
move, and procure; and the Governmeri of our
faid late Lord the King, of this his Kingdom of
England to {ubverr, change, and alter; and our
faid late Lord the King, of the Title, Honour,
and Royal Name, of the Imperial Crown of this
his Kingdom of England to depofe and deprive :
And him our faid late Lord the King, to death,
and final deftruction to bring and put ; the 20th
Day of Fuly, in the Year of the Reign of our faid
late Lord the King, Cbharles the Stcond, of Eug-
laind, &c. the 35th, and divers other Days and
Times, a3 well before as after, at the Parifh of St.
Giles 1n the Fields, in the County of Adfddiefex, falfely,
malictoufly, devilithly, and traitorouily, with divers
other fal{e Rebels and Traitors unknown, didft con-
ipire, compafs, imagine, and intend our faid larel_ord
the King, then thy {fupreme and natural Lord, not
only of his Royal State, Title, Power, and Govern-
ment of this his Kingdom of Euglaind, to deprive
and caft down, but alfo our faid late Lord the
King to kill, and to death to bring and put, and
the annient Government of this Kingdom of Eng-
2and 10 change, alter, and wholly to fubverr; and
a miferable Slaughter amongft the Subjeéts of our
faid late Lord the King, through his whole King-
dom of Eug/and, to caufe and procure, and Infur-
rection and Rebellion agaisft our faid late Lord the
King, within his Kingdom of England to procure :
And thele thy wicked, abominable, and devilifh
Treafons and traicorous Confpiracies, Compaflings,
Imaginattons, and Purpcfes aforefaid, to fulfil, per-
fe&t, and bring to pafs, thou the faid Fobn Hamp-
aeny as a dalfe Traitor, then and chere, (to wir)
the faid 20th Day of 7uly, in the year of the Reign
of our faid Iate Lord the King, 35th aforefaid,
and divers other days and times, as well before as
after, at the Parith of Si. Giles in the Fields, afore-
[ardy in the faid County of Middlefex, falfely, un-
Lawlully, wickedly, devilithly, and traitoroufly,
with 7Fames late Duke of Aonmonth, and divers o-
ther falfe Traitors unknown, did aflemble your
felf, meet together, and confult, and confent to

Middlefes:,

133. 'Trz’a,l of ]bhli H‘éﬁmpd:eiy Efg;
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move and “procure divers great Sums of Money,
and a great Number of Men armed, and War and

- Rebeliion againft our faid late Lord the King,

within this Kingdom of England, traitoroufly to
levy and make, againt the Duty of thy Allegianee,
and againft the Peace of our faid late Lord the
King, and againft our Lord the King that now is,
therr Crown and Dignity, and againft the Form of
the Starutes 10 thar cafe made and provided, {Je.

Mr., Hampdzn. My Lord, I perceive that T am
here indited for a Faét, for which I was indifted
above two Years ago, and I was convitted of i,
and did fuffer Imprifonment, in Execution, upon
the Judgment that was given againft me, and am
ft1ll wnder Ixecution for the Fine that was fet up-
on me by way of Punifhment for that Fa&, [
think, my Lord, I baveas much to fay ia point
of Law for my fcif, as any Prifoner that ever came
before your Lordfhip upon fuch an account, twice
tried, twice convicted, and wwice punifhed for the
fame Ia&t, mult be very extraordinary 5 bur, my
Lord, Ido pafs by all Pleas whatloever, and cait
my felf wholly upon the King’s Mercy 5 that is my
Refolution, my Lord.

= L.C. 7. Then you nuft plead
Guilty or not Guilty.  DBut you fay
you have been tried twice for the fame
Fact; Were you ever tried for High-Treafon be-
fore? The very Punifhment that you alledge (o
be inflicted upon you for it, s a plain Proof thas
you were not tried for High-Trealon, for that is
not uiually punifhed by Fine and Imprifonment,

Mr. Hampden. My Lord, I only infinuate thae
the Fact is the fame,

L.C. 7. You muft plead Guiky or not Guiky.

Clerk. Are you Guilty or not Guilty of the
High-Trealon, whereof you ftand indicted, Fobr
Hampden ¢

L.C. 7. You muft plead direétly ; fay you are
Guilty, or you are not Guilty.

Mr. Hampden. My Lord, 1 do plead Guilty to
the fndiZment.

Wil your Lordfhip be plealed to hear me : My
Lord, I do contefs my Offence againft the King is
very great, 1 am very {orrowfol for 1it. My Lord,
I know the King is the Fountain of Mercy as well
as Jultice, an mcxhaullible Fountain of Mercy 4
and 1f I may be fo happy to obrain your Lord-
fhip’s Interceffion to his Majfty on my behalf, I
doubt riot but that Grace and Goodnefs which hath
been extended to cthers, may be beftowed upon
ne.

L. C. 7. Mr, Hampden, as the King is the Foun-
tain of Mercy, fo it comes fieely from him. 1 con-
fefs, as the Circumftances of your Cafe are, you
have pleaded the belt Plea to find Mercy ; but
how far the pleading guilcy, when there s full E-
vidence to prove you {o, may move the King to
have mercy upon you, I don’t know ; you muft
apply your {elf to the King, |

Mr. Hampden. T humbly beg your Lerdihip’s
Interceflion, I know none can do it better than your
Lordfhip,

L.C. 7. Youmuft record the Plza.

Mr., Hampden, My Lord, T humbly beg your
Lorafhip, that you would be pleafed to reprefent
to his Majefty what my paft Safferings have beer,
and how forrowful I amfor having offended his Ma-
jefty, and that your Lord(hip would be plealed to
beg his Majefty’s gracious Pardon in my behalf;
I humbly befeech your Lordihip to do it, and it

fhall

* Sir George
Jetleries.
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4 be the endeavour of all my Life to behave
my felf as dutiful and loyal 2 Subje¢t as any the

King hath.
L.C. 1.

what you fay. | o
Mr. Hampden. My Lord, there is one thing I

would humbly beg the Liberty lor; there are
Words in the Indi¢tment concerning the Death of
the King: my Lord, what conftruction the Law
may put upon fuch an Action, Iam ignorant of;
but for any direét Intention of taking away the
Life of the King, no Man does abominate and ab-
hor more than I have done.

L. C. ¥. Mr. Hampdeir, it 1s but a necefiary con-
ftruttion that the Law puis upon It, 1t 15 2 con-
rudtion confirmed by wotul Expertence. We fee
that Rebellion, let the beginning be what 1t wall,
never ftops, unlefs by God’s great Mercy and the
Juftice of the King’s Caufe, but it will end In
the Dearh of the King, 1t hath a natural Tenden-
cy that way: but however you are underftood
that you had not any thoughts of killing the King,
but only to raife Rebellion within the Kingdom,
which mult neceffarily end 1n the Death of the King,.

Mr. Hainpden, My Lord, no Man doth abhor
that more than I do.

L. C. 7. You may alk Mr. Hampdeu 1f he hath
any thing to fay why Sentence of Death fhould
not pafs upon him.

Clerk, Fobin Hampden hold up thy Hand, Thou
ftandeft convicted of Iigh-Treafon by your own
Confeflion, what can you fay for yourfelf why Sen-
tence thould not pafs upon you ?

Mr. Haipden. My Lord, I humbly calt my
felf upon the King’s Mercy. My Lord, I would
humbly move your Lordfhip in one thing, that
I may have the Liberty of my Friends and Re-
lations to come to me in Prifon as they did before,

L. C. ¥. You mult apply yourfelf to the King.

My, Hampden. Will your Lordfhip be pleafed
to order 1t, my Lord? I had two or three of my
own Relations the King was plealed to orant to
come to 1ne

L. C. 7. It 1s cafy for you, Mr. Hampder, to
make your Application to the King, it will be

etter for you: I dire& it as the better way to
appiy yourfelf to the King,

Mr. Hzinpden. Tonly beg it, my Lord.

L. C. 7. In the prefence of a Keeper I don’t

know why his Relations fhould not come to him ;

but I think it had been better to apply yourfelf

to the King,

Mr. Hainpden, My Lord, I have two or three
near Relations allowed to be without the Pre-
fence of a Keeper.

L. C.f. Mr. Hewmpden, that we cannot do, that
was an extraordinary Favour, and as that came
from the King, fo you muft apply your fIf to
the King again 3 but in the Prefence of a Keeper,
we grant it; we canpot grant it withouta Keep-
er, 1f you will apply your felf to the King for
that, you may,

Ciyer. Gentlemen of A2 /%fex; that have been
fummor’d upon the King’s Service this Day, the
Court difcharaes you,

Then after the Judges did withdraw, the Clerk
vas commanded to

Vor. 1V,
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The King fhall have an account of |
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Cl. Fobu Hampdon, hold up thy Hand. You
fland convitted of High-Treafon by your own
Confeflion, what can you fay for your felf, why
the Court fhould not pronounce Sentence upon
you ¢

Mr., Hampden. 1 only plead the King’s Mercy.
I rely upon no other thing, |

Cryer. O-Yes, all manner of Perfons are com-
manded to keep filence whilft Judgment is giving
upon pain of Imprifonment,

Mr. Recorcer *. Wiv, Haimpden, you
have been indited for High-Treafon,
and the Indi€tment hath been read to
you, and wherenpon, according as the Law doth
require, it hath been demanded of you, that you
fhould plead to1t, and thereupon you have plead-
ed Guiity to this Indi¢tmenr, which is recorded ac-
cordingly ;5 and therefore I need not fay any thing
for to let you know the heinoufnefs of this Crime,
for I perceive you are fenfible enough of it ysur
fclf, and I do verily believe you have taken a very
wife and diferect Courfe to confefs the Truth,
for you were brought hither to be tried for this
Crime, in cafe you had pleaded not Guilty to this
Indi¢tment, which now you have prevented by
this your candid Confeflion. However, it is the
Duty of my place to pronounce the Judgment thar
the Law hath provided for fuch Crimes as thefe
are, and that is this; |

* Sir Thomas
Jenner.

Tou muft be bad to the place from wwheunce yout
came, ond froin theace you wueff be drawn to the
Place of Exccution, end there you are to be bang’d
vy the Neck, and. whillt you are alive you muft be
cut dosony and your Entrails be teken ont, and burnt
befere you 3 and your Head mnft be cut off, and your
Body quartered, and your Head and your Quarters to
be difpofed of at the King’s pleafure, and the Lovd
have wercy upei your Soul.,

Mr. Hampdes. My Lord, I hope I fhall have
your Lordfhip’s Interceffion with his Majefty.

Mr. Recorder. 1 don’t doubt, Mr, Hampden,
but you have us’d the beft means to obtain fo
oreat 2 Favour ; and as it is the Duty of my place
to give an account of this to his Muefty, fo I
fhall truly and faichfully reprefent it with the

advantages your Demeanour this day hath de-
ferv’d.

Mr. Hampder. My Lord, I humbly beg the Fa-
vour that my Wife may come to me without the
prefence of a Keeper.

Mr. Recorder. Mr, Hampden, *us too late for usto
cive any direCtions in this Matter, becaufe you afk’d
this while the Judges were here 3 but I don’t doubt
upon your Application to his Majefty, but you
will have all things that you can reafonably de-
ire, if you pleale to apply your {elf to him for
this, and what elfe you fhall be advifed may be fit-

ting and convenient for you to beg,

His abjet Submiffion did indeed procure him a
Pardon ; but the Shame of {uch a mean Behavi-
our fo {unk and difordered his Spirits, that he was
never quite right after 1t, and about ten Years
after he cur his own Throut,

E e The
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139. T7ial of Henry Lord Delamere,
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CXXXIX. The Trial of HENRY Lord DrvLamere ™, before the Lords at
Weftminfter, for High-Treafon, Jan. 14, 1685. 1 Jac. 1L

y Erjeant at Arms, make Proclama-
tion,

x  Serj. at Arirs, O-Yes, O-Yes,
| w__¥ O-Yes. My Lord High Stew-
ard of England his Grace doth ftraitly charge and
command all manner of Perfons to keep filence, and
to give ear to the King’s Majefty’s Commiflion to
his Grace my Lord High Steward of England, upon

pain of Imprifonment.
Then the Commiffion was read, his Grace, and

oll the Peers flanding up bare-beaded,

Then the Staff being cariied berween Garter King
at Arms, and the Gentleman-Tither of the Black
Rod, was with thiee Reverences deliver’d upon the
Fuce 1o his Grace, and by bim re-delivered to the
Gentleman-Uther of the Black Rod, #e beld during
the Service,

Cl, of Cr. Serjeant at Arms, make Proclamation.

Serj. at Arms. O-Yes! His Grace my Lord High
Steward of Euglond doth {traitly charee and com-
mand all manner of perfons here prefent, except
Peers, Privy Counfellors, and the reverend Judges
now affiftant, to be uncovered,

Cl. of Cr. Make Proclamation,

Cloof Cr. g

Sery. at drms, O-Yes! My Lord High Steward |

of Eungland us Grace ftraitly chargeth and com-
mandeth all Juftices, Commiffioners, and all and
every other perfon and perfons to whom any Writ
or Precept has been directed, for the certifying of
any Indictment or Record before his Grace my
Lord High Steward of England, that they do cer-
tify and bring 1n the fame forthwith, according to
the Tenor of the fame Writ and Precept, to them
or any of them directed, upon Pain and Peril fhall
fall thereon.
Then S Ldward Lutwyche, one of bis Ma-
Jefty's Serjeants at Latw, and Chief Fuftice of
Chelter, delivered iz bis IVvit and Return at
the Clerks Table.
The Writ of Certiorari and the Returs thereof
were read In haec verba,
) * L. H. Stezeard. Call the Lieutenant
Lag’“’f;g.:ﬂﬂs‘ of the Tower to return his Precept, and
bring his Prifoner to the Bar,

Cl. of Cr. Make Proclamation.

Seif. at Arms, Lieutenant of the Tower of Lox-
don, return thy Writ and Precepr to thee direted,
together with the Body of Henry Baron of Dele-
mere, thy Prifoner, forchwith, upon Pain and Peril
fhall fall thereon, |

The Prifoner was brought to the Bar by the
Licutenant of the Tower : the IVvit and Re-
urn thereof, logether with khis Grace’s Pre-
cepty and the Return thereof swere read in
hac verba. o

CL of. Cr. Make Proclamation.

. oerj. at dris. St Roger Harfuet Knight, Serjeant
at Arms to our Sovereign Lord the King, return
the Precept to thee directed, together with the
Names of all the Lords and Noblemen of this

* Burnet's Hif, Oaen Timesy Vol 1. p. 668.
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Realm of Eugland, Peers of Henry Baron of Dela-
mere, by thee fummoned, forthwith, upon Pain and
Peril thall fall thereon,
The Serjeant of Arms delivered in bis Preceps
and Returir at the Clerks Tabk.,
L. H. Stewaid, Read the Precept and the Re-

turn,
They were read in hac verba.,

Cl. of Cr. Make an O-Yes.

Serf. At. Arms. O-Yes | All Dukes, Earls, Vif-
counts, and Barons of this Realm of Eugland, Peers
of Henry Baron of Delamere, who, by Command-

ment of my Lord High Steward of Eugland his
Grace, were fummoned to appear here this Day,

and are now prefent in Court, anfwer to your names,
upon Pamn and Peril will fall thereon.

The Pecrs fuininoned were called overy and thofe
that appeared, flending up uncovered, ai-
fwered to their Nawes, cach making a Reve-
rence to the Lord High Steward.

Cl. of Cr. Laurence Earl of Rochefier, Lord High
Treafurer of Englapd,

L. H, Treaf. Here,

Cl. of Cr. Robert Earl of Sunderland, L.ord Prefi-
dent of his Majefty’s Privy Council,

Lord Prefid. Here.

C!. of Cr. Henry Duke of Norfolk, Earl Marfhal
of Engicnd.

D. ¢f Norf. Here.

Cl. of Cr. Fames Duke of Ormond, Lord Steward
of his Muyefty’s Houfhold.

He did not appear

Cl. of Cr. Charles Duke of Somerfes.
D. of Som. Here,
Clof Cr. Chriftopher Duke of Albemarle.

He did a0t appear.

Cl of Cr. Henry Duke of Grafion,

D. of Graft. Here.

Cl.of Cr. Henry Duke of Beanfort, Lord Prefi-
dent of Hales.

D. of Beanf. Here.

Cloof Cr. Ffobn Larl of Mulprave, Lord Cham-
berlain of his Majelty’s Houfhold.

E. of Mulp, Here,

Cl.of Cr. Aubery Earl of Oxford.

L. of Oxf. Here.

CL of Cr. Charles Earl of Shrewsbury.

E. of Shrew/. Here.

Cl. of Cr. Theophilus Farl of Huutingdon.

E. of Hunt, Here,

Cl. of Cr. Thomas Earl of Pemlroke,

E. of Peinb. Here,

Cl. of Cr. Fobn Earl of Bridgwater.

E. of Bridg. Here.

Cl. of Cr. Henry Barl of Peterborow.

E. of Peterh. Here,

Cl. of Cr. Robert Earl of Scarfdale,

L. of Scarfd. Here.

Cl, of Cr. Williain Earl of Crazven,

E. of Craven, Here.
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Cl, of Cr. Richard Earl of Burliugton,

. He did not appear. :
Cl of Cr. Louis Earl of Feverfoam.

E. of Feverfh. Here.
Cl. 't:} Cr. George Earl of Berkeley.

E. of Berk, Here. _
Cl. of Cr. Daniel Earl of Nottinghaimn.

E. of Notting. Here.,

Cl, of Cr. Thoinas Earl of Plymouth.

E. of Plym. Here.

Cl. of Cr. Thomas Vi{count Falconberg.

L. Falconberg. Here.

Cl. of Cr. Francis Vilcount Newport, Treafurer
of his Majefty’s Houfhold.,

L. Newport. Here,

Cl. of Cr. Robert Lord Ferrers.

L. Ferrers, Here.

Cl, of Cr. Vere Effex Lord Cromwell,

L. Cromwell. Here.

Cl. of Cr. William Lord Mayiard Comptroller of
his Majefty’s Houfhold,

L. Maynard. Here.

Cl. of Cr. George Lord Dartinouth, Malter-Gene-
ral of his Majefty’s Ordnance.

L., Dartsronth.  Here.

Cl. of Cr. Siduey Lord Godolphin.

1. Godolphin. Here.

Cl of Cr. Fobn Lord Churcoill,

L. Churchil], Here.

Then bis Grace the Lord High Steward addreffed
bimfelf to the Lord Delamere the Prifoner
al the Bar in this manner.

L. H. Steward. My Lord Delamere, the King
being acquainted that you ftand accufed of High-
Treafon, not by common Report or Hearfay, but
by a Bill of Indiétment found againit you by Gen-
tlemen of great Quality, and known Integrity
within the County Palatine of Chefer, the place of
your Refidence ; has thought it neceflary in Tender-
nefs to you, as well as Juftice to himielf, to order
you a {peedy Trial.

My Lord, if you know your felf innocent, in the
name of God do not defpond, for you may be
affured of a fair and patient hearing, and in your
proper time a free Liberty to make your full De-
fence: and I am fure you cannot but be well con-
vinced, that my Noble Lords that are here your
Peers to try you, will be as defirous and ready to
acquit you, if you appear to be innocent, as they
will to conviét you if you be guilty.

But, my Lord, if you are confcious to your
. {elt that you are guilty of this heinous Crime, give
Glory to God, make amends to his Vicegerent
the King, by a platn and full difcovery of your Guilt,
and donot, by an obftinate perfifting in the Denial
of it, provoke the juflt Indignation of your Prince,
who has made 1t appear to the World, that his In-
clinations are rather to fthew Mercy than inflic
Punithments, My Lord, attend with patience, and
hear the Bill of Indi¢tment that hath been found
acain{t you read. Read the Bill of Indi€ment to
my Lord.

CL of Cr. Henry Baron of Delamere, hold up thy
Hand.

L. Delgiizre. My Lord, I humbly beg your
G{acc would pleafe to anfwer me one Queftion,
Whether a Peer of Euglend be obliged by the Laws
of tius Land to hold up his Hand at the Bar, as
a Commoner muft do; and I afk your Grace this
queftion the rather, becaufe in my Lord Staffords
Cafe 1t was allowed to be the Privilege of the Peers

not to hold up their Flands,
Vor, IV.

 for High-Treafon.

" L. H Steward, My Lords, this being a matter
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of the Privilege of the Peerage; it is not fit for
me to determine it one way or the other; but I
think I may acquaint your Lordfhips, that in point
of Law, if you are fatisfied this is the Perfon in--
di€ted, the holding, or not holding, up of the Hand
is but 2 Formality, which does not fignify much
either way. -

L. Delamere. I humbly pray your Grace’s di-
retion in one thing farther; whether I muft addrefs
my felf to your Grace when I would fpeak, or to
your Grace with the reft of thefe noble Lords my
Peers.

L. H. Steward. You muit direct what you have
to fay to me, my Lord.

L. Delamere. 1 beg your Grace would pleafe to
fatisfy me, whether your Grace be one of my Judges
1n concurrence with the reft of the Lords? -

L. H. Steward, No, my Lord, Tam Judge of the
Court, but I am none of your Triers, Goon.

Cl. of Cr. Enry Baron of Delainere, thou ftandeft
indifted i1n the County Palatine of
Chefter by the Name of Hemry Baron of Delaincie
of Mere in the faid County of Chgfler, for that
thou as a falfe Traitor againft the moft illuftrious
and moft excellent Prince Faiies the Second, by
the Grace of God of Euglend, Scotland, Fronce
and Ireland, King, thy nateral Lord, not having
the Fear of God in thy Heart, nor weighing the
Duty of thy Allegiance, but being moved and fe-
duced by the Inftigation of the Devil, the cordial
Love, and true, due, and natural Obedience which
a true and faithful Subject of our faid late Lord the
King, towards him our faid Lord the King, fhould
and of right ought to bear, wholly withdrawing ;
and contriving, practifing, and with all thy might
intending the Peace and common Tranquillity of
this Kingdom of Eugland to difquiet, moleft, and
difturb; and War and Rebellion againft our faid
Lord the King, within this Kingdom of Englend,
to {tir up, move, and procure, and the Govern-
ment of our {aid Lord the King of this Kingdom
of England to {ubvert, change and alter, and our
faid Lord the King from the Title, Honour, and
Kingly Name of the Impertal Crown of his King-
dom of England to depofe and deprive, and our
faid Lord the King to Death and final Deflruétion
to bring and put; the fourteenth day of Apri/ in
the firlt Year of the Reign of our faid Lord Fanes
the Second now King of Eugland, &c. and divers
other Days and Times as well before as after, at
Mere in the County of Chefier aforefaid, fallly,
malicioufly, devilithly, and traitoroufly, with divers
other falfe Traitors and Rebels, to the Jurors un-
known, didft confpire, compafs, imagine, and in-
tend our faid Lord the King, thy fupreme, true
and natural Lord, not only from the Kingly State,
Title, Power, and Government of his Kingdom
of Englend to deprive and caft down, but alfo the
fame our Lord the King to kill, and to death to
bring and put, and the antient Government of
this Kingdom of Englsad to change, alter and
wholly to fubvert, and a miferable Slaughter among
the Subjects of our faid Lord the King throughout
his whole Kingdom of Exglead to caufe and procure,
and Infurreftion and Rebellion againtt our faid Lord
the King within this Kingdom of England to pro-
cure and affift ; and the fame thy moft wicked,
moft impious and devilifh Treafons and traitorous
Compaflings, Imaginations and Purpolfes aforefaid
to fulfil and bring to effet, thou the faid Hanry
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Baron of Delaimere, a5 a falfe Traitor, thén a[}d
there, to wit, the {aid fourteenth day of Apré/ in
the firft Year abovefuaid, and divers other days and
times as well before as after, at Mere aforefaid, in
the County aforefaid, falfely, unlawfully, wickedly,
and traitoroully with Gharles Gerrard, Efg; and
other falfe Traitors to the Jurors unknown, did{t
aflemblé thy felf, gather together, confult and
agree to faife and procure divers great Sums of
Money, and a great number of armed Men, War
and Rebellion within this Kingdom of England o
levy and make, and the City of Ghefer in the
County of the fame City, as alfo the Caftle of out
faid Lord the King of Ghefler, at Chefler 1n the
County of Chefter aforefaid, and all the Magazines
in the fame Caftle theh being, to énter, take, {elze,
and furprize, and into thy Pofleffion and Power to
obtain : And that thou the faid Henry Baron of De-
lamere afterwards, to wit, the 27¢h day of Aay,
in the firlt Year abovefaid, fallely, unlawfully,
wickedly, and traitoroufly didft take a Journey
from the City of Lendon unto Mere aforefaid, in
the County of Cheffer aforefaid, thy traitorous Pur-
pofes aforefid to fulfil and perfe® : And that thou
the faid Henry Baron of Delasiere, alterwards, to
wit, the fourth day of Fwwe, in the firflt Year
abovefaid, at Mere aforefaid, in the County of
Chefter aforefaid, in further Profecution of thy un-
lawful, moft wicked and traitorous Purpofes afore-
faid, divers Liege People and Subjets of our faid
Lord the King, to the Jurors unknown, with thee
the faid Henry Baron of Delainere, and the aforefaid
other falfe Traitors to the Jurors unknown, fally,
unlawfully, and traitoroufly, in the War and Re-
bellion aforefaid, and in thy traitorous purpofes
aforefaid, to join and adhere didft excite, animate,
and perfuade, againt the Duty of thy Allegiance,
again{t the Peace of our faid Lord the King
that now 15, his Crown and Dignity, and againft
the Form of the Statute in that cale made and
provided, How fay’ft thou Henry Baron of De-
lamére, art thou Guilty of this High-Treafon
whereof thou ftandeft indifted, and haft been now
arraign’d, or not Guilty 2

L. Delamere. My Lord, I humbly beg the In-
dictment may be read again.

L. H, §leward, Let it be read again.

[ hich was doie,

L. Delainere. May it pleafe your Grace, I hum-
bly beg the favour to be heard a few Words before
I plead to this Indiétment,

L. H, §teward, My Lord Delamere, 1am very
unwilling to give your Lordthip any Interruption,
but according to the Methods of Law, which muft
be obferved in your Cafe, as well as all others, you
muft plead to the Indictment before you be heard
to any thing elfe.

L. Delarsere. May it pleafe your Grace, I have
fomething to offer to your Grace’s and their Lord-
fhip’s Confideration which is a matter of Law.

L. H. Steward. 1 know not what matter of Law
you have to offer : If you have a mind to demur
to the Indictment, you may.

L. Delamere. Wil your Grace pleafe to hear
what I have ro fay ? And then I fhall fubmit it to
your Grace’s Judgment.

L. 11, Steward. 1 would hear what you have to
fay, my Lord, with all my heart, If I could : But
L mult then pafs by all the Forms and ufual Me-
thods of proceeding, and that without any advan-
tage to you tao, and that I fuppofe your Lordfhip

will not defire of me.  Afk my Lord, whether he
be guilry, or not auilty ?
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Cl.of Cr. How lay’ft thou, Henry Baron of De-
Jamere, att thou guilty of this High-Treafon where-
of thou kaft been indicted, or not guilty ¢

L. Delamere. 1 befeech your Grave to hear me
what I have to'fay 3 I fhall not detain your Grace
very long, but I beg your Grace to hear me,

L. H. Stewerd. My Lord Délasere, 1 muft keep
you to the known Rules and Methods of Law -
This is not your time to {peak, but 1o plead ; in your
proper time you fhall be fully heartl whatloever you
have to fay.

L. Delamere. If your Grace pleafe, I have fome-
thing to fay which concerns all the Peers of Lng-
lend in point of Right. -

L. H. §teward. My Lord, you mutt cither plead,
or demur to this Indi&ment, that is the ufual Pra-
&ice before any thing elfe can be done,

L. Delamere, My Lord, I have a Plea to offer
to your Grace and my Lords 3 and it is with refe-
rence to the Privilege and Right of the Peers of
England.

L. H. §teward. 1f you have any Plea to offer, it
muft be reccived, my Lord.

L. Deleinere. My Lord, amidft the Hardfhips I

have lain under by my frequent Imprifonmeats and
clofe Confinement -

L. H. Steward. My Lord Delamere, you muft
keep up to the Legal Method of Proceedings : In
Cafes of this nature I would, as far as is poflible for
me to do, indulge a Perfon of your Quality, and
in your Condition 3 but withal I muft do right to
the Court, and not pertiut any Breach to be made
upon the legal Courfe of Proceedings.  You muft
plead, or demur to the Indiétment, before you are
heard to fay any thing,

L. Diamere. Will your Grace be pleafed to hear
me tell you my Reafons why I offer you a Plea of
this nature to the Indictment,

L. H, Steward. My Lord, if you have any Plea,
put 1t in,

L. Delainere. Will your Grace be pleas’d to ac-
cept it as [ have done it ? It may be it is not fo for-
mal, becaufe I have had no Counfel allowed me to
perufe and fign t. Butasit is, I here offer it to
your Grace’s Confideration,

L. H, Steward, Ay, put it in.

(Then it was delivered 1o the Clerf.

L, H. Steward. Read it.

Cl, of Cr. The bumble Plea of Henry Lord Delamere,
to the Indiftment of High-Treafon againft bim, now
1o be iried by the Lord High Steward and Peers here

affembled.

HE faid Lord Delamere, faving to hithfelf all

benefit of Advantage of any further or other
matter of Exception to the Generality, Incertainty,
or Infufficience of the faid Indi€ment, and all mat-
ters and things which do or may concern the fame,
for Plea hereunto faith,

That he was by His Majefty’s Writ fummoned
to this prefent Parliament, which began the Nine-
teenth Day of May laft, and attended his Duty
there as a Pcer of this Realm. .

That for High-Treafon fuppofed to be committed
by him, during the Sitting of the fame Parliament,
he was the Twenty-fixth Day of Fuly laft, com-
mitted, by Warrant of the Earl of Sunderland, one
of his Majefty’s Principal Secretaries of State, to
the Tower of London. -

That the Peers in Parliament affembled, taking
notice by his Petition of the Ninth of November

laft, of his being abfent from -his Attendance in Par-
liament, fenta Meflage to his Muajelty to know the

Reafon
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.fon why he the faid Henry Lﬂl‘f:i Delamere, a
]15211:0;} t]wnat?r Houfe, was abfent from his Attendance
dw{%an the Tenth Day of November laft, the Lord
Treafurer reported his Majefty’s Anfwer to the faid
Meflage, viz. That the faid Lord Delamere was ab-
fent from his Attendance in Parliament, becaufe_he
ftood committed for High-Treafon; for levying
War againft the King this laft Summer, teftified
upon Oath, and that his Majefty had given Diretti-
ons that he fhould be proceeded agawit with all
fpeed according, to Law. ' R

The Houfe of Peers not being fatisfied with this
Anfwer, the Debate thereof wis adjourn’d till the
Monday Morning following '

On which Day the Lords rcfummg_tbe Debate
concerning the Lord Delamere and the King’s Mei-
fage; after fome Debate, the Lord Chancellor by
his Majefty’s Command, gave the Houfe an Ac-
count what Proceedings had been againft the Lord
Dzlamere fince his Majefty’s Anfwer to their Addrefs
concerning his abfence from the Houlfe ; which was
to this Effect :

That the King had given Order for 2 {peedy Pro-
{ecution of him: That the Treafon whereof he was
accufed was committed in Chefbire 5 and that being
a County Palatine, the Profecution ought to be
there, and not in the King’s-Bench ; as 1t might be
if the Treafon had been committed in another Coun-
ty : and that therefore his Majefty had given Order
for 2 Commiffion of Oyer and Termmner 1nto Chefbire,
in order to the finding of an Indi&tment againft him
for the faid Treafon, And that accordingly a Com-
million of Oyer and Terminer was already f{ealed 3
and if the Inditment be not found before the End
of the Term, the faid Lord Delamere’s Prayerbeing
entred in the King’s-Bench, he fhould be bailed.

All which Proceedings do more fully appear in
the Journals of the faid Foufe of Peers; to which
the faid Henry Lord Delamere doth refer himfelf,

Afterwards, that is to fay, upon the
Day of the faid Parliament was proro-
gued by his Majefty unto the Tenth Day of Febru-
ary next, as by the faid Journals it doth appear.

Upon all which Matters the faid Henry Lord De-
lamere doth humbly tender this his Plea to the Jurif-
dition of your Lordfhips in this Caufe, and doth
humbly conceive your Lordfhips ought not to pro-
ceed in the Trial of *him uwpon the IndiGtment of
High-Treafon now before you: And that for thefe
following Reafons.

Firft, Inalmuch as it appears by the faid Petition
of the faid Henry Lord Delamerz, and the feveral
Orders of the Lords, and the King’s Anfwer to the
Meflage of the Lords thereupon, That the faid
Houfe are already poffefled of his faid Caufe, which
is the fame fuppofed Treafon for which he was at
firlt committed, and which is the fame Treafon for
which he now ftands indicled before your Lordfhips.
And for this Reafon, your Lordfhips, ashe hum-
bly conceives, by the Law and Cuftom of Parlia-
ment, which 1s part of the Law and Cuftom of the
Land, ought not to proceed againft'him upon the
faid Indictment; bur his faid Caufe oughe wholly to
be determined and adjudged in the faid Houfe of
Peers, and not elfewhere, as in like Cafes has been
former]y done_

Secoinaly, Wheress it is the Right and Privilege of
the Peerage of this Realm, That no Peer thereof
ought to be tried or proceeded againft-for High-
Treafon during the Continuance of the Parliament,

except in the faid Houfe of Peers, and before the
whole Body of the Peeis there: And, “whereas the

I for High-Treafon,
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aforefaid Parliament is noi¥ cont inising by Proroga
tion, until the Tenth Day of Pebrrary next above-

faid, the faid Hemry Lord Delamere humbly con-

ceives that by the Law and Cuftom of Parliament
hitherto ufed, which is Part of the Law and Cuftom

of the Realm, he ouglit not, nor can be tried before
your Lordfhips for the faid Treafons, becaufe the
{aid Parliment is {hill continuing, and not diffolved.

And laftly, The faid fenry Lord Delainere doth
further fay, That he is the fame Hewry Lord Dela-
mere mentioned 1n the Commitment, Petitions,
Meflages, Anfwers and Indi&ment now read unto
him, and the faid Treafon for which he was com-
mitted, it is the fame ‘T'reafon mentioned in the Com-
mitment, Petition, Meflages, Anfwers, and Inditt-
ment, as aforefdid.

To which fad Inditment he humbly conceives
he is not bound by Law te make any further or o-
ther Anfwer.

L. Delamere. May it pleafe your Grace, and you
my Noble Lords, Ido not offer this Plea .out of
any Diffidence or Diftroft in my Caufe, nor.out of
any Diflike I have to any of your Lordfhips that are
here fummoned to be my Triers; I cannot hope
to ftand before any more juft and noble, nor canl
wifh to ftand before any others: but your Grace,
and my Lords will pardon me if 1infift upon i,
becaule Iapprehend ata Right and Privilege due to
all the Peerage of Englend ; swhich, as it 1s againfl the
Duty of every Peer to betray or forego, fo it is notin
the power of any one, Or more, to wave it,«or give
1t up without the Confent of the whole Botly of the
Peers, every one of them :being equally interefted.

This, my Lord, I humbly demand as my Right
and Privilege as a Peer of Zngland, and {fubmit to
the Direction of your Grace and my Noble Lords.

L. H, Steward, What fay you to it, Mr. Ar-
torney ¢

Mr. Atorney *. May it pleafe your
Grace, This Plea that 1s here offered
by this Noble Lord, 1s a Plez to the
Jurifdiétion ; ‘but, with Submiffion, it needs very
Jittle Anfwer, for it has very little in it: The Force
of the Plea 1s, That he ought to be tried by the
whole Body of the Houfe of Peers in Parliament,
becaufethe Parliament is'{till continuing, being un-
der a Prorogation, and not diffolved 5 and becaufe
there was fome agitation -of the Matter concerning
this Profecution, upon this Petition, in the Houfe
of Lords ; and therefore it concludes, That he .onght
not to be tried by your Graceand. thefe Noble Lords
upon this Commiffion, but by all the Lords in Par-
llament, With fubmiffion, -my Lord, -this is-con-
trary to all the antient ‘Precedents, and againft the
known Rules of Law ; for the Law is, if the King
pleafes to try a Peer in Parliament, then the Re-
cord may be -brought into the Houf¢, and there
they proceed as in other Cafes, and all the Peersare
Judges. Thusit is in the time-of a Seffion-of Par-
liament; but if the Parhament be prorogued,
there are many Inftances (and indeed none to -the
contrary) that after a ‘Prorogation, the Proceed-
ings are before the High-Steward by -Commiffion.
And as to'the other part of the Cafe, I have this to
fay to it, that there is nothing at all depending in
the Houfe of Lords that-can ouft this Court of the
Jurifdi&tion ; for there was not fo much asany In-
diétment return’d there, no, ner fo much as found
during the Seffion of Parliament. All the Agita-
tion was only upon my Lord’s Petition, and the
King’s Anfwer; that he intended as fpeedy a Pro-

{ecution as could be: Befides, my Lord, your
Grace fees 1t1s o Pleain Paper and in Englifh, with-

our

* Sir Roberr

Sawyer.



214
out any Counfel’s Hand, and therefore 1 hope your
. Grace does not expet that I fhould formally demur
to a Plea in this Form, and that contains no more
of Subftance init. But I muft defire your Grace to
over-rule it, and that the Prifoner may plead 1n
chief, |
L. Delamere. My Lord, I humbly pray that 1
may have Counfel affign’d me, to put my Plea into
Form, and to argue the matter of it.

L. H. Stewerd. My Lord Delamere, 1am fm:e
I ought, and ever fhall be as tender of the Pri-
.vileges of the Peers of Eugland, as any other
Perfon whatfoever: For I am concerned, as
-well in Intereft as Inclination o to be, having the
Honour to be one myfelf: Bur 1 know your
Lordfhip will not think the Privilege of the
Peers is concern’d in this matter; nor will your
Lordihip, I dare fay, infift upon matters that are
purely dilatory, if your Lordfhip be fatisfied that
they are fo: And therefore give me leave, my
Lord, to mind you of a few things, whereby your
Lordfhip will eafily fee, that the chief thungs on
which you infift, are grounded upon Miftalkes.
Firft, you fay, the Houfe of Peers was poffefs’d of
the Caufe ; which could not be, and I will tell you
why; becaufe there was no Indiftment ever re-
moved thither, or lodg’d there: which plainly
proves that the Lords were never poflefs’d of the
Caufe, Nor indeed was the Bill found, upon which
youare now arraigned, till after the Prorogation of
the Parliament, So that they could never come to
be poflefs’d of this matter, Thefe are Miftakes in
point of Fa&, and your Lordfhip cannot but well
know them to be fo.

And there 1s a great Miftake 1n the Law, that
during the continvance of a Parliament (tho’ it
were prorogued, yet if not diffolved) a Peer can-
not be tried but by the Houfe of Lords. This cer-
tainly is a very ftrange Doctrine, and is not only a-
axinft the reafon and methods of Law, but contrary
even to your Lordfhip’s own Experience : For your
Lordfhip cannot but very well remember, that du-
ring the continuance of the Parliament, aftera Pro-
.. Yogation, the Lord Corirwallis *, was

7T tried before the High Steward, and
fuch a number of Peers as were then {fummoned,
upon fuch a Commiflion as I now fit here by. But
indeed during the Sitting of the Parliament, then
all the Peers are both Triersand Judges, as was in
the Cales of my Lord Siafford *, and
my Lord of Pembreke T35 they being
a Court of Judicature, then altually
fitting : and therefore this Plea is grounded as upon
miftake in Fa&, fo upon a miftake in point of Law,
So that though as I faid ac firft, 1t1s both my Du-
ty and Intereft to preferve the Privileges of the
Peers, yet T muft take care that no Injury be done
to the Law, and truly T take this Plea to be altoge-
ther dilatory, and I fuppofe your Lordfhip is fatis-
fied of it, and will not infift upon it.

L. Delamere. I your Grace pleafe, it was alledg’d
and agreed in the Cafe of my Lord of Briffel; that
the Caufe of 2 Peer in time of Parliament properly
belong’d only to the Houfe of Lords; and that
which poflefs’d the Houfe of Lords of his Cafe,
was, as Iapprehend, no more than is in my Cafe, a
Petition upon the account of being abfent ; and
there the Lords claim the Cognizance of the whole
Caufe, and nothing was done but in the Houfe of

Lords, And as to the Inftances your Grace has
I
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mention’d of my Lord Cornwallis (and there was

another of them, my Lord. Morley |j) this Queftion

was never under Debate in thole Cafes ;5 therefore T

fuppole they cannot be admitted as Precedents.

L. H. Steward. But, my Lord, it would have
been an Error inthe whole Proceedings, if this
Court had not Juri{dittion : And fure the Judge:
who are always call’d to affift 1 fuch Cafes 3 and

who, in Matrers of Life, even in the Cafes of com-

mon Perfons, are {o tender and careful, that there

‘be no Irregularity 1n the Proceedings, would not

have let things pals mn that manner, had they been
€rroneous.

L. Delainere. My Lord, I think no other Prece-
dents are produced bur thofe two, and there the
Queftion was never debated. |

L. H. Steward 1 only put you in mind of thofe
that were lately within Memory 5 but no queftion
of 1t there are a great many more Inftances to be
given,

Mr. 4t. Gen. 1 pray your Grace’s Judgment to
over-rule the Plea, and that my Lord may plead in
chief,

L. Dilamere. 1 hope your Grace will be pleas’d to
aflign me Counfel to put my Plea in Form 4 and
that T may have time for it, that they may be heard
to make a folemn Argument in Law. |

L. H. Steward. My Lord, if you infift upon it
and think it worth the while to have Counfel heard
we will hear them.

L. D:lemere. 1 fubmit 1t to your Grace, I only
offer it that I may not be wanting to the fupport of
the Peers Privileges 5 I afiure your Grace, 1 fpeak
not to put off the Caufe, for Iam willing to come
to my Trial, and I have reafon fo to be, for I
queftion not but to make my Innocence appear.

L. H. Stezzard, My Lord, Itell you what my o-
pinion of the Plea 1s, but if you 1nfift upon it to have
your Counfc! heard, T will hear them.

L. D:lasere. T have no Counfel here, if your
Grace pleafe to give me time to fend for them, and
that they may prepare to argue it.

Mr. A:. Gen. No, my Lord, 1f your Grace will
hear Counfel, Ifor the King muft pray that it may
be done prefently ; for a Plea to the Jurifdiftion is
never favoured, nor is the Party to be allow’d time
to maintain it, but he muft be ready at the time it is
offer’d.

L. D:lamere. Pray, my Lord, how was it done
in the Cafe of Fitzbarris *¢ Ths Plea
was a Plea to the Juri{diction, and he frial 102.
had four Days allow’d him to put his Plea in form,
and to inftruct his Counfel.

L. H. Steward, 1 am not able at prefent to re-
member what was done i fuch or fuch a particular
Cale : Bur according to the general Method and
Courfe of Law, the Plea to the Jurifdiftion is not
favoured, nor time allowed to ir, but the Party
muft be ready to maintain it prefently,

Mr. At, Gen. But, with fubmiffion, my Lord,
that Cafe of Fitzhariis is nothing to this noble
Lord’s Cafe neither : There was a formal Plea put
in Writing, and drawn up in Lefiz, and a formal
Demurrer joined ; and thereupon I did rake time to
fpeak to 1. Bur, with your Grace’s favour, hy
the Law, the Prifoner mult be always ready to
make good his Plea, if he will ouft the Court of
thetr Jurifdittion.

L. H. Steward, Nr. Aitorney, if my Lord De-
lamere does Infift upon having his Counfel heard, it
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s not fit for me to refufe hearing what they can

fay.
ayMr.. At. Gen. But that muft be prefently then,

Lord. *
m)}_’. Delamere. It is my Duty, my Lord, to fub-

) vhat vour Grace and my noble Lords fhall
:lneltte;;;ng: %, would infift upon nothing that fhould
offend your Grace or them.,

Mr. 4t Gen. If your Grace pleales, you are the
only Judge in this Cafe in Matters of Law: For
thefe noble Lords, the Peers, are only Triers of
the Fa. Therefore I appeal to your Grace’s
Judgment, and pray for the King, that this Plea
may be over-ruled ; it being vitious and naugh,
both in Form and Subftance,

L. H. Steward. My Lord Delainere, I mult ac-
quaint you, that according to the Conftitution of
this Court, Matters of Law are determined by me,
as the fole Judge, while I have the Honour to act

under this Commifiion: But if your Lordfhip in-

{ift upon it, to have your Counfel hear_d, God for-
bid that I fhould deny it you. I will hear what
your Counfel will fay 5 and afterwards I will, ac-
cording to the beft of my Underftanding, deliver

my Judgment,

L. Delamere. My Lord, I have never had any
Counfel affigned mc.

L. H. Steward. My Lord, if you have any
Counfe! ready, we will hear them.

L. Delamere. If your Grace pleale to affign me
Counfel, and give me time to fend for them, and
them time to prepare, I will obey your Grace’s
Direétions 3 but I could have none here ready, be-
caufe none were afligned me.

L. H. Stewerd, My Lord, you cannot, by the -

Courfe of Law, have Counfel allowed you in the
Cafe of a Capital Crime, till fuch time as the
Court, where you are called to anfwer, s apprized
that there is fome matter of Law tn your Cafe, that
may need Counfel to be heard, to inform their
Judgment, and which they may think convenient
to hear Counfel to: For if in cafe any Prifoner at
the Bar fhall before-hand be allowed to have Coun-
fel to ftart frivolous Objections, fuch as this (and
we all know, that there are fome, who will be
ealily prevailed with to endeavour to pick holes
where there are none) and to offer Matters foreign
from the things whereof the Party ftands accufed ;
and upon the Prifoner’s bare Requeft, Counfel muft
be heard to every trivial Point, the Courts of Law
would never be at an end in any Tmal 3 but fome
dilztory Matter or other would be found to retard
the Proceedings: But it does not confift with the
Grandeur of the Court, nor your Lordfhip’s In-
tereft, tolet fuch a frivolous Plea interrupt your
Lordfhip’s Trial.  However, if your Lordthip has
Counfel rexdy, I will not refufe to hear them.

L. Dilginere, My Lord, I hope the Privilege of
the Peers of Exglend, is not irivolous. I affure
vour Grace, I do not ofter this matter, as if I
thought it more conducing to my Intereft; than
my Trial now. No, my Lord, it is not for my
iclf, but for the whole Body of Peers, of which I
have the Honour to he a Member: And if my
Lords bere are fatisGed it is not the Rightand Privi-
lege of the Pecis, 1 acquielce,

L. . Stezpard. Pray, geod my Lord, do not
think that [ fhould {ay any fuch thing, that the
Yrivilege of the Peers is frivolous; for you do not
hear me fay, ‘That this is one of their Privileges.
As I vould not willingly miftake you, fo I defire
vour Lordfhip would not mifapprehend or mifre-

1
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prefent me. I fpoke not at all. of the Peers Privi-
lege, but of your Plea: Irtell your Lordfhip, I
think your Plea is not a_pood Plea, to ouft this
Court of the Jurifdi¢tion of your Caufe. But if
your Lordfhip have a mird to have your Counfel
heard to 1t, in God’s Name let them come ; they
fhall be heard: And when that 1s done, to fatisfy
you the more, I will advife with my Lords the
Judges, that are there to aflift, what theéy tike to
be the Law in the Cafe; and, upon the whole, I
will deliver my Judgment as well as 1 can.

L. Delamere. 1 hope your Grace will be pleas’d
to advife with my Lords the Peers here prefent ; it
being upon a Point of Privilege.-

L. H. Steward. Good my Lord, I hope you that
are a Prifoner at the Bar, are not to give me Di-
rection, who I thould advife with, or how I fhould
demean my felf here.

L. Delemere. 1 beg your Grace’s Pardon ; I did
not intend to give your Grace any. Direétion.

L. H. §tewerd. My Lord, 1 fhall take care to
perform that Daty that is incumbent upon me, and
that with all Tendernefs to your Lordfhip: And,
I affure your Lordfhip, I will have as much care
that I do not injure you, as I will that I do not
wrong my own Confcience ; and I will endeavour to
difcharge my Duty to both, with the utmoft Fidelity,

L. Delemere. 1 humbly thank your Grace; I
queftion 1t not: But if your Grace pleafe

L. H. Steward. My Lord, you muft pardon me

I can enter into no further Interlocutions with your
Lordfhip. If your Lordfhip have any mind to have
Counfel heard, and your Counfel be ready, we will
hear them.
L. Delasere. I your Grace require of me to pro-
duce Counfel prefently, and they to argue it 1mme-
diately, Imult acquaint your Grace, I cannotdoit:
For I have none here.

L, H. Steward. My Lord, I cannot tell how to
help 1t: the Plea muit then be over-ruled and re-
jected.

Clerk of the Crown. Henry Baron of Delaere, art
thou Guilty of the High-Treafon whereof thou
ftandeft indi¢ted, and hait been now arraign’d, or
not Guilty ?

L. Delainere. Not Guilty.

Clerk of the Crown. Culprit,how wilt thoube tried?

L. Délamere. By God, and my Peers,

Clerk of the Crown. God {end thee a good Deli-
verance, Serjeant at Arms, make Proclamation.

Serjeant at Arms, O-Yes! If any one will give

Evidence on behalf of our Sovereign Lord the
King, againft Henry Baron of Delamere, the
Prifoner at the Bar, concerning the High-Trea-
fon whereof he ftands indicted, let them come
forth, and they fhall be heard: for now he
ftands at the Bar, upon his Deliverance

Then bis Grace gave the Charge to the Peers Tricrs ir

1his manner :

L. H. Steward. My Lords, I know you cannot
but well remember, what unjult and infolent At-
tempts were made upon the rightful and unalterable
Succeffion to the Imperial Crown of thefe Realms,
under the pretence of that which has been fo often
found to be the Occafion of Rebellion, I mean,

the {pecious Pretence of Religion, by the fierce,
froward, and phanatical Zeal of fome Members of

the Houfe of Commons, in the laft Parliaments under

the Jate King Charles the Second, of ever-bleffed

Memory. . |
Which, by the wonderful Providence of Al-

mighty God, not prevailing, the chief Contrivers

of
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of that horrid Villany, confulted together how to
gain that Advantage upon the Monarchy by cpen
Force, which they could not obtan by a pre-
tended Courfe of Law,

And in order thereto, it is too well known, how
they had feveral treafonable Meetings, made _bolfi
and riotous Progreflesinto feveral Parts of the King's
Dominions ; thereby endeavouring to debauch the
Minds of the well-meaning, Sthg'u%'ltl unwary and
ionorant, Part of the King’s Subjects.

° But thefe their cvil Purp%fes, it pleafed God allo
to fruftrate, by bringing to light that curled
Confpiracy againft the Life of his facred Mayefty,
King Charles the Second 5 as allo, againft that of
our dread Sovereizn, that now is, whom God long

preferve,
Thefe hellith and damnable Plots, one would have

thoughr, could not have furvived the juft Condem-
nation and Execution of fome of the chief Con-
irivers of them ; efpecially confiderinz, that after
it had pleafed Almighty God to take to himfelf
our late merciful and dread Sovereign, no looner
was his facred Majefty, that now is, feated n the
Royal Throne of his Anceftors, but he made it his
utmoft Endeavours, not only to convince the World,
that he had quite forgot thofe impudent and abomi-
nable Indignities that had been put upon him, only
for being the beft of Subjects, and the beft of Bro-
thers ; but did alfo give forth the moft Bemign Al-
furances imaginablz to all his loving People, that
he would approve himfelf to be the beft of Kings.

And further to cvince the Reality of thefe his
Gracious and Heroick Refolutions, he immediately
called a Parliament ; and therein repeated, and fo-
lemmnly confirmed his former Royal Declarations of
having a pardcular Care of maintaining our efta-
blith’d Laws and Religion : With which that Wife,
Great, and Loyal Aflembly, were fo fully and
perfedtly fatisiied, that they thought they could
not make fufficient Returns of Gratitude for fuch
Gracious and Princely Conaelcenfions.

And yet, my Lords, while the King and the
Parliament were thus, as I may fay, endeavouring
to out-do each other in Lxpreflions of Kindnels,
that wicked dnd unnatural Rebellion broke out 5 and
thereupon the Arch-Traitor, Mouionth, was, by
a Bill brought into the Lower Houfe, and pals’d
by the general Confent of both Houfes, (and I
could wifh, my Lords, for the fake of that Noble
Lord at the Bar, that I could fay, it had pafs'd
the Confent of every particular Member of each
Houfe) joftly attainted of High-Ticafon.

My Lords, what fhare my Lord at the Bar had
in thofe other matters, I muft acquaint you, 1Is not
within the compafs of this Indictment, for which
vou are to try him, as his Peers; for that 1s for a
Treafon alledged to have been committed by him,
in his Majefty’s Reign that now is.

Give me leave, my Lords, to detain you but
with 2 Word or two more on this occafion ;3 and
that is, to let you know, that as my Lord at the
Bar may, with great {fafety and fecurity to him-
felf, rely upon your Lordfhips Candor and Integri-
ty, that you will be tenderly carcful, and ready to
acquit him of the Treafon whercof he s acculed,
if, upon the Evidence that fhall be given you, you
thall find him innccent: So I muft tell you, the
King has an entire confidence in your Refolution,
Fidelity, and good Affections to him, that you
will not, by reafon of the Prifoner’s quality, and
nearnefs to you, as being a Peer of this Realm,
acqut lum 1f he (hall appear to be guilty.

I
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My Lords, I have one thing further to mind
your Lordfhips of, that, according to the ufual
Forms of Proccedings in thefe Cafes, if your Lord-
fhips have any Queltions to propound, wherein you
would be fatisfied as to any Matter, either of Fadtk
or Law, your Lordfhips will be pleafed to putthofe
Queftions to me, and I fhall take care to give your
Lordfthips the beft Satstaction I can,

L. Doigiere. My Lord High Steward, 1 beg the
favour of your Grace, I'may have one¢ to write
for me.

L. H. Seward, Ay, by all means, Let my Lord
have whom he pleafes to write for him,
Mz, ® Recorder. Wy 1t pleale your
Grace, my Lord High Steward of Eng-
land, and you my noble Lords, the
Peers of the Prifoner at the Bar : Henry Baron of
Delamere, the Prifoner at the Bar, flands indicted,
for that he, as a falfe Traitor againit the moft illu-
ftrious and moft excellent Prince, our Sovereign
Lord the King that now is, not having the Fear of
God in his Heart, nor weighing the Duty of his
Allegiance, the 14th day of Apiil laft, ac Aore,
in the County of Cogfler, did malicioufly confpire,
with other falic Trartors, to the Jurors unknown,
the death and depefing of the King: And fur the
better and more clicctual fulfilling of thofe his
Treafons, the faid 14th day of Apidl, at Mere a-
forcfard, did malicioully and traitoroufly affemble,
confult, and agree with Charles Gerrard Efg; and
other fulfe Traitors, to raife great Sums of Mo-
ney, and procure Wurmbers of armed Men, to make
a Rebellion againdt the King, and the City and Ca-
{tle of Cdefici to feize, with the Magazines there ;
and that afterwards, the a5th day of May laft, he
took a Journey from Lender to Mere aforefaid, to
accomplifh his trealonable Inentions.  And further,
that upon the 4th day of Fuwe, in further profe-
cution of his traitorous Purpofes, at Meie afore-
faid, he did incite divers Subjedts of our Lord the
King, tojoin with him, and other falfe Traitors,
m his Treafon.  And this is laid to be againft the
Duty of his Allegiance, againft the Peace of our
Sovercign Lord the King, his Crown and Dignity,
and again{t the Form of the Statute in that cafe
made and provided. To this Indictment, may ic
pleafe your Grace, and the relt of thefe noble
Lords, my Lord D:asicre, the Prifoner at the Bar,
has pleaded No# Guiliy 5 and for his Trial, has put
himlelf upon his Peers. We fhall therefore call
our Witnefles for the King 5 and if we prove him
guilty, we do not queftion but your Lordfhips will

find him fo.

Mr. At Gea. May it pleafe your Grace, my
Lord High Stewerd of Eiglend, and you my noble
Loras the Peers: My Lord Delaiere, the Prifoner
at the Bar, ftands indicted for confpiring the Death
of his Majefly, and in order thereunto to nife a
Rebellion 1n the Kingdom,

My Lords, 1n proving tnis Charge upon him,
we crave leave to give your Grace, and your Lord-
fhips fome fhore Account, by Wimefles that we
have here, of a former Defign that was previous
to this matier, {or which this noble Lord {tands
here acculed : And we fhall not trouble your Grace,
and your Lordfhips, with any long Evidence, be-
caufe 1t has recerved many folemn and repeated Thi-
als; and, as to the proof of it, has been confirm-
ed by as many Verdicts. But we do it, rather to
oive fome account, as an Intredultion to a mate-
rial Evidence, by {hewing, that Chefbire, which was

the
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the Prnvin:ce of this noble Lord, was one of the

Spaoes where that Rebellion was principally to be

:lﬂit?d; and that, preparatory to It, great riotous

Affemblies, and wmultuous Gatherings of the Peo-
le, were fct on foot by the Conf{pirators.

We fhall then fhew, my Lords, that after the
late Duke of Monmouth, (the Head of the Confpi-
racy) went beyond Sea, (efpecially after the death
of the late King) frequent Meflages, and Inter-
courfe of Correfpondency, were fent and held be-
tween him, and the reft of his Accomplices abroad,
and their Fellow-Confpirators here at home,

And particularly, we fhall prove, that a little
hefore the Rebels came over laft Summer into the
17ef8, the Duke of Moninonth did difpatch one Fones,
(who was onc of the moft confiderable Agents in
this Contrivance) to come from Holland into Eng-
land, to let his Friends know, that tho’ he had in-
tended to go into Scotland, and begin his Work
there, yet now his Refolutions were for England ;
where, be hoped, his Friends would be prepared
for him. And with this Meffage and Refolution of
his, Fones was to acquaint fome Lords, (who they
were, the Witnefs will tell your Lordfhips, but)
among others, this noble Lord, the Prifoner, was
one: And to acquaint them, befides, that he would
immediately fet fail for England, whether he would
come fo {oon as he could get. ‘That he hada De-
ficn to have landed in Chefbire, where he expeéted
to be moft readily receiv’d 5 but finding that in-
convenient, they fhould have notice four or five
Days before-hand, of the Place of his landing
which he intended fhould be mn the #7¢ff, And,
among the Direttions that Fones had to give to
thofe Lords, one was, that they fhould imme-
diately repair into Chefbire, there to wait for the
News,

Thefe Inftructions Fones had given him in Wri-
ting, but fealed up, with an injunction not to open
them till he came toSea y and then he was to per-
ufe that Writing, and deliver his Meffage accord-
ing to his Inftructions : And in that Writing was
the name of this noble Lord, as one that was prin-
cipally relied on, tocarry on the Rebellion in Che-
fhire.  And we fhall give you an account, that the
late Duke of Monmonth did look upon Chefbire as
onc of his main Supports, and upon my Lord De-
Adamare as a principal Affiftant there,

My Lord, this Meffage was Tones to communi-
cate to Captain Matthews, and Captain Matibews
was to tran{mit it to this noble Lord, and the other
Perfons that were concern’d with him. fornes ar-
rived with this Meffage here in England upon the
27th of May : [And I muft beg your Lordfhips
to obferve the Time particularly.] But Captain
Mattbews, to whom he was direéted, was not to be
found 5 nor Major #ildman, to whom, in the ab-
fence of Captain Matthews, he was to apply him-
felf, as you will hear more fully from the Wit
nels’s own Mouth : Thereupon he fends for one
Difuiey, (a Name which your Lordfhips cannot
but know, he being fince executed for Treafon)
and one Braad, whom your Lordfhips will like-
wife hear of 3 and they meet with the fame Fomes,

who communicates his Meflage to them, and they

undertake to deliver it to the Perfons concern’d
Captain  Matthews being out of Town, and Ma-
jor Wildman not to be found,

That very Night, my Lords, this fame Brand,
and Difuey they meet this Noble Lord, my
Lord Deleinere, ar the Coftee-Houfe, and olve
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him an Account of the Meffages: And-as foon
as ever he had received the Meflage, upon that
Twenty-Seventh of May, at ten of the clock
at Night, does my Lord Delamere difpatch out
of Town, with only one Servant to attend him,
and two other Friends that he had pick’d up, or
appointed to meet him, and go with him.

With all thefe Badges of Plot and Defign,
does my Lord Delamere fet out that Night. ¢
was the fame Night that Fones came to Town:
It was late at Night. He changed his Name,
and went by the Name of Broww. He chofe to
go all the By-Roads, and would not keep the
high common Road ; and went with great. {peed,
as we cannot but prefume according to the Mef-
fage delivered by Fones, on purpofe to repair into
Chefhire. -

And 1f your Lordfhips pleafe to obferve, you
will find - feveral remarkable Inftances of Plot
and Contrivance in the matter : Firft, That a
Nobleman, and one of fo confiderable a Cha-
racter m his Country, as my Lord Dilamere,
fhould make fuch hafte out of Town with fo
fmall an Equipage, as but one Servant, Then,
that he fhould go fo late ar Night: Again,
that he fhould change his Name; and that
fhould prove to be 2 Name not cafually taken
up, as the frft Name he could think of next his
own; but a Name of dittin¢tion, that he was
known by among all his own Party : For all the
Communications between the Confederates and
him, were managed, as to him, under the Name
of Brown. By that Name, feveral of the late
Duke of Monmoutl’s Traitorous Declaratiops were
fent for; which were to be fent to him, or by
him, into Chefbire: And that alone, with Sub-
miffion, my ILords. would be a threwd Circum-
ftance of Sufpicion, that a Noble Lord, fuch an
one as my Lord Delumere, fhould affume the Name
of a Commoner, and poft out of Town fo il ac-
companied in a Difgwfe at that time of Night 5
efpecially the Parliament being then fitting, as re-
ally it was,

But befides all this Circumftantial Evidence,
we fhall prove, by Pofitive Teftimony, what
the hafty Bufinefs was, that made my Lord un-
dertake this Journey in this manner: For, ha-
ving notice of the Duke of Mouion:l’s Inten-
tion to land {peedily in Eugland, when he comes
into Chefbire, he a@ually lets about the Work
to put that County in a forwardnefs to aflift in
the Rebellion, endeavours to ftir up the People
to join with him; and acquaints one that he
imployed 1n that Affair, with the whole Defign,
that he was engaged to raife fo many Thoufand
Men, and fo much Money, to be ready by fuch a
a Day.

Nor does my Lord reft here: But, after the
Duke of Mommouth was landed in the Weft, to
corrupt the Minds of the People, we fhall prove
what Difcourfes he had, (and thefe will reftify
his Inclinations to the Caufe) concerning the grear
Victories he had obtained over the King’s Forces,
and how he applauded his Conquefts.

My Lords, we fhall plainly fhew you all this
that Thave opened in plain Proof: And then, we
fhalf fubmit it to your Lordfhips Judgments,
whether this noble Peer be Not Guilty, as he has
pleaded to his Inditment.

L. H, Steward. Call your Witnefles, Mr, Ar-
torney : Who do you begin with 2 |

It ‘ M.,
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Mr. At Gen. My Lord Howard of Eferick : We
defire he may be fitlt fworn,  [Which was doue.

L. H. Steward, Well, what do you atk my Lord
Howayd 2 .

Mr. At Gen. My Lord, Icall you to give an
Account what you know of a Delign of an
Infurreftion that was to have been ; and In
what Parts ; and what fhare Chefbire was to have
had in it, in the late King’s Time.

L. H. Steward. You hear the Queftion ; what
fay you to it, my Lord ? ‘

L. Hpward. My Lord, T am to direct my felf
to fpeak to what was done in the late King’s
Time : For as to that Noble Lord at the Bar, I
have nothing to fay againft him,

L. H. Steward, My Lord Howard, 1f I appre-
hend Mr. Attorney aright, you are not called as a
particular Witnefs againft my Lord Delamere ;
but only to give an Account, what was agreed
upon in any Conifultations, where you were pre-
fent, in the late King’s Time, about a Con-
{piracy for an Infurrection ¢

L. Howard. 1f fo, my Lord, then I am called
not to be an Evidence againft my Lord Dzlamere,
but againft my Self ; that 15, to repeat what I
have often delivered at feveral Trals, 1n the
Courts of Juftice ; and which I muft always re-
peat, with Shame and Confufion for my Guilr,
as I cannot but always reflet upon it with Sor-
row and Horror. But if it be for the Service of
his Majefty, and this Honourable Court, for me
fo to do, I fhall endeavour to comply with 1t,
and repeat it as well as I can, by the Affiftance
of a broken Memory; it being an Account of
things done feveral Years paft, and from a Me-
mory Interrupted by fuch Accidents as are very
well known, and as have difabled me to make
a more diftin¢t and particular Relation before fo
great an Auditory.

My Lords, 1 fuppofe, it will be expefted, I
fhould begin my Account with the Occafion and
Ground, and the Time when thofe Things hap-

ened.
F L. H. Steward, Take your own Methed, my
Lord.

L. Heward. Troly, my Lord, I am not able
to fix the particular time, unlefs you will give
me leave to reckon the Years by the Sheriffs of
London, as the Romans ufed to do theirs by their
Confuls ; for I have no other means of computing
the exaét Time.

L. H. Steward. Pray, my Lord, tell the Times
as near as you can, and ufe what helps for your
Memory you think beft.

L. Howard. My Lords, it was in that Year,
when Mr. Soute and Mr., Pilkington were Sheriffs,
for the City of London : And at that time, it is
well known how great Heats did arife upon the
Contefts that were in the City, about Elettion of
Officers for the Year enfuing

Mr. At. Gen. May 1t pleafe your Grace, my
Lord Delamere {eems to be faint with ftanding;
If your Grace pleafe, a Chair may be provided
for my Lord to fit in.

L. H, Steward. Ay, by all means: Let a Chair
be provided for my Lord to fit down, Go on,
my Lord, '

L. Howard, My Lord, I was faying, that the
Conteft about the difputed Eleftion of Sheriffs,
had occalioned fuch Heats in the City of Londen,
and - other Places, that it was even beyond the

I
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common expreflions of di{content. I knew nothing
of any particular Defign there was 1n hand il abous
fix Weeks after, when Captain #akot came to me,
a Perfon [ had known fome time before, and upon
difcourfe, acquainted me, that he had found out
that there were fome Perfons engaged in a confi-
derable Aéion that was near its Egecution; and
that in order to it, he had had notice given him to
make preparation, and thereupon he had thought
fic, for that reafon, to withdraw from the place
where he did at that time lodge, {(which was in
Red- Lion Court 1n Feet-fireet, as I remember) and
betake himfelf to a private Lodging, that he might
be the readier for A&ion; and to put himfelf into
a better Equipage for joining in the Enterprize, he
had bought himfelf a Horfe, and fent his Son into
Ireland to turn all he could into ready Money, and
return 1t, that he might be the better able to go
through with the Undertaking. My Lords, this
was a great furprife to me ; for though I knew, as
all the reft of the World did, that there were great
difcontents, yet, till then, I never had any inti-
mation of any particular defign. I told him I was
going into the Country, but fhould be glad to know
how things went, and defired him to write to me,
and gave him a little Cabala or Cypher to difguife
the matter he was to write about. And when I was
in the Country, I did recetve feveral Letters which
intimated fomething of a Defign that was going on,
and at lalt he writ with fome warmth to me, of
a necellity we were under to enter into Action,
and of the readinefs of my Correfpondents; (for the
Style of the Letters was that of Merchants, for {o
was the Cant that I had given him:) But truly I
was not over-halty in my return to Loidon, be-
caufe I rather chofe to fee what would be the Iflue
of what was then projeted, before I did in-
termeddle in {fuch an Affair, and fo made ufe of
all the delays I could to rerard my return, and
came not to Town till that Week which deter-
mined the loeng continued Controverly in London.
Nay, and then alfo avoided meeting with any bo-
dy in any {et-way, till I could better fee how things
were managed, and what event they would pro-
bably come to : thereupon I would not go to my
own Houfe, but took up my Lodging at AMile-end,
and lay three or four Days, till the Day came
for confirming the new-elected Sheriffs, and the
Elettion of a new Lord Mayor, which, as I take i,
is on the day before Michaelmas-day, and Michael-
mas-day, 'When that day was over, I could not
find there was any Intention of entering into any
fort of Attion; I found indeed there were great
Murmurings in the mouths of all forts of Peo-
ple, and very angry warm Speeches, and nothing
elfe : So I thought the bulinefs was over for that
time, and thereupon away I went to my own
Houfe. This, my Lords, was upon the Satur-
day, as I remember : Upon the Monday Morn-
ing Captain Walcot came to me, and defired that
he might have {fome private difcourfe with me
in my Garden 3 and there he told me, my Lord
Shaftesbury had withdrawn himfelf, and that he
did believe things were in a great Preparation
for Aétion. I defired him to tell me what it was ;
he anfwered me, That he defired to be excufed
in that, for I muft go to my Lord Shafreshury,
who would give me an account of the whole :
and withal he told me, my Lord Shaftesbuiy
had been much deferted and il wfed by thofe

Lords upén whofe concurrence he had rely’d,
and
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and that was the reafon why he had withdrawn
himfelf, and kept himfélf fo private. I told him,
1 did not know my Lord Shafteshiiy had any
defire to fpeak with me. Yes, he fud he had,
for he had {fent him to me on purpofe, and he
was to bring back my anfwer, whether I would
join or no. [Itold him, if my Lord defired to
fpeak with me, I would wait upon him 3 and
thereupon 1 went with him, and he carried me
to a place where my Lord Shafteshury was re-
rired into the City, fomewhere about Feffer- Lane
or Woeod-Street, at the houfe of one Watfon, When
I came there, after Salutation, my Lord Shafre/f-
puiy Dbegan to make great rc_ﬂe&lons upon the
Mifery and Badnefs of the Times, particularly,
upon the iffue of that great Affair, the Ilection
of the Sheriffs, which had ended fo unfortunately
to the Terror of all good men: For whereas be-
fore, the great and fure r{;fort of innocency was
to the Integrity of our Juries, when returned by
fair and equal Sheriffs, they looked upon the
cagerncfs ol getting thofe Yerfons fworn that
were then 0 Office to be a defign to mnrrap the
innocent, the ele¢ted Sherifis being clteemed per-
fons that would accommodate themielves to the
humour of the Court; and now cvery man muit
2 ran down for Crimes that he was no way
cuilty of, 1if the finger of the Court did but
point him out to deftruttion. The apprehenfion
ot this, he faid, had made him withdraw himfelf,
not knowing how foon he might be {e12’d, fhould
he have remair’d in publick ; and he thought
the danger was as imminent upon, and likely to
reach to others, as well as to him; and particu-
larly to my {elf, and therefore, he fud, the fenfe
of this danger ought to pur every Euglifhinan,
that had a value for his Country, and any thing
that was dear to him in it, upon ufing his ut-
moft endeavours to give fome prevention to thofe
calamities which were 1mpendent over us, and
which threatned the deftruétion of all men that
ftood up for the Rights of the people: and this,
he faid, was his refolution.

My Lord, in order to this, he declared to me,
what Preparacions had been made for the Raifing
of Force for this purpofe; he faid, there were
cight or ten thoufand Men (I cannot fix the par-
ticular number) that he was well affured to have
ready 1 the City; That there had been divers
Horfe (I think about Fourfcore or an Hundred
he named) that about 2 Iortnight before, had
been, by parcels, drawn into the Town, with-
out bemng obferved 3 and thefe were in daily ex-
puctation to go into Aétion; bur through the
unhandfome Difappointment of the Duke of A/u-
wonth, and the other Lords that achered to
him, who were to have joined in the A&ion,
and have fet the Wheels at work in other Parts,
he was left alone to do the whole in his Pro-
vince of . Loidon, they being not ready to concur
according to their Engagement: But as he thould
have the greater Danger, fo he fhould have the
greater Glory ; and he refolved to go throuch
with the Attempt, or perith in the Execution.
To all this Difeourfe I gave {uch an Anfiver
25 the nature of the thing required: I told my
L‘?rd Shafteshury, 1 could not deny all thole
Fhmg_,s to be true, as he hath reprefented them
in his Difcourfe ; and that I would net diftruft
his Judgment fo much, as to fuppofe he would

cnter upon fuch an -Affair, without due delibe-
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ration of all the Cifcumftances requifite to it 3
and fo I would not queftion, but there was fuch
Preparations, and that he had Aflurance of fuch
a Force, as he had fpoke of, whenever they fhould
begin any Action. But I told him fomething
ftuck with me, and troubled me very much ;
That, i a tme of fuch difficulty, when the
convenient Help of the Nation was all little e-
nough to join in the Work, he fhould ftand by
himfelf, and engage in fuch an Enterprize, in
feparation from thofe other Lords, of whofe
Help there would be fo much need. He faid,
he could not help it, they had appointed this
time, and that, but now, when it came to the
pufh, they were not ready to do their Parts s
but the People were now in fuch expe&ation of
fomething to be done, efpecially in London, that
it was 1impoffible to reftrain them, and as im-
poflible to get thofe Lords ready to join with
them. Itold him, I was altogether unacquainted
with the proceedings in this Affair, and that all
of it was wholly new to me : But pray, my Lord,
fad I, give me leave to af that part in this
bufinefs, that, I think, will moft conduce to the
fuccefsiul Iffue of ir, which is to be a Media-
tor between you; and let me defire you to let
things reft as they are, till I have endeavoured to
create @ better underftanding between your Lord-
fhip, and thofe Lords, of whofe Tergiverfition
you feem to complain. Upon this my Lord
was 1n a great heat, and exprefs’d himfelf with
great warmthy but at laft, with much ado, he
gave me permiffion to go to the Duke of Adoi-
morth, and affure him, and the reft of the Lords
that were concern’d, and tell them from Lim,
that, it they would be ready to take the Pofts
that were affign’d them, according to their own
former Agreement, and immediately enter upon
Action, he would join with them ; but if nor,
he was refolved to go on alone. This was, as 1
remember, upon Tuefday, the Second of Ofoker
upon the Wednelday Morning I went to find
out the Duke of Adoumonth, but coming to his
Lodgings, he was gone to Moor-Park, where,
when I came, I found feveral Perfons with him ;
but after a little time, 1 feparated him from the
Company, and whifpering to him, I gave him to
underftand, how great a Diforder I found my Lord
Shaftestrry 1n, and how great a Complaint he
made of his being deferted by him, and the other
Lords engaged with him, and what Refolution
he had taken to fet upon the Work alone. « My
¢« Lord, fays he, I think the Man is mad, his
¢ I'ear makes him lofe his Underftanding; I do
““ not know why he hides himfelf from his Friends,
““ that no body can tell where heis: but as to
“ that which he fpeaks of, of our forfaking him,
“ and Breach of Faith, he is miftaken. For,
“’us true Indeed, we are about doing the
¢ Thing, that he is {o eager for, but we are
“ not for doing it fo haftily, as his Fears pre-
‘““ cipitate him to do; and he muit excufe us,
““ 1f we comply not with his Humour, to hazard
““ the whole Undertaking by a rath beginning,”
Upon that, I faid to- him, My Lord, I fhall
not difcourfe the Particularities of the bufinefs
with your Grace; but this is all that I at pre-
fent addrefs to your Grace for, to be a means,
if Ican, with your Grace, as I have been with
him, to procure a Meeting between you, that
you may f[ettle 1t with one another, ¢ With all

Ffo2 ¢ my
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« my heart, fays the Duke, pray let it be fo;
<« for, though my Lord Sheftesbuiy i1s angry

¢« without a caufe, yet I would not have him
« Jofe himfelf in a temerarious Undertaking.”
My Lord, faid I, I will tell him what you fay,
and will fee if T can ‘work him to a Compli-
ance with the Propefal, The next day, being
Thur{day, my Lord, I went to my Lord Shafie/-
bury again, and reported to him the Dilcourfe
I had with the Duke of Mbamonth, and what
Anfwer he had given to his Complaint of their
deferting him, He reply’d, « It was falfe, they
¢ had pofitively engaged to be ready by fuch a
“« time, and had appointed the very Day; but

¢« now they were off, and would not-tell when.

™

they would be ready :* and withal, he told me,
he oreatly fufpeéted the Duke of Moninonth to
have a fecret Correfpondence with the King, I
then defired him, That he would pleafe to con-
{fent to the Treaty that was propofed, and give
the Duke of Manmonth, and the Lords a Meeting,
He, 1n great heat, replyed, No, he would come
no more at them. It 1s ftrange, my Lord, faid
I, that you fhould have {uch an Opinion of thefe
Men, that they would go about to betray you ;
they are not Men of that fize : buc he perfifted
in it, that they had dealt perfidioufly with him:
For after a pofitive Agreement, when the Thing
was brought jult to the Birth, they withdrew
therr helping hand : but he was fure, in Loudon,
he could raife a fufficient Force to do the Work,
and if he were but once fet on horfe-back, le
would head them himlelf : But yetr he was wil-
ling to put it off for a Fortaight, or three Weeks
longer, if they would be fure to keep pace with
him, With this Propofal T went the next day,
which was Friday, to the Duke of AMouimonth, and
had the fame Anfwer from him, that I had be-
fore 3 but withal, he bid me tell my Lord Shaftef-
bury, That he did make it his carneft Requeft to
him, to give him and his other Friends a Meet-
ing before he engaged in this bufinefs: For he
found by his precipieiion, he was about to de-
ftroy himlelf, and all that adhered to him. There-
upon, I came to my Lord Shaftesbury again, upon
the Saturday; and when I came there, after a
long and importunate urging all the Arcuments
I could think of, I fo far prevailed with him,
that_he agreed to give them a Meeting, upon
condition, that it fhould be the next day : and
becaufe 1t fhould be fo private, that no notice
might be taken of it, he chole to have the Mect-
ing at lus own Houle, where no boay would
fufpe&t him to be, and whither he would be con-
veyed, under the Difguife of a Parfon. I went
back with this Meflage to the Duke of Muwsuouth,
who did undertake, that the other Lords fhould
be there.,

L. H, Steward. My Lord Howard, not to
interrupi_t you, Did he name thofe other Lords?
It he did, pray acquaint my Lords, who they
were.

L. Howard. My Lord Shaftesbury named my
Lord Ruffl and my Lord Gray, and a great
many more that fhould bear their parts. I went
to the Duke of Mommouth, and told him of it, |
fay, and he engaged, that they fhould certainly
be there: But, upon the Sunday Morning, when
I came to the Temple, there I found a Meflage
left for me, that my Lord Shaflesbury had receivd

an Alarm,  That there was “fome  great Tories

.
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living near his Houfe in Alderfeate-fireer, who
were continually fpying about; and fo great a
Company might make their more than ordinary
Obfervation : That this gave him fuch a Jealoufy,
as would not permit him to meet according to
his Appointment, Afterwards, I came to a better
underftanding of the Reafon of this, and found
there was fome Fineffe in it, which I could not
comprehend before: But after this time, I never
faw my Lord Shaftesbury, for he removed then
to other Lodgings. So that, what I now fpeak
of him, is only what I had, by hear-fay, from
others: For I had no knowledge of what pafs’d,
as to him, but what I had from Capt, Walot ;
who told me, That after that, there were feveral
days of Meeting appointed, but ftill, from time
to time, put oft; but upon what reafon, I cannot
particularly remember,

This 1s all I know of my Lord Shafteshury 3 and
the latter Part 1s wholly by Hearfay from #a/cor.
But by reafon of this Agitation, we continued
under Expetation till fuch time as my Lord
Shaftesbury went into Holloud 5 where he fhortly
after died. And truly, I thought, at that time,
much of the Defign was quathed, and laid afide
But, foon after Fergufon came over 3 who, when
he came here, began to revive and quicken the
Bufinels, and puth it on to Execution. I {poke
with him at the One Bell n the Straund ;5 and there
he gave me an Account ol all the Steps that. had

cen taken: He told me what Preparations had
been made 1n the City, 1n general 3 what to {lize
the Gates of the City ; what to poffefs themfclves
of the Tower 3 what to attack the Guards ; and
feveral other things, which I can’t now fo well re-
member, the Impreflions of them being worn out
of my Memory, by length of Time, and other
Accidents,

This, 1n general, 1s all that I can fay, as to
what was previous to the particular Engagement
wherein I was concern’d : For, at kaft, after ma-
ny Difcourfes, the Troubles and Difficulties of
the Time increaling, and the Dangers that threat-
ned us, as we thought, growing higher and high-
er, this gave an Occalion for our uniting Coun-
{els, and entring into a kind of Funffo 3 which, I
fuppole, is foreign to this Affair before your Lord-
fhips; and thercfore, I fuppofe, would be like-
wife impertinent for me, to trouble your Lordfhips
with,

L. H. Steward. Mr, Aitoriey, do you defire my
Lord Heward fhould give an Account of the o-
ther Meetings, and Confultations, at which he was
prefent ?

Mr., At Gen, My Lord, I think there will be
no need of 1t; and I am unwilling to take up
your Grace’s Time 'to no purpofe.

L. Howard. As for that Noble Lord at the Bar,
I know nothing concerning him.

L. H. Steward. Then, Gentlemen, will you have
him afked any Queftions ?

Mr, At Gen. No, my Lord.

L. H. Stewerd. My Lord Delginere, will you afk
him any more Queltions ?

L. Délainere. No, my Lord.

M. At Gen. Before my Lord Howard goes,
I would afk him one Queftion in general, whe-

ther he knew of any Delign of a Rifing in Che-

fhire 2

L, Heward, No, my Lord, Iknew of none at

all,
Mr,
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 Mr. 4t. Gen, Then we defie my Lord Gray

may be {worn, .
/ [Wiich was done.

Mr, At. Gen. Pray, will you give his Grace
and my Lords an Account, what you know of
any Deligns of an Infurreétion or Rebellion, when
you were beyond Sea, or before ¢ and who were

oaced in it *
enf?Gmy. My Lord, I am fubpena’d hither on
behalf of the King; and I am allo fubpena’d on
behalf of my Lord, the Prifoner at the Bar, I
do not know any thing, thatl can fpeakiof my
own Knowledge, againft the Priloner ; nor have
I any thing to fay, that I know of, that will be for
his Advantage. But I am here ready to anfiwer
fuch Queftions, as fhall be afk’d me, either of one

fide, or the other. |
My, At Gen. My Lord, the Queftion I afk

you, is, What do you know of any Defign of a

Rifing in Chefbire, and when ¢ .
L. Gray. About the Time of the Election of

Sheriffs for the City of Louden 5 1 mean, that
memorable Time of the contefted Eleflion,
which furnithed the World with {o much Dif-
courfe, and was the occafion of fuch Heats and
Animoficies : About that time, the Duke of Moi-
mouth, and my Lord of Shaftesbury began to dif-
courfe about making ufe of that, as an Oppor-
tunity to accomplifh their Defign ; for they
thought the Ferment was fo high, that Men
would eafily be difpofed to an Infurrection : and
after many Difcourfes to that purpofe, they
came to this Refolution, that they would apply
themielves to make what Intereft they could, to
procure a Rifing in three feveral Parts of the
Kingdom at once: one in Chefbire, whither the
Duke of Monsitonth was to betake himfelt'; and
there be adviled by my Lord Macclesfield, my
Yord Brandon, my Lord Delainere that then was,
and the Prifoner at the Bar, what Gentlemen
were proper to apply ‘to, for joining in the
Defign. The-{econd was in London, which was
afligned to be the Province of my Lord of
Sbaftesbury.,  And the third was in the #7%f
which was committed to the Care of my Lord
Ruffel,  'The Duke of Moinouth did accordingly
go lis Progrefs into Chefhire, as is very well
known ; and upon his Return, was taken into
Cuftody by the Serjeant at Arms : Upon which,
Siv Thoinas Arinftrong was fent Poft to Town, to
get an Habeas Corpus 3 and withal, to deliver a
Meflage to me, to be communicated to my
Lord Reffel, and my Lovd Sheftesbury : Which
Meflage, as near as I can remember, was to this
EffeCt ; that he had been kindly receiv’d by
the Gentlemen of the County, and had dif:
cours’d the Matter with them, and found them
all inclined very much to his Satisfattion ;: That
upon his being arrefted, he had been advifed
to make his efcape into Chefbire, and rife im-
mediately ; but that he would not do a Matter
of that great Importance, without the Appro-
bation of his Friends. This is all thar I know
of any thing, that was defigned in Chefbire.

Mr. 4t Gen. Pray, my Lord, what do you
know of any Meffages that Captain Matthews or
Jones brought over from Hollond, and to whom,
and from whom ?

L. Gray. Sir, 1 will give the beft account I
can, upon the fudden, for I am Aot prepared to
pive a particular diftinét account, in regard
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I did not know it would be expefted from me,
nor indeed that it would affe the Prifoner at the
Bar,

L. H. Steward. Pray, my Lord, give my Lords
the Peers as fuccin€t and particular an Account as
yOu can.

L. Gray. My Lord, foon after the late King's
Death, the Duke of Mommonth was at Amflerdain
with my Lord of Argyle, where there was an
account given of the Defign that was in hand,
of an Infurrection in Scotland, and the Prepara-
tions that had been made in order toit; and at
that time there came over to Holland M. Crag,
that came as I was inform’d from Major Wildias,
and his Errand was to promote and recommend
a Reconciliation between the Duke of Monionih
and.my Lord Argyle, who till that time had aced
in feparate Interefts; and Crag then gave an ac-
count that Means and Money were prepared :
he had no particular Meffage to the Duke, be-
caufe he did not know of meeting him there
at that time. The Doke of Mowmionth, upon this
Encouragement, did fend Captain Mattbews into
Lngland, with a Meflage to Major Hildiax,
wherein he did defire him that he would procure
a Meetng with my Lord Macclesficld, my Lord
Brandon, my Lovd Delamcre, and I think My, Chay-
leton, and acquaint them that he had reccived a
full account of my Lord Aigyk’s Affair, and
the Preparations that had been made for it, and
accordingly he had ordered his own Afairs to
join with him; he likewife fent Crer with a
Meflage to the fame purpofe to other Friends in
London, and he difpatch’d away one Battefeond
into the' /7y, to prepare things there. When
Crag return’d back again to the Duke, he cave
him an account that Major ##/diman had procur’d
a Meeting with thofe Lords and Gentlemen, that
I mentioned before, who were all of Opinion,
that the Duke of Mbunwonth thould go for Scot-
land, for they thought that his coming there,
would be the beft Service he could do the Intereft
at prefent, and they fhould know the Strength
of the Enemy here, by their fending Forces to
fupprefs the Rebellion there, There was like-
wife a particular Meffage from Major Wildmar
to the Duke of Moumouth, that he defired he
would bring over with him a Broad Seal to
feal Commiffions with, and to take upon him the
Title of King, The other particular Branches of
the Meffage 1 do not fo well remember, but
only this, he was particularly afk’d, whether the
Prifoner at the Bar was there, and he faid he
was

Mr. 4t Gen. Pray, my Lord Gray, will you
give an account what you know of Fones’s
coming over, and what Emrand he was fent
of ?

L. Gray, Foues came fome time after Crag re-
turn’d, and he gave an account of other things
conformable to what Crag had faid, and was fent
back again to Eugland by the Duke of Moumouth
to give an account of his being ready to fail; he
gave him alfo a Letter, the Contents whereof I
did not fee, Ihad fome fhort account ofit, buc
whether it were written to any particular Perfon,
I cannot tells the Sum of his Meflage was, that
he would land by that time he could get thi-
ther,

Mr, 4t. Gen. My Lord Gray, vou had fre-

quent Difcourle with the Duke of Monmonth,
and
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and fo I fuppofe you can give an account who
he kept Correfpondence with, and upon wholc
Affiftance he relied. |

L. Gray. 1 fuppofe few people will believe
we were fo weary of our Lives, as to come and
throw them away with Threcfcore, or a very
few more Men, (for it was but a very {mall
number we becan with) except we had had Ex-
pectation of good affiftance, This I am fure of,
by all Difcourfes with the Duke of Mauinaitib,
he did depend very much upon Chefhire, and was
refolv’d to have Janded and begun there; but
afterwards he confidered of it, and thought bet-
ter to fend fome fort of excufe for not landing
in Chefbire 5 that the Perfons that were to be ap-
ply'd to there, being Men of great Quality and
Intereft in their Country, and able to manage
it, without his Affiftance: but in the JFgff, the
Friends he relied on, were not of that confide-
rable Quality, and thercfore he chofe to land
there.

Mr. A:. Gen. What Lords did he name, that he
depended upon.

L. Gray. T did name them ; my Lord Maccles-
field, my Lord Breadon, and my Lord Deluincres
but I obferved when the Duke of Mouisuth
{poke of his Friends in Cheflire, he did name my
Lord Macclesfield, and my Lord Bianden as Per-
fons.

Earl of Noettinghawm, My Lord Steward, I
humbly pray this Wimnefs may bz afked to whom
that Letter was written, that he faith the [ate Duke
of Mopineuth fent by Foues ¢

L. H. Stward. You hear my Lord’s Que-
ftion, who did Adsmzemth fend that Letter by
Foies 10

L. Gray. My Lord, T never faw the Letter,
nor do I know any Direttions there were upaon
it; I always looked upon it as a Paper of In-
ftructions given to him about the time when,
and the name of the place where the Duke was
to fand.

Mr. 4. Gz We will give an account of that
by Fenes by and by, my Lord.  Now fwier Ne-
thaniel Wade,

[TV bich wwas doie.

L. H. Stezerd, Well, what do you afk this
Witnefs ?

My, At Gen, Wade, that which T call you
for, is this, to give an account what you know
of any Defign of landing in Chefbire, or elfewhere,
and of Foues’s coming over, and what Itrrand he
was fent upon?

My, Wede, My Lord, I fhall give an account
as far as I know. After the death of the late King,
Captain Mattbes came to Aafferdamr and gave
an acceunt chere, that the Duke of Mosmmonth
intended to be there fhortly to meet and confult
with my Lord Aigyle, who, we underftood,
then was preparing for an Expedition into Seor-
fand 3 thereupon I was fent into Friefland to de-
fire my Lord Aigyle to cometo Amfieidain, vwhich
he did; and there the Duke of Mowmmsnth did
confult with him, and they did agree together,
that at the fame time that my Lord gyl made
an Infurretion In Scotlond, the Duke of Mpi-
mont fhould invade Zugland, and to that end,
that he fhould fend thole Friends he had in
Fugland, to be ready to affift him when he came
therey and in order to it, he did fend Captain
Motthews, who, among{t other things, was to
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¢o to the Dulie’s Friends in Chefbire, and amongft
them, my Lord Delamere was named to be one,
and the bufinels was to deflire them to be ready
to aflitt him when he fhould land. Accordingly
Caprain  Mettheos went 3 but a little after hig
coing away, 1 think one Crag came over, and
he came from Major /ildinan, and his bufinefs
was to endeavour a good Underftanding between
the Duke of Alwmenth, and my Lord Argvle,
who were then at fome differencey and to en-
deavour to make them alt jointly by united
Counfel. A little after he was fent back again
into Luglead to Major Wildinai, to defire him to
afiift them with fome Money ; he went back
aoain, and returned, but brought no Money :
thereupon he was fent again by the Duke of
Meninorth, becaufe the firlt time he was not fenc
by him. The Sum demanded was fix Theuafand
Pounds, or four Thoufand Pounds. and at laft
he fent for & Thoutand Pounds, Crag returned
with this Anfwer, that they could notr afiift
them with Money, for they did not know to
what end they fhould have Moncy, but to buy
Arms, and for that the People were well provi-
ded enough already, and there was no need of
Moncy for that purpofe,  The Dukc of Al
ppouth 2 while after fent Mr, Crag, and pawn’d
all the Jewels he had, to raife Money, and fit-
ted out three Ships for this Service, laden with
Ammunrition ; and becaufe he had promifed my
Lord Airmyle to make a Diverfion in Eugland,
while he mvaded Scotland, he refolved to go
with that Provifion he had, and defired by
My, Crag, that fince thole Lords and Gentlemen
that we'e to aflift them, had {ent no Money, os
was defired of them, and expected from them,
they fhould row trouble themlelves with no
{urcher needlefs Confultations 3  bur fhould re-
pur each Man into his own Country, where
their Intereft was areateft, to be ready whn he
fhoula come.  And in order to this, the Duke of
Mooty did et fail from Iolland, and came
to Lyire, and linded there ; and did after-
wards order his March, {o thet he might moft
conventently meet with his Chofliiz Friends 5 thag
5. towards Ghucefler, and o to wet Ghucfo
Dridee, that thercby gaining the Comimand of
the River of Severn, thofe of Chofire, ii the
did, as was expefted, make an Infurreftion at the
fame time, they might eafily join together. In
purfuance of this Defign we came to Keinfham-
Bridge, and there a Party of the King’s Horfe fet
upon us, and we took fome Prifoners, and
therecupon thought it advilible not to let the
King’s Army join together, but to go back and
engage thole that were already come together s
and that was the reafon we did not go over the
Bridge.

Mr. At Gen. Do you know any thing of Fones’s
coming mnto Hollaid, and for whar ¢

[Vade. My Lord, I had forgot that ; a
little before Crag’s going lalt away, Fenes came
over, and his Bufinefs was to know why we
ftaid fo long, for the Duke of Adowsmenth’s Friends
in Loggland had expelted hum long before, and he
was difpatch’d away quickly to acquaint them the
Duke was coming.

Mr. At Gen. Who was 1t he fent to, to acquaint
with his coming ?

Wade. To Major IV7ildiien, he was direCed to
Major /7ildman.

. Mr,
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Mr., A2, Gen. Who ellc were to be acquainted why I went;

ith 1t ¢
Wth /}/ ;2& Amonglt the reft, my Lord Delamere,

my' Lord Macclesfieidy, and my Lord Brandon were
to be acquainted that he was coming, and expelted
that they fhould raife what Forces they could to

Gt him. - _
a lL. I?S:emrd. Will my Lord Delamere afk him

any Queftions ? :
{% elasere. No, my Lord, I never faw his Face

before, that I know of.
L. H. Steward, Who do you go to next, Mr.

Altorney 2

Mr. At. Geir. Next we call Richard Goodenotgh -
Swear him, [W/bich was dme.] That which I
would know of you, Mr. Goodenongh, 1s, whether
Fones was fent of any Meffage, and about what ?

Goodenongh, My Lord, Iwas beyond Sea with
the Duke of Monmouth, and Mr. Fones was {ent
(among other Perfons) to my Lord Delamere to
aive him notice that he fhould be ready againft the
ame that the Duke fhould land, and take care to
{ecure himfelf, that he might not be feized here

in Town, for we were apprehenfive fuch a thing

would be attempted. o
Mr. 4. Gen, What Direftions were given him,

what Lords to go to?

Goodenonugh. My Lord, we were informed in
Holland, that my Lord Delamere was one of thofe
Lords that had promifed to draw his Sword in his

behalt. ‘
Mr. At Gen. Had you any difcourfe with the

Duke of Monmouth about it at any time ?

Goodenough, Yes, 1 have difcourfed with the
Duke of Monsouth feveral times.

L. H. Steward. Ay, what did he fay to you a-
bout 1t ?

Goodenough. My Lord, he faid (among other
things) that he hoped my Lord Delamere would
not break his Promife with him ?

L. H. Steward. My Lord Delamere, will you afk
him any Queftions ? - .

L. Dzlamere. No, my Lord. I never faw his
Face before, that I know of, I will affure you.

L. H. Steward. That is pretty firange, {o famous
an Under-Sheriff of London and Middlefex, as he

was.

Mr, At Geir. Then fwear Foues. [Which was
done.] Pray will you give an account what
Mefiage you received from the Duke of Mox-
sotth upon your going over into Holland, and to
':vh?om you were to deliver it, and what became of
It ! '

Foues. My Lord, 1 went to Holland about the
latter end of April laft ; my going, as I have ac-
quainted his Majelty and the Council, was not
only about this Affair, for I had other Bufinefs
that called me thither, which I fhall not now take
up your time, or trouble you with repeating of :
but having fome knowledge from Mr. Difiey,
that there were fome Intentions of doing fome-
thing, tho’ it was communicated to me but very
darkly, and therefore that little I did know, made
me the willinger to go for Holland fo foon as I
did: but before I went, I had a mind to under-
ftand fomething more of the Defign ; and there-
fore the Night before 1 went, I came to Mr. Dif-

2¢y, and acquainted him with my intended Jour- -

ne_y.]_ Mr. Difney did perfuade me againft ir,
thinzing that Thad gone upon this account, but
L told him. the Occafion, which he partly knew,
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but withal I told him, I did intend
to fee the Duke of Meumouth, and if he had any
Meflage that he would have delivered to him,
I would deliver it very fafely. He told me ali the
Meflage I thould deliver to the Dnke of Monsmouth,
if I faw him, was to defire him to keep to the laft
Conclufion, which he would find in a Letter that
had been fent to him, and that if he had not yer
recetved the Letter, it was to come by the Crop-
hat’d Merchant, or the Crop-eard Merchant,
I cannot fay which, but I think it was the Crop-
hair’d, I afked him what that Meffage was, left
the Letter fhould mifcarry; for I told him, if 1
fhould go to the Duke of Moumouth, and refer
him to a Letter wherein 2 Meflage was to be
brought him, which he was to keep to, and that
Letter thould mifcarry, I thould, in effet, bring no
Mefiage at all to him. My Lord, thereupon he
told me, that I fhould acquaint the Duke of Mon-
mouth that his Friends in Eugland would not by any
means have him come for England, bur that he
fhould continue where he was, and if he thought
good to go for Scotland, they approved of it. This
15 the Sum of what he faid to me, as near as I can
remember. When I came to Amflerdam, there was
one M. that was kill’d at Philips- Nor-
ton, went with me to the Duke of Mommonth's,
and when 1 came to him, Iacquainted him, as
Mr, Difuey appointed me to do, that there was
fuch a Letter fent by fuch a Perfon, and that fuch
a Meflage was included in it. My Lord, he was
In a great Paffion, I know not how to exprefs it,
and feemed to be very much troubled, and did
refleét very much upon Major #tldman, and faid,
that was #ildman’s Work ; and he faid, (as I think
that was the word he ufed) Wildimen was a
Villain, or to that purpofe: but withal he faid,
it was too late to fend fuch a Meflage now, and
that he was refolved to come for England ; and
he would make ?7ildmar hang with him, or fight
for it, with him: That #ildman did think by tying
his own Purfe, he thould tye his Fland, bur he
fhould find it fhould not be fo; and fome other
words of the like nature he ufed, but this s the
Subftance of what he faid. He gave fome account
what Preparations had been made ; he faid Money
was very fhort, and he had been fan to pawn
all he had, to raife what Money was raifed upon
his own Charge. He afked me if I did think to
return to England fhortly ; I told him if he had
any fervice to command me for Eugland, I had
fome little bufinefs to do at Rotterdam, which I
would difpatch, and then I would perform his
Commands. He told me, he would be glad I did
return as foon as I could for Eugland, and that
this fhould be the Meffage I fhould carry to //4/d-
man, in anfwer to the Meflage he had fent him,
that he would come for Englend, and he fhould
either fight with him, or hang with him; and
that was all he had to fay to him. I was coming
away from him, but he ftopped me, .and told me
he would not have me go out of Town till he had
fpoke with me again; this was upon the Sunday :
accordingly I did go in the Evening to him, and
when I came, he told me, he would have me
ftay ull Tuefday Morning, for he was going out
of Town, and intended to be back again at that
time ; but if not, I fhould receive from my
Lord Grey what he had to fay to me. He did
not come upon the Tuefday, but my Lord Grey
did ‘come, and I think to the bslt of my remem-
‘ . brance
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brance Mr. Crag was with me; he told me all
he had to fay was, that the Duke intended
to in be England within nine days, and that
upon the Thurfday fevennight after 1 came
away, the Duke would be in Eugland : and he
bid me to remember to tell Brand, that when he
heard the Duke was landed, he fhould acquaint
Sir Robert Peyton with ir, but not till he was
landed 5 for tho' they did think that he would
join with them when the thing was begun, yet
they ought to be careful who it was communi-
cated to, for fear it fhonld be difcwﬂ_'ed nd
difappointed : this was all that T had in com-
mand for my Lord Grey. 1 came to Rosterdam,
and difpatch’d my bufinefs there, and would

have come away, but it happened there were
no Ships coming for Euglond, nor would there

be any in a Fortnight’s time ; thereupon I re-
turned to Amfferdam. When I came back, I
went to fee the Duke, to give him an account
how it happened that I was not gone for Fug-
land. The Duke told me he was glad I was not
gone ; for now he had a further Meflage for me
to carry, and he would have me ftay two or
three days in Town for it. 1 ftay’d three days,
and came again to him, but he told me he was
not rcady for me yet; then I ftad two or
three days longer tll the 21ft of May, to the
beft of my remembrance; 1t was upon a Thurf-
day that he gave me the Meffage that I was to
bring into Enugland. 1 came to him in the Morn-
ing, and he told me I fhould come to him upon
the Evening of that Day, and when I came,
there was a Paper lay before him on the Table,
and he took the Paper and feal’d it up; I cannot
fay he wrote all thar was in that Paper, bur the
Paper that lay before him was not finifhed when
I came in, and that he did not write while I was
there, I am fure; but he took it up and fealed it
before me, and when he had fealed the Paper,
he told me, T muft as foon as I came to Londes,
fee for Captain Mattheies, S Toomas Ariflrong’s
Son-in-Law, who lodged at Mr. Blake’s in Co-
veat-Gardein, and defire him to acquaint my Lord
Macclesfield, my Lord Brandon, and my Lord
Delamere, with his defign of coming for Eugland,
and that he was refolved to fet out upon the
Saturdsy Morning after 1 came away, which
was upon the Friday, He told me Captain Ma-
thews was to fend one poft to that place that was
nimed in the Note to receive Intelligence of his
landing, and that fhould be brought to his
Friends here immediately, (he defigned it fhould
be twenty-four Hours before the Court had
notice of 1t in Town,) and thofe Lords were
to be mn Readinefs, that asfoon as they knew
he was landed, they might repair to their feve-
ral Pofts to affift him, I told him that I would
deliver what Meflage he pave me, and afked
him, what I was to do with the Paper he put in-
to my hands; thereupon, as near as I remember,
he ufed thefe- Expreffions to me; Ido by you,
as Princes do by their Admirals, when they fend
them "out upon any confiderable Expedition,
which requires Secrecy ‘in the Management of
it, they have their Commiffion delivered to
them fealed, which they are not to break open
til they are at Sea. So here I deliver you your
Infiruttions fealed up, which you are not to
open tll you- aré at Sea ; and when you bave
opened them, and read what is contained in
- I
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them, I would have you tear the Paper, and
throw it into the Sea, or otherwife difpofe of i,
left you be furprized and {earched at your land-
ing, and my Papers found about you. My Lord,
I atked him, becaufe I would be as pun@tual in
my Meffage as I could, what thofe Lords were
to do when they came out of Town, whether
they fhould come directly to him or no; he told
me no, not but that they fhould go into the
Country, and fecure their Intereft for him there.
I afk’d him then, 1if Captain Metthews be our of
the way, and I be difappointed of meeting with
him, fhall I deliver this Meflage to the Lords
my felf ? He told me no, by no means, for
thofe Lords were Perfons of Quality, and that
that was not a thing to be done by me. What
fhall 1 then do, my Lord, faid I, if Captain
Matthews be out of the way 2 You need not que-
ftion that, faith he, but if you meet not with
Matthetys, {peak to Wildian. '

My Lord, with thefe Inftruftions (and this as
near as I can remember i1s the Sum of all ke faid

to me) I came away, and came to Sea; when I
was out at Sea, I broke open the Letter that I had
given me by the Duke, and I will tell you as
near as | can, what were the Contents of it there
was written 1n 1t to this Effet .

AUNTON 11 Somerfetthire 75 the place to

which all are to veforty the Perfons to be
acquainted with the time of lauding, are the Lord
Macclesfield, zbe Lord Brandon, and the Lord De-
lamere 3 the Place 1o fend the Coach to, is fo Taun-
ton, lo Mr, Savage’s Houfe at the Red-Lion, Ths
place where the Poft was appointed to relzrn, was
Captain Matthews’s Lodeing, at Mr. Blake's, and
be was 1o receive the Niejfage, or if be did noty be
was to appoint eie that fbould receive it 5 or if it were
to veturin 1o any ollcr place, that was left to bim to do
as he thought fil,

And this was all, as ncar as 1 can remember.
When I had feen this, I came to Londsi, and be-
ing very weary and tired, when I came home, I
went to bed,

Mr, At. Gen, Pray tell the Court as near as you
can, what day it was you came.

Foires. 1 came out of Holland the 22d of May,
I came home the 27th, and looking upon my Al-
manack, I find that it was the Zednefday Fortnight
before the Duke landed, that I came, When I was
come home, I fent for Mr. Difsey, and he came to
me immediately ; I told him I had {een the Duke,
and defired that he would help me to the Speech of
Captain Matthews. He told me he was out of
"Town ; then I defired to fpeak with Major 2¥7ldman,
he told me he was gone out of Town too, Then I
told him I muft deliver my Meflage to him, and [
told this Meffage as I have told your Lordfhips be-
fore, and therefore left 1t to him to convey it to
the Knowledge of thofe Lords that were concerned ;
he did feem to be unwilling, and told me he did not
know how to communicate it to thofe Lords, and
atked me why I would not deliver the Meflage my
felf, 1 told him I did afk the Doke of Moumonth
that very Queftion, whether I might, and he had
forbid me, and ordered me to deliver it either to
Captain AMaithews, or to Major Wildman 5 and
fince they were abfent, 1 knew not any to commu-

nicate it to but only to him, in order to their having
notice
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notice of it, He told me he would do what he

could.
Mr. At. Gen, Pray who were prefent when you

had this Difcourfe with Difuey ¢ _
sues. There was none prefent but himfelf then,

for it was the firft time that I fpoke with him after
I came from Holland 3 1 told him there was a Poft
to go to receive Intelligence which thould bring no-
tice of his landing twenty four Hours before it
could be known at Whiteball, and therefore it were
fit they thould be 1n a readinefs. He did {cruple at
ir, and faid he did not know where to get any one
that could convey the Meflage to them, but he
would do what he could ; and concluded to meetat
night in Smithfield, and he did fo, and there were
rwo Perfons with him, Mr. Crag, and Mr, Lifk,
and another, I think his Name was Brand, and he
took me and Brasd afide,and did afk me where was
the Place that the Poft was to go. I told him
where, and then he did difcourfe of the Duke’s
coming over, but I mentioned not any thing of the
Lords: but only to Difirey 5 and after an Hour's
talk or thereabouts, we parted. I faw Mr. Difuey
once afterwards, but what he did with the Meflage
I cannot tell, he gave me no account of it; I did
indeed before I went out of Town fee him at the
Half- Moon Tavern 1n [ went out of
Town, and met the Duke of Moumonuth at Lyme
where he landed 5 and when I came to him, 1 told
him what I had done with my Meffage, and how
it happened that I could notdeliver 1t to the Perfons
that he had ordered, The Duke told me he was fatis-
fied that I had done what I could, but feemed to be
troubled that Matibews was out of Town., And
this 1s the Sum of what paffed in my Knowledge,
as near as I can remember.

Mr. At. Gen. Had you no Difcowrfe with Difuey
what he had done with the Meffage, when you met
at Sinithfield ¢

Jones. No, becaufe thofe Men were Strangers to
me, and I had never {ven them before.

Mr., 41, Gea, But afterwards had you no Dif-
courfe with Brand nor Lifle about it ?

Jounes, No, notatall: Erand T never fpoke but
once with, and Lifle would not own that he was
the Man that was there,

L. M. Steward, Have you any more Queftions
to alk mm, Mr. Attorney ?

Mr. At Gen. No, my Lord.

L. H. Steward, My Lord Delanere, will your
Lordfhip afk him any Queftions ?

L. Delainere. No, my Lord, I never faw his
Face before this Time, that T know of, in my
Life,

L. H. Steward, Then who do you call next,
Mr. Attorney ?

Mr., 2, Ges. The next Witnefs that we call, my
Lord, is Stary,

‘ [ Who was fwors.
L. M Steward, Well, what do you ask
him ?

Mr. 4t Gen.  Mr. Story, pray will you give an
Account what Notice you had of Fomes’s Mef-
ﬁlge, and what was done upon 1t, and what
Difcourfe you had with any Body concerning my
Lord Defzinere, the Prifoner art the Bar, and with
whom ?

Stery, My Lord, T had Notice of it by one
that lived ar Bifbopfpate, who told me the
2815 of Mey laft, thar M. Fones was returned home

from Holland upon a Meflage from the Duke of
VoL, IV,
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Monmouth, and that he had agreed o 6o to Tauntons
and there he expeéted Mr. Dare or Mr. Williams
to bring an account that the Duke was landed ;
and he faid that Mr. Yones’s Meffage was delivered
to Difuey,- in the ablence of Captain Mattherys,
who was out of Town; that after Difrey had re-
cetved the Meffage from Fowes, he went and had
fome Difcourfe with my Lord Delainere, and thac
that Night my Lord Delaiere went out of Town
with two Iriends, and went a By-way through
Enfield Chafe, towards Hatfield,

Mr, At Gen, Pray when was it you went out of
Town, Story?

Story. The 28th of AMay.

Mer. Ar. Gen. Who went out of Town with you?

d/ory. No body, but I ovettgok Mr, Braid that
Evening,

L. H. Steward, Pray repeat what it was he ac-
quainted you with ¢

§tory. He told me that the Day before, Fones
was returned Home with a Meflage from Holland,

which Meflage was to be delivered to Captain Mar-
thews, but in his abfence Difuey received it; and
that Evening after he had difcourfed with my Lord
Delemeie, my Lord that Might went out of Town,
and two Friends of mine he faid went with him,
and did convey him away by a By-way through
Enficld Chale towards Hatfield,

L. H. Steward, Have you many more Queftions
to afk him, Mr, Attorney?

Mr. At Gen. Pray, Sir, had you any Difcourfe
with the late Duke of Monmontls av Shepton-Malle: 2
and about what ?

L. H. Steward. By the way, Friend, where is
that Brand that you {peak of ?

Story. He 1s kill’d 5 I did not {ee him die, Dbut
he 1s faid to be kill’d at Keinfbam Bridge,

Mr. At. Gen. Pray what Difcourfe had you with
the late Duke of Moumouth about the Prifoner at
the Bar ?

Story. T heard the late Duake of Mousmonth fay at
Shepton-Malfet, that his great Dependance was upon
my Lord Delamere and his Friends in Chefbire, but
he was afraid they had failed him, or betray’d him,
or {fome {uch Word he ufed 5 and he faid he could
have been fupply’d ctherwife, but that he had a
Dependance upon them.

Mr. At. Gen, Pray what Office had you under
the Duke of Mowumonth ?

Stoiy. 1 was Commiffary-General,

Mr. At Gen. Well, we have done with you.

L. H. Steward. Will you afk him any Queftions;
my Lord Delamere 2

L. Délemere. If your Grace pleafe, I have a
Queftion to afk him, |

L. H. Steward. Ay, with all my Heart 5 what
Queftion you will, my Lord.

L. Delanere, My Lord, I defire to know whe-
ther he knows one Saxon,

L. H. Steward, What Saxeu does your Lordfhip
mean, one that was in the Army?

L. Delamere, Yes, one Thomas Saxon,

Stery. Yes, my Lord; I knew him a Prifoner
in Dorchefter Prifon, where I was a Prifoner my felf.

L. H. Stewerd, Hasyour Lordfhip nothing more
to afk him but that ?

L. Delamere, No, my Lord,

Mr. 4. Gen, Now, my Lord, we call fome Per-
fons to prove, that that very Night when Fones
came to Town, my Lord Delamere the Prifoner at

the Bar goes out of Town without.any Servant,
Gg changes
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changes his name, and goes a By-way : Swear Vaux

and Edlin.
[Vaux was fworn.

L. H, Steward, Well, what fays this Man ¢

Mr, At Gen. Pray give my Lords an account
whither you went out of Town with my Lord De-
Jasere, and when?

Vaux. My Lord, perhaps I may not remember
the very words that I gave my Evidence in before,
but I will repeat the Subftance,

Mr. At. Gen. It is not fo longago, but youmay
eafily recolleét your felf ; pray what day was 1t
that my Lord Delamere fent for you?

Vaux, The 26th Day of May, and I went out of

Town the 2715,
Mr., A Gen. You are upon your Oath, and

you muft remember you are fworn to tell the
Truth, the whole Truth, and nothing but the
Truth,

Faux. Sir, I fhall take care to do 1t as far as |
can remember,

Mr, At. Gen, Whither was it that he fent for

ou?

’ Vaux. To the Rummer Tavern in Queenflreet,
and the next day I went out of Town with
him,

Mr. At Gen. What day of the Month did you
go out of Town?

Vaux. It was the 274 day of May.

Mr. At Gen. What time of the night was it
you went out of Loudon ?

Vaux, It was about nine or ten of the clock.

Mr. At Gen, What name did my Lord Dela-
mere then go by ?

Vaux. He went by the name of Brown.

Mr, At Gen. My Lord, I would acquaint your
Grace, that this is an unwilling Witnefs, and
we are forc’d to pump all out of him by Que-
ftions ?

Vaux, @do tell you the Truth of all that I
know.

Mr. 4:. Gen. How far did you ride that
night ?

Vaux, To Hoddefdos,

Mr. At. Gez. What time did you get thi-
ther ?

Vaux. About twelve of the clock,

Mr. At. Gen, Whither did you go then ?

Vaux. We went to Hitchin, and I return’d back
again the next Day.

Mr. At. Gen. Whither was my Lord Delamere
going then ?

Vaux, To fee his Son that was fick in the Coun-
tl'y.

L, H. Steward. What! he told you fo, did
he ?

Vaux, Yes, my Lord.

_. I\fI:‘r. At. Gen, What other Company went with
you :

Varx, Two Gentlemen, theone I knew, the o-
ther I did not.

Mr. At. Gen. What was the Name of him you
did know ?

Vaux. It was Edlin,

Mr, A4t. Gen. Pray was that the dire Road to
Chefbire that you went ?

Vaux. We made it our Way,

Mr. 4t. Gen. You made it your Way; but I
afk you whether it be the beft Way ?

Vaux, 1t is the freeft Road from Dutft.

Mr b Ges, But 1 afk you a plain Que-
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ftion, upon your Oath is it the beft way into CJe.

fhire 2

Vaux. Truly, my Lord, I do not know that.

L. H. Steward, Pray who gave you Diredi.
ons to call my Lord Delamiere by the rame of
Brown ¢

Vaux. Himfelf, my Lord,

L. H. Steward. Was that the firft time my Lord
went by that name, as you know of ?

Vaux. Yes, my Lord, I never heard that lie was
called by that name ull that time.

L. Délamere. 1 was call’d by the name of Browy:
at that time, and I will give your Grace an ac-
count by and by of the reafon of it.

L. H. Stewerd. Tas your Lordfhip any Queftion
to afk him ?

L. Delamere. No, my Lord,

L. H. Steward. Then go on to the next.

Mr., At Gen. Our next Witnefs 15 Edlin, pray
fwear him, [which was done.] Pray will you give
my Lords and the Court an account whither you
went with my Lord Delasere out of Town, and
when ?

Edlin, The 29th of May halt, I was at the
Cuftom-Houfe, and there came Mr. Paux, the Gen-
tleman that was here laft, who told me he was
ooing out of Town as far as Hitchin, and afked
me to go along with him s he faid he was to go
that Evening. I afked him what time he intended
to return ¢ he told me, he was refolved to return
the next Day. I told him, then I would go along
with him, and we appointed the place of meeting
to be at the Bell-Inn i Coleinan-firect 5 when [
came there, he faid there was a Friend that was
ooing along with him, one Mr, Brows, we went as

far as Hoddefdour that night.

Mr. At G:n. Pray, Mr. Edlin, will you look up-
on that Gentleman that ftands at the Bar; 1s that
he that went by the name of Brown 2

Editn. Yes, my Lord, that is he.

Mr, At Gen, Well then, what time did you fet
out ?

Edlin, It was very near nine of the clock.

Mr. At, Gen, Pray when was 1t that Paux mer
you at the Cuftom-Houfe ¢

Edlin, 1t was about ten of the clock in the
Morning.

L. H. Steward, Pray did you hear or know up-
on the Road, whither he was going?

Edlin, My Lord, 1 did never fee my Lord D:la-
mere before in my life.

L. H. Steward. Butdid not he tell you as he went
along, whither he was going ?

Edlin. He faid he was going for Chefbire to feca

fick Child.

Mr. At Gen. You fay, Sir, that
for Hoddefdoir 2

Edlin, We did {o, my Lord.

Mr, At. Gen, Pray, Sir, how long were you
riding that, from the Bel in. Coleman-fiieet ta
Hoddefdon ?

Edlin. Ttwas three hours I believe, or about three
lours and a half,

Me. At. Gen. Then you rid hard out of Town.

Edlin. My Lord, it was towards nine of the clock
when we got on Horfeback, and it was about
twelve or a little more, when we came to Hod-
defdon.

L. H. Steward, Well, Mr. Attorney, is that all
you have to afk him?

Mr, At Gen, Yes, my Lord,

you went firlt

L. H,
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Pannceford. Mr. Edlin, about the latter end of
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7. H. Steward, Will you afk him any Queftions,

my Lord Delanstie ¢

 Delamere. No m Lord. |
{\-;Ir.Dj}iﬁgu. Then,y my ‘L{er, to confirm this

Fvidence, and to explan It I thall call you a
couple of Witnefles to prove_that this Gentlemar}
went by the name of quwn in the Cant of thofe
that were engaged in this Bufinefs, that the name
was known as his name by all the Party, and
called fo conftantly In their Letters and Mefla-
ges. Swear Tracey Pannceford, and Thomas Ba-
o (W hich was done.

7. H Steward. Which will you begin with
firft ¢

Mr. At Gen. We begin with Paunceford.  Pray
will you give his Grace and thele Lords an account
what difcourfe you heard at Difugy’s concerning the
Prifoner at the Bar, and what name was he ufually
all’ in your Mectings. _
mlliifﬁizfard?r My Lord;g I fhall give as juft an
~ccount as I cany 1 was acquainted with Mr, Difuey,
and the 1415 of Fuie T was at his Houle.

7. H. Stewerd. What Fuise do you mean:

Panicefsrd, Laf Fune, my Lord, and there were
three more befides, one Fofbua Lack, and a Country
Gentleman thac I have underftood fince to be one
Hooper, and therc was one Helfey 5 and being there,
Lock ftaid for fome Declarations.

.. . Stewaid. What Declarations were thofe you
fpeak of ? | .

Paunceford. The Declarations of the late Duke
of Monmouth.

L. H. Stewword. Were they printed at that
time

Pounceford. They were not ready at four of the

Clock in the Afterncon; but about nine of the
Clock they were finifhed, and three were printed

off, and were delivered to Fofbue Lock, and when
he had recelved them at that time, there was a
difcourfe of having them fent into Chefaire to one
Mr. Brown, After we had received them, we came
over the Water together, and we landed at Sefif-
bury Stairs, and Lack was very earneft for going
out of Town that night, with thofe three Declara-
tions, which, as he faid, were to be carried to one
Mr. Brozew @ This was at nine of the Clock, and
{o we pareed.

L. . Stervard, Pray into what Country was he
to carry them ?

Pannceford. A lile way out of Town, he
[aid.

L. I1. §tzward, Jult now you faid they were to
co to Chefhire.

Paunceford, My Lord, the Difcourfe at Difuey’s
Houfe was, that they were to be {ent into Chefbires
but when we came over the Water, Lock {ald
he was to go a little out of Town to one Mr,
Browit,

Mr, Af, Gen, Pray who was that Mr. Brewsn as
they meant, as you apprehended ?

Paunceford. T underltoed Mr. Brown to be my
Lord Delainere by fome difcourfe.

L. H, Stezeard, Whofe difcourfe did you un-
derftand it by ? *

Paiceford, The firlt time, my Lord, that I
heard of my Lord Delamere’s going by the name
of Brewn, was upon a difcourfz with one
Edlin.

L. H. Stexward, Prithee tell us what chat dif-

courfe thou hadft with Edlz, was,
Yo, 1V,

May laft, went out of Town, as I heard, and
when he came back againm, -1 afked him whither
he went? he faid he was invited by a Friend to
oo with him out of Town, and my Lord Dels-
mere went along with them, and went by the name
of Brown.

Mr, 4t Gen. What Diflcourfe had you with
Difuey, or any body elfe about my Lord D:fe-
mere’s going by the Name of Brown ?

Paunceford. Mr, Difuey did ufe to mention my
Lord Delamere by the name of Brown,

Mr, 42 Ges. Pray were you at any Meeting
with any body, and whom, atany Tavern, and
what Tavern, where any fuch difcourfe wis
had ?

Parnceford. My Lord, I was at a Meeting at
the Caftle-Tavern with Mr. Vermnyden, and my
Brother Bebington, and one Manning 3 but there
was no mention then of any Brews that I remem-
ber, nor of my Lord D:amere, but only there
was fomething m relation to the landing of the
Duke of Moiumonth 3 the Queftion was afked where
he was to land, and Mr, Permmyden made anfwer he
did not know.

L. H. Stcward. Will your Lordfhip pleafe to
afk this Wignefs any Queftions, my Lord ?

L. Delainere. Pray, Sir, did you ever know any
body elfe that went by the name of Brown be-
fides me ¢

Paunceford. May Ianfwer this Queftion, my Lord?

L. H. Steward. Anfwer it! yes you muft, you are
{worn to tell the Truch, and the whole Truth, Man.

Paunceford. My Lord, there was a difcourfe of
Mr. Peramnydei’s going by the name of Biowa,

L. H. Steward, Will you alk him any more
Queftions, my Lord ?

L., Delamere, No, my Lord.

L. H, Steward, Then go on, Mr. Attoriey.

Mr. At Gen, Pray, Mr. Babington, do you tell
my Lords what you know of my Lord Deluzrere’s
coing by the name of Browu.

Babington. My Lord, I fhall give an account.
When I firlt knew any thing of the Tranfations,
I was with my Brother Pawiceford, Mr., Verimydei,
and one Chadwick that went nto the Weft, and
there was a difcourfe of two Gentlemen that went
by names I did not know; Brows was one, and
I was defirous to know who was meant by it 1
was at that time but newly acquainted witlt the
Concerns of thefe People; and fo I found they
were fearful to entruft me:  but afterwards I was at
the Caflle-Tavern where my Brother, and my Un-
cle Vermuydenr was, and 1n dilcourfe of Mr. Brown,
fome body happered to name my Lord Delasmerc’s
name, but he was prefently taken up; you mean
Mr. Brewn. Ay, faith he, Ido.

L. H. Stezard. About what time was this, pray
you ¢

Babington, About the middle or latter end of May
laft,

Mr, Az, Gen. Were you at Difuey’s when the
Declarations were printed there ?

Babiugton. Mr. Auorney, I will give an account
of that afterwards, but I have fomething elfe to fay
firft.  Atter this, I was diligent to know of my
Uncle Peramyden and my Brother, who this Mr,
Brown was: my Uncle told me 1t was my’ Lord
Delamere, and defired me whenever I difcourfed of
him, to call him by that name, and I have very
good reafon to believe Mr, Vermuyden knew of the

Gga matter,
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wmatter, becaufe he was acquainted with a great
many of that fort of People, and declared he had
collected and knew of Moneys that were gathered
for that Purpofe; and he had a good account of
Monionth’s landing, and of the Force he had In
the Weft, and how long it was prefumed that he
could maintain that Force without Affiftance irom
any body clfe; and fo I prefume he was very well
acquainted with the whole Tranfaction. Afterwards
{ happened to be at Difirey’s over the Water, there
was my Brother Paunccford, Mr. Helfey, and my

ielf.
Mr. At Gez. ‘Tell what pafled there at that time.

Bebington. Difney thew’d me a Declaration that
was not perfected quite, but after that we fell into
a difcourfe about Mr. Brown, and afterwards my
Lord Deleinere’s name was named by fome body,
that fome of the Declarations were to be fent to
him 3 and I remember Mr. Difzey faid he was a-
fraid my Lord Délamere was not capable of doing
that Service that was expected from him n Chefliiie
for want of fome of thofe Declarations, which would
be mighty ufeful to him to inform the People, they
being Momsieutl’s Declarations,

L. H, Stcwerd, Had Lsck any of thofe De-
clarations away for that Mr. Biown you fpeak
of ?

Babiugton. I never knew Lock, my Lord.

Mr, At Gey, What number of Declarations did
Difuey print 2

Babington, Difucy told us he hoped 1n twenty
four Hours to have 500 printed, a good number
of them were to be fent to my Lord Delaiueie, and
feveral of them were difperfed.

L. H. Steward. Have you any more Queftions
to afk him, Mr. Attorney ?

Mr. At Gen, No, my Lord.

L. H, Steward, Will you atk him any Qucftions,
my Lord Delaineie ¢

L. Delajueic. No, my Lord.

Mr. 4t Gen. Then may 1t pleafe your Grace,
the next Witnefs we fhall being, fhall be to
prove that my Lord D:amere took frequent
Journies backward and forward, in a very litile
compafs of time, and the fame Witnefs will like-
wile rell you whar Difcourle he bad with my
Lord during the very time of Aeumoutl’s Re-
bellion, to ftir vp the People to join with him.
Swear Hope, [Which <was done.] Pray tell my
Y.erds what difcourfe you had with my Lord Di-
laimere, and when?

Hope. Upon the Sunday before the Coronation,
my Lord Delameire came down Polt to my Houle,
towards his own Houfe in Chefbire—

L. H. Stewaird, Prithee where is thy Houfe ?
Tor thefe noble Lords do not know thee, per-
}mps fo well asIdo; therefore tell us where it
1s.

Hope, My Lord, my Houfe is at the Three-
Tuns 1n Covenlry.

L. H. Steward. Well; eo on, tell what thou
knoweft.

Hope. Some time after that he came down
Poft again, and a little after he went up again
Poft, and he told me he went down arcther
way ; and after that, the 21ft of Fwne, he came
down Poft again, this was upon 2 Sunday, the
}Surzid:éy Sceven-night alter the Duke of Momiontis
anded.

Mr_. A, Genr, Had he any Servant with him at
¢that time?

w
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Hope, Yes, he had.

L. H. §teward. Had he a Servant with him every
time he came down 'Poft?

Hope, No, he camc over, I remember, withoyr
any Servant, only with a Poft-Boy.

L. H, Steward, Well, and what cifcourle had
you with him at that, or at any other time?

Hope, My Lord, that Sunday the 21ft of
Fune, my Houle was very full of People to ea-
quite News; it being in the time of tihe Re-
bellion, every one was defirous to know how
things went: and there was onc figram In the
Houfe, that came to me, and afked what News
from Louden, for they fay, faith he, that the
Duke of Albemerle 15 killed, and his Flears;
brought to #eftininficr Abbey. Thereupon I know-
ing my Lord Delamere was come from Loiasi, 1
went into the Room to my Lord, and defired to
know of his Lordfhip what was the News in
Londen. He told me he was lirtle at Courr, and
therefore could not tell much News, I then
afked him what he heard concerning the Duke
of Albemeries fuid I, they fay here he 1s killed,
Saith my Lord, I am forry for 1t, it it be fo,
but I fear itistoo truey bur if he be killed, it
is faid he 15 killed by his owa Party, I afked
him Liow ¢ He told me, a Party of the Dulie of
Albciarl?’s Men were commanded to fire at the
Duke of Mozmeuth’s Men, but infiead of fhee:-
ing at them, they fhot into the Ground, upon
which they were very fevercly handicd by then
Officers ; which fo enrzged them, that they fired
upon them, and killed feveral of them, =nd
amorgft crhers, the Duke of Aleimarte vwas killed s
and he told me the Duke of Mowmenuth had fovera
Ficld-Picces, and Arms fufficient for ncar thirty
thoufand Men.

Mr, At. Gei, Pray, did he thew you any Places
in any Maps ?

Hape. There was 1 the Room Adais’s Map
of Insland, and my Lord Délemere fhewed me
which way Alewmonth went, and pointed out
fuch and fuch Towns thar he was pofleffed of ;
and withal fud, he did fear there would be many
blcody Nofes before the Bulinefs was at an
end.

Mr. At. Gen. FHow many times do you think
my Lord did ride pott to and fro?

Hope. About five times, [ believe.

L. H. Steward.  'Within what fpace of time?

Hope. From the Sunday Sev’night before the
Coronation to the Twenty-firlt of Fure follow-
Ing.

L. H, Stewerd. Have you done with him, Mr,
Altoricy ¢

Mr, At Gen. Yes, my Lord.

L. Delemere. My Loid High Steward, with your
Grace’s Leave, may I afk this Witnefs any Que-
ftions ¢

L. H. Steward, Ycs, my Lord, what you
pleafe.

L. Delaiizere. Pray, did I go down poft four or
five times, do you fay 1n that {pace ?

Hope. My Lord, I fay you did go fo often back-
ward and {orward. .

L. Dileizere. What time was that, you fay,
I came without any Servani, only with a Poft-
boy ¢

Hope. I cannot tell.

L. H. Stewzard. Wil your Lordfhip afk him any
more Queflions ?

1. D:la-



1685, Weltm.
1. Delgmere. Mo, my Lord.

Mr, At Gen. Then, my Lotd, we defire
Thomas ‘Saxor -may be fworh : [Whichwas done.)

Pray, Mr.-Saxor, will you .give "an account to

his Grace and my Lords, what you know of

my Lord Delazere, the Prifoner at thﬁe Bar, con-
cerning any Infurre€tion or Rebellion defigned by
him in-Cheftie, and when ¢

Savon. At the beginning of Fare laft, T was
fent for to Mere, my Lord Delamere’s Houfe in
Chefbire, where when I came I was conveyed in-
to 2 lower Room, where were my Lord Delamere,
Siv Rebert Cotton, and Mr. Crew Offfey, and they
told me I was recommended to them by my Lord
Brandon, who had faid, I was an honeft uf¢ful
Man, and they hoped I would prove fo: For
they had fent to the Duke of Moumonth, who
was in Holland, and received an Anfwer by one
Yoies, and as foon as they had an anfwer, my
Lord Delamere came away poflt into the Country
under another Name, and by being conveyed
through Morefields, came down to raife ten
thonfand Men for the Duke of Monimouth in Che-
fhire, by the firft of Faune; but now they had con-
fidered of 1t, and found they could not raife
them wll Midfummer, for they mult have time to
raife & Sum of Money, forty thoufind Pounds in
that Country, to mamtain the Men. They afked
me whether 1 would not undertake to carry a
Meffage to the Duke ot AMoimonth : I told them
I would, and I had there gtven me cleven Guineas,
and five Pounds in Silver for my Journey, and I
did hire a Horle afterwards, and did deliver my
Meflage to the Duke of Monmonih.

L. H. Stewara, When was this, do you fay ?

Sexoin.  'This was the beginning of Fune.

L. H. Steward, What Day of Fune ?

Saxeir. 1 cannottell to a day, whar day in Fause
it was, for 1 did not fet it down ; but I believe
it was the third or fourth of Frae.

L. H. Steward, How came you to be recom-
mended by my Lord Brewdon to thefe Gentle-
men ¢ Were you acquainted with my Lord Bran-
doir ¢

Saxer, 1 was acquainted with him : The firft
nme I was with him was at Over, the next time
was at my Lord’s own Houfe,

Mr. 2t Gar Ay, pray tell my Lord, how
you came acquanted with my Lord Brai-
dois ?

Saxon. Upon the Monday in Eafier Week laft,
being at Over, I was fent for by my Lord Brax-
dop to drink a Glafsof Ale, and fmoke a Pipe of
Tobacco with him s and when I came thither,
my Lord told me he had a defire to be acquainted
with m¢ 5 {o we drank a confiderable while 5 and
he was attended at that time with one Hollinfbead,
and one Mr. Lee.  And after we had drank pretty
{martly, and after fome Difcourle, Lee and Hol-
Lifbead went forth, being called out to fpeak
with foime body, about an Eftate or a Tenement
that they were concerned in.  After they were
gone out, my Lord Drendon began to difcourfe
about the FEle@ions of Parliament-Men, how
unfairly they had been carried @ he faid, he ftood
both for the Town ard County of Lancafter,
but had loft it by an unfair Eleétion ; for the o-
ther Party had made fevenfcore Freeinen in one
Night in the Town, and by that means had car-
ried it agamft him; which had exafperated the
Country fo much, that they were refolved to

I
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make it an occalion of rafing up the ‘Country 1n
Arms, under pretence of maintaining the Chri-
ftian Englifh Libertics; and that they had a defien
- o
to fend for the Duke of Mommonth, and make
him King, and that they muft make ufe of fuch
Men as me, that were Men of Intereft in the
Country, to ftir -up the People to rife in Arms :
and if 1 would come to Gofeverth, his Houfe, upon
the Monday after, he would tell me more of
that Bufinefs, I went according to the time, and
there he told me a great deal to the fame purpofs,
and withal he fhewed me a Letter that he had writ-
ten to the Duke of Adbwmonth 3 which Letier I afe
terwards faw at Bridewater.

L. H. Steward. FHave you any more Queltions to
afk him?

Mr. 4t Gen. No, my Lord ; but if my Lord
Delainere pleafe to afk  him any Queftions he
may.

L, Delomere. 1 humbly pray he may repeat the
Evidence he hath given againft me, for I have not
heard what he has faid.

L. H. Stewnrd, Turntoward my Lord Delsriere,
and repeat the Evidence that you gave againft him,
fo as he may hear you.

[Which be did 1o the fame Effet cs before.

L. H. Steward. Pray, from whom did you re-
cetve that Money ?

saxon, 1 received it from my Lord D-lusese.

L. H. Sieward. My Lord Delamere, ~will you
afk him any Queftions ? '

L. Delasere. Yes, may it pleale your Grace.

L. H. Steward, Then the Method you are 1o
take, is.this, yon muft propound your Queftions
to me, and then I will propound them to the
Witnefs 2

L. Delciere. 1 defire to know, may it pleafe
your Grace, when was the firft ame that he
declared this that he has now fworn againtt
me ?

L, H Stewerd. My Lord defires to know of
you, when it was that you frlt made known this
againft him ? .

L. Delgsere. And to whom, my Lord 7

§axon, 1 {uppoie I told Mr. Sterey of it firlt,
my Lord, at Doreheficr after I was taken Prifoner
{or the Rebellion.

L. Deleiere, When did he tell it Slrev, my
Lord?

Saxer. I think it was a Fortnight after my ac-
quaintance with him.

L. I, Steward, Were you then in the fame Pri-
fon with Storey.

Saxon, Yes, T lay with him in the fame Bed.

L. Delainere. 1f your Grace pleale, I wouldafk
him another Queftion,

L. H, Steward. Ay, what you will,

L. Delamere. 1 defire to know, when was the
firt time that he made Oath of this, and vpon
what occafion 1t was ¢

L. H. Steward, What fay you to that?
Saxon, The firft time I made Oath of 1t, was

when I lay fick., |
L. Delamere. Will your Grace pleafe to aflc him

where that was, and when ?
Saxon, It was before his Majefty’s Counfel-

lors, that were fent to take my Examination in
Newgate. - _

L., H, Steward, Prithee, 1 do not know when
thou cameft to Newgate, 1t may be thou halt been

there oftner than once,
. S:?:‘:GH.




290
Saxon, 1 save my firft Information immediately
after 1 was brought to Town, when 1 was remo-
ved from Dorchefter Goal to Newgate,
L. Delainere. My Lord, I defire your Grace
would afk him what time he came up ?

Saxon. The beginning of the laft Term.

L. Delamere. Then 1 defire to know, my Lord,
whether he did remain a Prifoner in the Country
all the other Time ?

Sason, Yes, I did fo, from the Tenth of F#ly,
til the Time that T was brought up to MNew-

ale,
s L.. Delamere, My Lord, 1 defire to know of
him, whether I had ever imployed him about any
of my Concerns, that jhould give me an occalion
of trufting him with fuch Secrets ?

L. H, Steward. What Bufinefs of Importance
had my Lord Delamecie ever imploy’d you about
before this time ?

Saxon. 1 was never imploy’d about any Con-
cerns of my Lord Deamere’s before that time,
neither was I ever in his Company, but only
then, and then as recommended by him to
him for they faid, they muft make ufe of {uch
as me to make their Defigns known to the
Country, for the accomplifhing what they did

intend.
L. Delamere. Recommended by him, who does

he mean ¢

Saxon. By my Lord Brandon.

L. Delamere. If your Grace pleafe, I defire
to know what the Bufinefs was that he was to
dor

Saxer, 1 was to inform the Country concern-
ing the time of the Rifing, my Acquaintance
abounded that way, and by their Iuicourfe they

had got Men in every Place to acquaint the
Country when they fhould nife.

L. H. Steward, Were you acquainted with any
oreat Number ? o

Saxon. My Lord, I was a publick Tradefman
in Middleewich, and much acquanted with the ordi-
nary fort of People,

L. Delamere. My Lord, he fays he was fent for
to my Houfe, I delire to know who was the
Meflenger thatr was feat for him ?

Sexon. My Lord, I did alk him his Name,
but he would not tell 1t me; he told me he
was but a Tenant to my Lord D:famere, and had
been imployed in fuch Bufinefles for my Lord
Delameie’s Father, Sir George Bosth y he was a
lame Man in one Arm, for he had his Hand
thot away at the Siege of Nantwich.

L. Delamere. It was Tom Long- the Carricr,
I fuppofe, or fome fuch Fellow or other, that I
fent for him 3 my Lord, I defire to know what
time of Day or Night was it when he came to my
Houle ¢

Soxon. It was juft when it began to be
dark, the Meflenger came to me 1n the After-
noon to fetch me thither, and I fent for a Man’s
Torfe that lived near me, and when it was
brought me, he afked me what made me go {o
late 5 I told him I had occafion to go late, and
I fhould return late, and the Man ftaid at my

Houfe for his Horfz till 1t was late: but I not
coming Home, he left order for his Horfe to be
brought to him.

L. Delainere. WNext, my Lord, 1 defire to know
when he came to my Houfe, whether he did a-

!
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light from his Horfe at the Stables that belong to
the Houle or no?

Saxor. 1 did alight juft at the Old-Buildings,
and the Man’s Horfe that came with me and mine
were taken into the Stables.

L. Delgmere. Pray, my Lord, afk him who
took his Florfe from him :

Saxon. The Man that came with me, and
he went into the Foufe and brought out a
Candle.

L. Delainere. My Lord, 1 would afk him whe-
ther the Door he was let in at, was that which was
neareft the Stable, or which Door ? .

L. H. Steward. Do you know what Door of the
Houle you were let in at?

L. Delamere. My Lord, I afk him whether it
were the next Door to the Stable?

Saxeir. My Lord, I cannot very well give an
account of that, for I never was at the Houle
before.

L. Delgwere. Pray, my Lord, let him recolledt
himfelf, whether 1t were the Door next the Stable
Or not,

L. H. Steward, Ay, with all my Heare, if he
can,

Sexon, 1 did not {ee any other Door bur that I
came in at, and therefore I cannot tell which
Door 1t was.

L. Delaiieie. Thele Queftions, my Lord, T take
to be proper for me toafk, and I belizve I {hall
make 1t appear to your Grace to be fo by and
by.

L. H. Steward. Good my Lord, take your full
Liberty, and afk what Queftions you pleafe s
for I know my Lords here will be very well plea-
fed that you have all the Scope allowed you that
can be,

L. Delgiere, T humbly thank your Grace ; 1
dgefire to know of him, who let him into the
Houle ?

Saxon. The Man that came with me went
with me juft to the Door, and let me in within
the Door, and I faw no other Man but that Man,
tl] I came into the Room where my Lord and
thofe two Gentlemen were.

L. Delamuere. Was there no Body elfe but we
there ?

Saxoi. No, you were fo wife, you would let
no Body be by,

L. D:lamere. My Lord, I fhall trouble this Wit~
nefs no farther at prefent.

L. H. Steward, Then Mr, Attorney-General, will
you proceed !

Mr. A, Ger. My Lord, we fhall give no more
Evidence at prefent, but fhall reft here till we

fee what Defence this Noble Lord will make for
him[elf.

L. H. §leward, Then, my Lord Delaiicre, your
time 15 now come to make your Defence, you have
heard what has been evidenced zgainft you, and
my Lords now expect to hear what you have to
fay for your {cif.

L. Delainere. May 1t pleale your Grace, a
great Part of the Day 1s fpent, and I would beg
the Favour of your Grace, that I may have the
Favour till to-morrow Morning to review the
Notes I have taken, and then 1 fhall make my

Defence.
L. Il Steward, My Lord Delasere, 1 had
this very thing in my Thoushis before 1 came
hither
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' this Day, becanfe 1 did forefee that this
{:rl:lslell;l{ely to b}:; a long Caufe, and the proceed-
inos in it would take up much time: I have a
lit?le doubt, I muft needs fay, in my own Mind,

whether it may be done by Law ; I know very
well, if this were a Trial in full Parliament,

there have been Precedents to warrant th:;:- Ad-
journment ill another Day, though it be in the
midt of a Trial; and in the middle of the
Fvidence : But this Court I take to be of L:he
fame nature, though of a degree higher, with
the other ordinary Courts of Judicature ; and
whether it be not cobliged and tied up to the
fame Method of Proceedings with thofe other
Courts, where all Capital Offences are tried,
is a thing I am in fome doubt about: In thofe
Courts it has not been ufual to adjourn the
Court after Evidence given; nay, 1t has been
fometimes a Queftion, whether the Judges in

thofe Courts, after the Jury are gone from the
Bar, to confider of their Verdift, could adjourn

themfelves : I fay, the Judges have fometimes
made a Doubt of it, though I know the Point
is now fettled, and the Practice is, that they
may, and do. But thisis moft certamn, after the
Lvidence given, the Jury cannot be adjourned,
but muft proceed in their Enquiry, and be kept
together till they are agreed of their Verdidt ;
this has caufed fome Hefitancy in me, what the
Law may be in this Cafe ; therefore I think it may
be proper to confult with my Lords the Judges ;
for I defire the ching may be confidered and fet-
tled.

L. Declamere. My Lord, I humbly beg this Fa-
vour of your Grace, but to adjourn till to-mor-
oW,

L. H. Steward, With all my heart, my Lord, if
it may be done by Law.

L. Delamere. 1 hope it may, my Lord, and I beg
that Favour of your Grace.

L. H. Steward, My Lord, 1 fhould be very
glad to comply with your Lordthip’s Defires,
but truly I have confidered it, and do doubt
whether I can by Law do it: In full Parliament
it is clear 1t may be done, but upon this Com-
miffion, after my Lords the Peers are once char-
ged, and the Evidence partly given, whether I
can then adjourn them till another Day, is with
me a Doubt. My Lords, if your Lordfhips
pleale, before fuch time as my Lord, the Prifo-
ner at the Bar, enters upon his Defence, I will
with your leave propound the Queftion to my
Lords the Judges, and hear their Opinion what
the Law is.

L. Delemere. My Lord, I fhall hardly be able
to fintfth all T have to fay in any convenient time
this Day.

L. H. Steward, Bur, my Lord, if an Adjourn-
ment cannot be by Law, I cannot help it

L. Delossere. There has a great deal been faid,
and 1t will require a great deal of time to give it an
Anfwer,

L. H. Steward. Ay, but if it cannot be done as
you would have it, we muft be contented to ftay
the longer together 3 for I would not abridge
you of your Defence : therefore, my Lords the
Judges, if you will pleafe to go together and
confider of it, and report your Opinions, what

the Law is in this Cafe, we will ftay till you
come again.

for High-Treafon.
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Then the Fudges withdrew into the Exchequer

Chamber,

E. of Nottinghass. My Lord High Steward, 1 da
humbly concetve this is a Matter that con-
cerns the Privilege of the Peers; and becaufe
it 1s 2 matter that doth fo much concern the
whole Peerage, 1 think my Lords here ought
in fome meafure to concern themfelves about
it : Therefore, my Lord, I have a fhort Mo-
tion to make to your Grace, That, confidering
the Confequence that the Precedent of this
Cafe may draw with it, fince my Lords the
Judges are gone, together to confult of this
Point, of which, I may fay, they are not al-
together the fole Judges; we may alfo with-
draw to confider of this Matter with them, be-
caufe it may not be proper for my Lords in
publick here, to offer what they may have to
fay, to incline my Lords the Judges in their
Judgments one way or other. .

L. Falonberg. My Lord, I humbly offer
this to your Grace, upon the Motion that this
Noble Lord has made, That, with Submiffion,
I take this to be a thing that concerns the Pri-
vilege of Peerage only, and I conceive the Judges
are not concerned to make any Determina-
tion of that Matter. I think therefore, my
Lords here ought to retire with them to confider
of it

L. H. Steward, My Lords, I think, with Sub-
miffion to your Lordfhips, that this is a Queftion
naturally proper for my Lords the Judges to give
their Opinions in, Whether this Court, as a
Court of Judicature for the Trial of this Noble
Lord, may, in the midft of the Tral, adjourn
till another Day: And the Privilege of the
Peerage cannot at all come in queftion here, as I
COncelve.

L. Falconberg. My Lord, that we conceive
is a Pomt of Privilege, which certainly the
inferior Courts can have no power to deter-
mine.

L. H. §teward, If your Lordfhips have a mind
to withdraw, you may.

Lords, Ay, withdraw, withdraw.

Then the Peers withdrew, and after balf an bour the
Judges relurned and tock thesr Places as before,
and after about an bour the Peers veturned to thair

former Places.

L. H. Steward, My Lords the Judges, have
you confidered the Matter that has been
propofed to you, and what 15 your Opi-
nion ?

L. C. . Herbert, May it pleale your Grace,

the Judges, 1In obedience to your Grace’s Com-
mands, have withdrawn, and conlidered of
what your Grace propofed to them, and with
humble Submiffion they take the Queftion to be
this.

Not, Whether your Grace may adjourn your
Commiffion from one day to another, for that
is clear you may, and has been practifed, for
that is the Cafe of the Earl of Somerfer anc his
Wife

But the Queftion is, Whether afteg the Pri-
foner is upon his Trial, and the Evidence for

the King is given, the Lords being, as we may
term
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term it, charged with the Prifoner, the Peers
Triers may feparate for a time, which is the
Confequent of an Adjournment to another
Day.

And, my Lord, the Judges prefume to ac-
quaint your Grace, that this is a matter wholly
new to them, and that they know not, upon re-
colleftion of all that they can remember to have
read, that either this matter was done, or que-
ftioned, whether it might or might not be done
in any Cafe.

My Lord, if the matter had been formerly
done, or been brought into queftion In any
Cafe, where it had received a determination,
and reported in any of our Books of Law, then
it would have been our duty to contribute all
our Reading and Experience for the Satisfattion
of this great Court: But being, as it 15, a new
Queftion, and a Queftion that not only concerns
the particular Cafe of this Noble Lord at the Bar,
but 1s to be a Precedent in all Cafes of the like
nature for the future: Al we can do Is, to ac-
quaint your Grace and my Noble Lords, what
the Law is in the infertour Courts in Cafes of
the Itke nature, and the Reafon of the Law in
thofe Points, and then Jeave the Junfdition of
this Court to its proper Judgment,

My Lord, in the firft place, where the Trial
15 by a Jury, there the Law is clear, the Jury
once charged can never be difcharged till they
have given their Verdiét, this is clear ; and the
reafon of that is, for fear of Corruption, and
tampering with the Jury.  An Officer is {fworn
to keep the Jury together without permitting
them to feparate, or any one to converle with
them; for no Man knows what may happen,
tor (though the Law requires honeft Men fhould
be returned wpon Juries, and without a known
Objection they are prefumed to be probi &
legales homnnes, yet) they are weak Men, and
perhaps may be wrought upon by undue Appli-
catlons.

‘This, my Lord, 1tis faid, fails in this Cafe,
becaufe the Lords that arc to try a Peer, are
Perfons of that great Integrity and Honour, that
there is not the leaft Prefumption of their being
to be prevail’d upon in any fuch way 3 and for that
reafon, becaufe of the Confidence which the Law
repoles (and juftly) in Perfons of their Quality,
they are not fworn as common ordinary Jurors
are, but are charged and deliver their Verdict
upon Honour,

My Lord, in the Cafe of a Trial of a Peer
in Parliament, as your Grace was pleafed to ob-
ferve, and as is very well known by late Expe-
rience, there the matter has been adjourned till
another Day, and for divers Days; the Evi-
dence being in feveral Parcels, and there the
danger 1s as great (if any were to be fuppofed)
of Tampering : But whether the Lords being
Judges m that Cale, and in this Cafe only in
the nature of a Jury, makes the Difference,
though m both Cafes 1t is but like a Verdi&, for
they give their Opinions feriatim, whether the
Peer tried be Guilty or not Guilty, that they
fubmit to your Grace’s Confideration,

Upon the whole matter, my Lord, whether
their being Judges in the one, and not in the o-
ther Inftance, alters the Cafe, or whether the Rea-
fon of Law in inferiour Courts, why the Jury
are pot permitted to feparate till they have dif-
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charged themfelves by their Verdit, may have
any influence upon this Cafe, where that Rea-
fon feems to fail, the Prifoner being to be tried
by his Peers, thatare Men of unqueftionable un-
fufpeCted Integrity and Honour, we cant pre-
fume fo far as to make any Determination in
a Point that is both new to us, and of great
confequence in 1t felf 5 but think 1t the pro-
pereft way for us, having laid matters as we con-
ceive them before your Grace and my Lords,

to fubmit the Jurifdiction of your own Court to
your own Determination,

L. H. Steward, My Lords, I confefs 1 would
always be very tender of the Privilegg of the Peers,
wherever 1 find them concerned ; but truly I
apprehend, according to the beft of my Under-
ftanding, that this Court is held before me. It
18 my Warrant that convenes the Prifoner to
this Bar. It is my Summons that brings the
Peers together to try him, and {o I take my felf
to be Judge of the Court.

My Iords, ’tis true, may withdraw, and they
may call the Judges to them to affift them, which
fhews they have an extraordinary Privilege in
fome Cafes more before the High-Steward, than
Juries have in inferior Courts in Cafes of com-
mon Perfons: For, if it be 1n a common Cafe,
no Jury can call either Counfel or Judges to
aflilt them, in the abfence of the Prifoner ; but
if they will have advice, it muft be afked 1n
openn Court, mn the prefence of the Party accu
fed,

But now, my Lords, if you have a mind to
confult with me n private, as I now fit by vir-
tue of this Commiffion, which is his Majefty’s
Warrant for me to hold this Court, I could not
withdraw with you 5 but you. muft ask all your
Queftions of me, in the prefence of the Prifo-
ner, in open Court : Whereas if 1t were m full
Parilament, as were the Cafes of my Lord Staf-
ford, and my Lord of Peibreke, then he that
were the High Steward might go along with
you when you withdrew, and confult with you,
and give his Opinion, which I cannot do in this
Cafe 5 for [ am bound to fit 1n Courr, while you
withdraw to conlider of the Lvidence, and am
not to hear any thing faid to me, but what
15 faid in open Court in the prelence of the
Prifoner, except 1t be when you deliver your
Verdilt,

This I confefs, my Lords, hasa great weight
with me, and I know your Lordihips will be
very tender of proceeding mn fuch a Cafe a-
ny way but according to Law : For though
you are Judges of your own Privileges, vyet,
with Submiffion, you are not Judges of the
Law of this Court; for that I take to be my
Province.

Why then, fuppofe, my Lords, I fhould take
upon me to do as my Lord -Delamere defires,
and adjourn the Court; and fuppofe the Law
fhould fall out to be that indeed I ought not
fo to have done ; would it be any advantage
to this Noble Peer, if he fhould be acquitted
by your Lordthips after fuch an Adjournment ?
Might not the evil Confequence of that be,
that he might be indifted for the fame Crime,
and tried again? For all the Proceedings after
that would be void, and liable to be re-
ver{ed,

And
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And if on the other ﬁd_e your Lordfhips fhould
think fir, upon the Evidence you l_lave oW
heard, and what he fhall fay for hl_mfelﬂ to
convi@t him, after I have adjourned as 1s defired,
and I pafs Judgment upon him, as it will be
a Duty incumbent upon me to pafs Sentence on
him, if you convit him 3 what will become of
the Cafe then ? and how fhall I be able to an-
fwer it, as having done my Duty, when I pro-
nounce a Judgment notonquﬂy Erroneous and
Ilecal ? for fo it will be, 1if Fhe Law prove to
Lo ggainﬁ my adjourning. This, my Lords, is a
matter of great Moment, and worth the Confi-
deration, _

But in the other Cafe of a Trial in full Par-
Lament, the Lord that fits where I do, is on-
Iy as the Chairman of the Court rather _than
Judge, he gives a Vote in fuch Proceedings ;
and therefore my ILord the Prifoner did very
well at the beginning to afk the Queftion, whe-
ther I had any Vote in his Trial, as a Peer,
jointly with your Lordthips. If Ifat in full Par-
liament, I fhould without all queftion give my
Vote as well as any other Peer; but fitting here
by immediate Commiffion from the King pro bac
vice, High-Steward; I acquaint you as I did him,
I have no authority to give any Vote : my Bufi-
nefs is to fee the Law obferved and fulfilled as
Judge. _

Certainly, my Lords, your Lordfthips and I,
and all Mankind cught to be tender of com-
mitting any Errors in Cafes of Life and Death,
and I would be loth, I will affure you, to be
recorded for giving an Xrroneous Judgment
in a Cafe of Blood, and as the firt Man that
fhould bring in an illegal Precedent, the Con-
fequence of which may extend I know not how
far.

Mr. 4t Gen. Will your Grace give Direfion
for my Lord to proceed ?

L. H. Sieward, Yes; he mult proceed I
think.

L. Delamere. May it pleale your Grace, and
you my Lords, it is an Offence of a very high
nature, for which I am this day to anfiver
before your Lordfhips; yet I thank God I am
not afrud to fpeak in this place, becaufe I
am not only certain and well affured of my
own Innocency, no fuch Thought having as
yet entred into my Hearty; but I am alfo well
affured of your Lordfhips Wifdom and TJuftice,
which " cannot be . impofed upon or {urprized
by Infinuations and florid Harangues, nor £0-
verned by any thing but the Juftice of the
Caule.

My Lords, Ican with a great deal of Com-
fort and SatisfaCtion fay, that thefe Crimes where-
with I am charged are not only Strangers to
my Thoughts, but alfo to what has been my
conftant Principle and Pra&ice; for I think
that n matters relating to the Church and the
things enjoined therein, few have conformed more
in Prattice than I have done, and yet do 1
confels, and am not afhamed to fay it, that
1 have always had a Tendernefs for all thofe
who could not keep pace with me, and Cha-
rity for thofe thar have outgone me, and dif-
fered from me, though never fo far, nay,
though of a different Religion: For I always

thought Religion lay more in Charity than Per-
{ecution.

Vo, IV,
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While I had the Honotir fo Be a Magittrate
in my Country, I did conftantly, duly, and im-
partially, execute the Laws, and in every pubs:
Iick Truft I was very faithful in the Difchatge
of it 5 for I never voted nor fpoke in any man-
ner but as my Confcience and Judgmient did
dictate to me. I have always made the Laws
the meafure of my Loyalty, and have ftill been
as Zealous and Careful to give the King his Pre-
rogative, as to preferve to the People their Pro-
perties, and have endeavoured as far as in me lay
to live peaceably with all Men.

This, my Lords, was not only the Diates
of my own Inclinations, but it was the Princi-
ple of my Father, and the Leflon that he taught
me: I fay my Father, who was {o greatly in-
ftrumental in fnatching this Nation out of its
Confufion, and reftoring it to its ancient Go-
vernment, by fettling his Jate Majefty upon his
Throne, and confequently was the means of his

‘prefent Majefty, that now is, his coming fo

peaceably to the Crown. And this I may the
more boldly fpeak, becaufe I fpeak it by good
Authority 5 becaufe in the Patent that created
my Father a Peer, his late Majefty is pleafed to
fay, his Rifing was mainly inftrumental in his
Reftauration. I beg the Favour of your Grace
and my Lords, that I may read you that Claufe in
the Preamble of the Pawnt, which I have here
ready to produce.

Which was read, and then wy Lord proceeded as
follows, viz.

My Lords, I fuppofe moft of your Lordfhips
did know him, and whofoever did fo, I dare
fay, did believe him to be a good Man: For
my part I did not know a better Copy to write
after than his Example, which I endeavoured al-
ways to imitate, and that I hope will go very far
to vindicate me from the Imputation of being
inclined to any fuch Crime as I ftand charged
with,

My Lords, it is now late and therefore I
(hall cut off a great deal of what I had intend-
ed to fay to your Lordhips, that I may not
take up too much of your time, and come im-
mediately to my Defence, as to what I ftand ac-
cufed of.

And firft, my Lords, 1 fhall obferve that
bere have been a great many Witneffes pro-
duced, and 2 great deal of Swearing, but lit-
tle or nothing of ILegal Evidence to affe&t me ;
for there is but one Man that faith any thing
home and pofitively againt me (and whom I
fhall anfwer by and by) all the reft are but
Hearfays, and fuch -remote Circumftances, as
may be tacked to any Evidence againft any o-
ther Perfon, but are urged againft me for want
of greater matters to charge me with; and
therefore I hope the producing and prefling of
thefe things againft me, is rather a ftrong Ar-
gument that I am innocent, and that rhere
have been mifchievous and ill Defigns of fome
againft me, than that I am Guilty; for if they
had had other and greater matters, your Lord-
fhips would have been fure to have heard of
them, |

With your Lordthips leave, I cannot but ob-
ferve to your Lordfhips an excellent Saying of
that great Man my Lord of Nottingham, (whofe

Hh . Name
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Name will ever be remembred with Honour in
our Englifh Nution,) when he fat in the fame
place that your Grace does now, at the Trial of
my Lord Csrnwallis, which I will read to your
- Lordfhips. Speaking to the Peers, he has this

paflage :

I know your Lordfbips will weigh the Faf, with
all its Circumftances, from which if is lo reccrve
its true and iis proper dooin. Your Lorafpips are
too juft 1o let Pily mcke any abateiment for the
Crime, and too <wife to fuffer Rbeterick to mok
any Imprevement of it : This oaly will be necf-
Jary to be obferved by all your Lordfbips, that the
Souler the Crime is, the clearer and 1he platicr o1ght
the Prosf of it to bes there is wo other good Kea-
fon can be given, why the Law refufes 1o ellow the
Prifener at the Bar Counfel in Matter of Foft, whii
Life is concerned, but ouly this, becavfe the Evi-
deice by which he is condemned ought fo be [o weiy
evident and [o plain, that oll the Counfel in the woild
fhould not be able to aufier it,

My Lovds, I think the Evidence that has been
civen againft me this Day does not come up to
this. And I hope your Lordfhips will regard
this Saying of my Lord Nettinghain’s, as more
worthy of your conlideration, than the fine Flou-
rithings and Infmuations of the King’s Counfil,
whicih tend (if 1t be nor fo defigned) rather to
mifguide your Lordfhips, than to lead you to find
out tae Truth,

My Lords, I fhall now tell you the method that
I fhall proceed in, in making my Defence; and
I begin with Saxon, for he I perceive is the grear
Golial, whole LIividence is to maintain this Ac-
cufation, and if I cut him down, T fuppofe I thall
be thougiit to have done my own bufinefs: there-
fore to that I fhall apply my felf firlt, and do it
if Icans and T will in the firft place examine
feveral Perfons that are his Neighbours and have
converfed with him, what they have heard and
know of him: and firft I defire Richard Hall may
be called.

L. I Stewerd, My Lord Delaincie, if you be-
gin that way to call Witnefles againft Sexen, it is
fit he fhould be here to know what is faid againft
him,

L. Delainzie. Ay, with all my heart,
Lord.

L. H. Steweard. Then call Saxen again,

[T2cir Sexon and Hall came both in.

L. Delazeire. Yray My, Hall tell my Lords here
what you know of Thomas Saxon.

L. I, Stewerd, What is it you afk of this Wit-
hefs.

L. D:ilamere. My Lord I defire him to give an
account what he knows of a Letter, that was foraed
by Saxon, in the name of one Hildege. N

fall, About the nineteenth of Decemder in the
Year 1683, I received a Letter by Thainas Seon
from Richard Hildege, wherein he defired me to
fend him the fum of fix pounds odd money which

paid the

my

L owed him: I received the Letter and
money, and to the beft of my knowledge fome
little time after I mer with the faid Hildege at
Neweefile, who afked me to pay him the money I
owed him. I replied I had ‘paid the Imoney, ac-
cording to his Note,. but he faid he never gave any
fuch Note, and threatned to fue me thereupon I
fent one Laid to Hildage, that is here now in the
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Court, and defired Hildege’s forbearance for a while,
till I could get the.money from Saxon back again,
and afterwards he fent again for his money, and j
fent to Sgxon for it, but ftill the money did not
come. |

L. H. Steward. Did you ever fpeals with Szaes
himfelf ?

Hall. No, but with his Wiie, who came to me
about it 3 but he acknowledged, he wrote the Let.
ter before Foly Lord.

Saxon. Did not my Wife tell you that Richard
Hildage lent me the money ? .

L. H. Steward, Nay, you muft not dirlogne
with one another, but if you have any Queftions,
you muft propound them to the Court: My
Lord Deluiicre, have you any Queltions to al:
him ?

L. Delainere. No, my Lord,

L, H. Steward., "Fhen whatis 1t you would have
him afked, Saxon?

Saxon, 1 defire you would pleafe to afl: him
whether or no he did not lend me the mo-
ney ¢

L. H. Steweird. He'! who do you mcan ?

Saxcir. Richard Hiliage Jid,

L. H Sqwaerd, What fay you, did Richesd
Hilfege lend him the money ?

Hell, WNo, my Lovd.

L. H. Sceerd, Look you, my Lord Delaiere,
the Objedtion carics o grear decl of weighe in
1t, to prove him a vay il man, if it be fully
miade o,

L. Delaincre. My Lerd, if yeur Grace pleate, |
can prove that he owned the writing of the Letter
to another mian.

L. I, Stzward, My Lord, he docs own here,
that he wrote the Letwer, and that ke wrote it in
Hildgr?’s name, but he futh, e Lower, he fo
wrote 1n [{i/dage’s name, was by Hildege’s divetion
andaf {o, that rakes off the Objection mude againit
him,

L. Delcazere, T wult fubmit that to your Giace,
whether what he fays i that matter be Evi-
dence.

L. 1 Siczard, Whar Hillape did, or dnd nct,
15 the man turn of the Queition m this Cale s
for he might lend him the Money, and yer of-
terwards might fay, when he theught he mighe
lofe i, that he did not fend any fuch Leteer,
and all this be true, and Seiesz 1n no faule: I
muft confefs, if Hildere were here himielf, and
fhould deny the lending of the Morey, or the
giving him Direfticns to receive it, you would
have fixed a fhrewd Objection upon him; but
otherwife Hear-fays and Difcourfes ap fecond hand
are not to take off the Credit of any Man’s
‘Teftimony.

L. Delainere. But Hell fays Hildage cenied the
receipt of the Money, or any Order for receiv-
Ing of It, -

L. H, §tezzard, That fignihies nothing, being but
by fecond hand.

Scwon. If 1t pleafe your Grace, here is my
Brother 1 Coure will give you an account of
1C,
L. H. Steward, Well, well, hold your tonguc ;
will your Lordfhip pleale to go on 2

L. Delaiicre. 'The next Wimefs, my Lord,
that I fhall call, fthall be Frcucis Ling, [who
caine 1. ]

L. 11,
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7. I, Steward, What do you afk this Wit-

nefs ? | _
1.. Delamere. Mr. Ling, pray will  you tell

his Grace, and my Lords, what you know
Saxow’s receiving any Money In

£ Mrs. Wilbrabam, without her

concerning

in the Name ©

Order.
Ling. He

{r?_/}fr,’, | _
i was for Mrs. Wilbrabam, in her name; but fhe

never received a penny of the Money, nor knew
of his having received 1t, tll he came to pay ano-

ther Quarter.

I.. H. Steward. Where Is that Mrs, #ilbrabain,
15 fhe Here ? | |

Lidg. No, my Lord, fhe is a Neighbour of
ours, an Ancient Woman, fourfcore years of Age,

and cannot come fo far, ‘
I.. H. Steward, This is the fame Cafe with the

other, you can never think to tql{e off the
Credibility of Witneffes by fuch Teftimony; for
this is only a Tale out of an Old Woman’s
Mouth : What if that Old Woman told him a
falfe Story?
Ling. She fud
I.. H Stewerd, 1 care not what fhe fud, this

15 no Evidence at all.

L. Delainere. Then pray call Richard Show,
[who caine tn.] |

L. H. Stcward, Well, what fays  this Wit-
nefs ¢ *

L. Delamere. Shaw, can you tell any thing of
Thomas Sexen’s writing a Letter and {ending it in
the name of one Pang flon o Bayhii?

Shaw, .z writ a Letter, as I underftand, con-
cerning fome Money that I owed him; for |
owed him a little Money, and being I did not
pay it, he does forge a Letter and puts Willicin
Papg ftow’s name to it, {o I got up the other Morn-
ng—— .

L. I, Steward, Where 15 Paugflon 2 Is he
here ¢

Shaw. No, my Lord, he 1s not, but he told
me he did not write the Letter,

L. H. Stcward, Why, this 1s juft the fame a-
aain, and we all know how eafy a thing it is
to hear a Daylifi tell a Lye,

Shaw. 1 cannot tell, but I called

L. H. Steward, All that 1s nothing. 1t is a dif-
ficelter matter to hear {uch Fellows fpeak Truth,
than any thing clfe, Tam fure.

L. Delawmere. The next Witnefs that I {hall call
15 Peter Hongh,

called at this fame Hildages at New-

[77ho appeared.

L. I Steward, There 1s your Witnefs, What
fay you to him ¢

L. Deélcinere, Pray acquaint his Grace, and my
Lords, what you know of Saxen’s cheating you in
the making of a Bond.
~ Hoxgh, My Lord, he had fix Pound ten Shil-
Iings in Money, and ten Shillings in Work done,
for which he was to give me a Bond, and hereof
he made the Bond himfelf, I thought it had been
right, and tool: it ; but about the time when the
Money was become due, I looked upon it, and it
proved o be but for 67

L. Il Steward, What
{or?

Hough. Tt thould have been for fix Pounds
ten Shillings in Money, and ten Shillings in
Work. '

Vor. 1V,

fhould it have been
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and received twenty five Shillings, and faid
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L. H. Steward. Did not he give thee 4 Bond for
all thy Money ¢

Fough, It fhould have been fo, but I never
had it. '

L. H. Steward. Had you never the Money ?

Hough. No, I never had the Money ?

L. H. §teward, What did he fay the Bond fhould
be made for ?

Hough, For {even Pounds,

L. H, Steward, What fay you to it, Saxen.

Saxon, My Lord, I had five Pounds ten Shil-
lings of him, and ten Shillings in Work, for
which I gave him Bond ; there were the Wit-
nefles Names at it, the Bond was fairly read, and
I {ealed it, and he took 1t with him.

L. H. Steward. Ay, but he fays it was to be for
feven Pounds,

Saxon, I never had any more of him than fix
Pounds, and for that I gave him Bond.

L. H. Steward. Was the Bond read to you 2

Heugh, Fle read 1t himfelf, and he made it
himfelt.

L. H. Stcwerd, How did he read it ? What
did you apprehend by his reading it was made
for ?

[ough. T took 1t as he read it to be made for
feven Pounds,

Saxer, Fle may fay what he pleafes, bur I had
no more of him but fix Pounds ; I was to give

Bond for no more,
L. H, Stewward., Now the Witneffes to this Bond

would he' very proper to be produced here: For,
if he did make the Bond but for fix Pounds, when
the Debt thar was to be {ceured was {even Pounds,
that is 4 fign that he had an intention to cheat him
of the Twenty Shillings.

L. Delamere, That fhews what 2 kind of Man
he is.

L. H, Steward. But this 1s but Witnels aguinft
Witnefs, for he fays he owed no more, and was
to make the Bond for no more.

Hongh. It was as I tell you, Iaffure you, my

Tord.
Saxoen. 1 had no more of bim than fix

Pound.

Hough, Did not I afk you afterwards one
Queftion more, and told you it was a Cheat, and
you faid it thould bz mended ?

L. H Stewerd. Well, my Lords have heard
it, they will confider what weight to lay up-
on it.

L. Déamere, Pray call Edward I ilkinfon.

(o appeared.

L. H, Steward, What do you afk him ?

L. Dslamere. Wilkinfon, pray tll my Lords,
how Saxon dealt with you about your Horfe 2

Willinfon. My Lord, he hired a Horfe of
me for three Days, and was to give me twelve-
pence @ Day, but he never came again, nor
had I any Satisfattion for my Horfe, but I
loft my Horle by the bargain, and my Money
t0o.

L. H, Steward. How long ago was it fince he
hired your Horfe ?

Wilkinfen. My Lord. it was the twenty third
of Fuie, to the belt of my remembrance.

L. H. Steweard. Did he not agree with you for
12 4, aday as long as he ufed your Horfe ?

Wilkinfon, 1 expected to have my Horle in three

days time,

Hh 2 L H.
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L. H. Steward. But mind my Queftion, did you
agree that he thould have him but three Days 2 Or,
was he to give you 12 4. a Day for {o long as he
kept him out ?

I ilkinfon,
him.,

L. H, Stewward, What ! as long as he ufed him,
or only for three Days ?

I was to have 124. a Day for

Wilkinfon. He did agree with me to bring him

again 1n three Duys. _ _

L. H. Stewerd. I perceive by the time, he
rid into the Rebellion with this Horfe, and he
was a very Knave for fo doing, upon my Con-
{cience. _

L. Dilasiere. Call Williain TWright, [whe caine
in.] Pray will you gtve my Lords an account
what Reputation tius Thoias Saxen is of in his
Country.

Wright. My Lord, this Thomas Saxon came to
live at Saubige, and I had {ome dealings with him
as well as other Men, and 1 never found him to
perfect his Word in any thing,

L. H. Stewerd. What didft thou never find
him 2

[Pright. To
my Lord.

L. H. §teward, ‘That 15, make good his word,
I fuppofe s but that is your Chefbire Phrafe.

IFPright. Whereupon I met with him one Eve-
ning after Evening-Prayer, and faid to him,
Thomas Saxonry, 1f 1 cared no more for keeping
my Word than thev do’ft, it were no martter if
I were hang’d s for to be fure if thy Mouth
open, thy Tongue lyes: and he turn’d away
from me, and would not anfwer me a word ;
and fince that ke owed me fome Money, and
when 1 afked nim for it, he toid me if 1 did
trouble him for the Money, it fhould be the
worfe for me; whercofl all the Town knows as
well as I, that T cannot fet him forth in words
as bad as he 1s.

L. H. Stewward. Can vou inftance in particular,
Friend, of any Fraud, Cheat, or Cozenage, that
he has been guilty of P for it is not what the
Town fays, but what can be proved, that we
muft take for Evidence; the Town that thou
liveft in may reckon thee but an idle Fellow,
and yet thou may’fl be a very honeft Man for all
that.

Wright. I truft, my Lord, Tam fo, and {hall
always prove fo.

L. H. Stwerd, Well, what do'ft thou know il
of him?

Wright. He did not keep his Word with
me.

L. H. Stewward, Wherein doft thou mean ?

Pvight. As to Moncy he owed me.

L. H. Steward, How much Money did he owe
thee ?

Iright. He owed me a deal,

L. f, Steward, How much do’ft thou call a
deal ¢

ight. I cannot tell how much exactly,

L. H. §tewerd. Does he owe thee any thing
wow ¢

Vright., Yes, but I cannot
much,

L. H. Stewerd. My Lord Delamere, 1 woyld
be very unwilling to interrupt the method of
your Defence, or abridge you 1n your Evidence ;
but really this Obje@ion that you endeavour to

perfect his Word in any thing,

juftly tell how

129. Trial of Henry Lord Delamere,

1 fac. 11

prove by this Witnefs, is not-at all, as I concelve,
for your Lordfhip’s Service: For it is a very
hard cafe, 1f any one that owes Money and docs
not pay it, fhall for that very reafon lofe the
credit of his Teftimony ; this rather gives a coun-
tenance to what he fays, that you know no other
Objections but fuch tivial ones to make againft
him.

L. Delasere. Then, if your Grace pleafe, I
will make thort work of it, and fpare your time;
I fhall pals over this part of my Evidence,
though 1 have more Witneffes to this Point, and
come to other magters, to Matter of Fadt, to en-
counter this pofitive Proof that has been given
agunft me. Your Grace and my Lords do ob-
ferve, that diis Man Saxeir Dhas tefhified that a-
bout the third or fourth of Fuwe Lt (for there
he fixed the time) this Man as an extraordi-
nary Perfon that was fit to be trulted in an
Affair of this pature, being confided In, and
recommended by wy Lord Brandon, was fent for
by me to Mere, where he found me and Sir
Rabert Colten and Mr. Offiey, who did employ him
to tranfact the matter of flirring up the Coun-
try In order to a rifing and joining with the
late Duke of Monmentl;: Now I will firft piove
to your Lordfhip in general; that Sir Kebers
Cottein was not in Cicfhire for many Weeks,
nay, feveral Months, both before and after the
time he fpeaks of : And next in particular I fhall
prove as to the time that he has pitched upon,
by divers Perfons that faw Sir Rodert Cotton here
then in Londen, and give you particular Reafons
for it. Firft to prove, that he was here in Town
fo long in general, 1 fhall produce his Servants
that faw him every day: Call Billing, [who
appear’d.] Pray Sir, will you give an account
what time Sir Robeit Cotton came to Loudon,
when he went out of Lomaon, and whether you
were frequently 1n his Company and faw him
here ¢

Billing. My Lord, to the beft of my remem-
brance, Sir Robert Cotton came to Town the 104
of Aprillaft, and I was with him here in Town,
at his Houfe at the Horfe-Ferry till the latcer
end of Fuly, and faw him conflantly more than
once or twice every day for that time: I ufed to
come into lus Chamber moft Mornings betore he
was up; iufed to buy in his Provifion for his
Houfe, I faw him a-bed, or heard he was in Bed
cvery Night, .

L. H. §teward. Did you belong to him?

Billing. 1 am his Servant,

L. D:lamere. Helived with him in the Houfe all
the while, he fays? _

Billing. Then about the latter end of Fuly he
went out of Town for three Days to Epfosm,
and then he came to Town again, and continued
here till the ume he was commitied to the Tower,
and never was in Chefiire fince the 6th of April
laft,

L. H. Steward. How came ynu to remember
fo punctually when he came to Town, and that ke
ftaid here all the while ¢

Billing. 1 know it by my Accounts for the Jour-
ney up, and by the Tradefmens Bills for the Pro-
vilion of the Houle ever {ince.

L. H. Steward, In what Capacity did you ferve
Sir Robeirt Cotton 2

Billing. 1 bought in all the Provifion for his

Houfe, and paid the Tradefmens Bills.
I L. 1.
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L. H. Steward, ¥ave you any Papers in
your Pocket that will point to any particular

f e P
Tl.%i’?lgf;g. [ have not the Tradelmens Bills here,

my Lord, nor my own Accounts; but I have
?oglc’d upon them, and by that 1 am fure what I

(tified 1s true.
haE Ej'-f.l Si'ﬁi—'ﬂ?‘d. Who do you call next, my

Lord ¢ ‘

L. Delamere. Call Margaret Davis, [HWho ap-
peared.) Pray will you give an account to my
Lord, what time Sir Robert Cotlon came to Town,

and to the beft of your Remembrance when he went
out of Town again.

Davis. He came to Town upon the Tenth of
April laft, or thereabouts, and he has not been

out of Town any Night fince, except it were in

Auguft,
iﬁH, Steward, What Day did he come to

Town, do you fay !

Dawis. About the tenth of April,

L. H. Steward. And you fay he did not go out
of Town till Auguff ?

Dawvis. NO, my LOI’d.

L. H. Steward. How do you know this ?

Devis. I was conftantly in the Houfe with him.

L. H. Steward. But how came you to be fo
exat as to the Time ?

Davis, 1 faw him continually every Day.

L. H. Steward. How came you to fee him ?

Davis, I hve with him in the Houfe,

L. H, Steward, Pray recollett your felf as to
the Time he went out of Town, for I perceive
the other Man fays 1t was the latter end of

uly.

d l/;zzvfs. It was 1n Augnft certainly, my Lord.

L. Delamere. My Lord, the other Witnefs
faith it was the latter end of Fuly, and that may
be very well confiftent, neither of them fpeaking to
a Day.

L. H. Stesvard. Well, are you fure he was in
Town all the Month of Fune ?

Davis. Yes, he was.

L. H. Steward. Well, who do call you next ?

L. Detamere. Mrs, Siduey Lave. [Who appear-
ed, ]
L. H. Steward. What do you afk this Gentle-
woman ?

L. Deélainere. 1 examine her to the fame
Point: And I queftion not but I fhall make it
out to your Grace, and my Lords, none of us
all three that he has named were there at that
Time.

L. H. Steward, 1 fhall be very glad of ir, my
Lord.

L. Delamere. Pray Mirs. Lane will you give an
account when 1t was Sir Robert Cotion came to
Lown, and how long he ftaid here ?

Mrs. Lane, He came to Town the April before
the Coronation, and never lay out of Town I am
fure all thofe three Months of April, May, and
June, after he came to Town.

L. Delesmere. This Gentlewoman, my Lord,
lived in the fame Houfe with him.

Mrs. Laize. 1 did fo, my Lord, and faw him
every Night and Motning, .

L. Deloinere. If your Grace pleafe, I have two
or three more Witnefies to the fame purpofe ; but I
would fpare their Lordfhips time, if this Point be
fully cleared.

Vou, IV,
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L. H. Steward. Piay, my Lotd, do ndt dbridge
your felf, for T know my Lords will not grudge the
Time, but are very defirous you fhould have full
Liberty in what is pertinent.

L. Delamere. Then I defire Charles Reeves may
be called, [#Who appeared.] 1 pray, my Lord, that
this Man may give an account what time it was
Sir Robert Cotton came to Town, and how long he
ftaid here,

Reeves. If it pleafe your Lordthip, he was in
Town before the Coronation, and I faw him here
every day from that time till after F#ly once or
twice every day,

L. H. §teward. Did you belong to him ?

Reeves, Yes, and I do now.

L. H. §teward. In whar Capacity, Friend 3
. Reeves. My Lord, Tam his Footman.

L. Delamere. May it pleafe your Grace, the
next Witnefs I have to produce is Mr. 4bburnbai
being he cannot eafily remove, I beg he may be
heard in the Place where he is,

L, d. Steward. Ay, let him fpeak where he is,
and let him {peak out.

L.. Delainere. Pray Sir, will you pleafe to re-
collett your felf what time you faw Sir Robers
Colton, and where the laft Summer ?

Afbburnbain, My Lord, Ibeing at Sir Robeis
Cotton’s Houfe at Weftminfler, he defired me to
prefent a Petition of his to the Houfe of Com-
mons for him, and it was about the latter end of
the time allotted for Petitions, I cannot cxadtly
tell what Day of the Week or Month it was,
but 1 faw him that day I prefented his Petition,
and I faw him at the Committee of Eleions two
or three days after,

L. Delamere. Siv Willians Twifden 1 defire may
be alfo heard what he has to fay to the fame
Point,

[Vbo anfwered to the fame effedt,

L. Delarsere. Mr, Heveningbam is my next Wit-
nefs, my Lord; who I defire that he would
pleafe to give your Grace and my Lords an ac-
count, when he remembers to have feen Sir Ro-
bert Cotton in Town.

Mr. Heveningbam, My Lord, it was 2 more
than ordinary Occafion that makes me remem-
ber the thing and the time fo particular. I
was engaged i a difpute in the Houfe of Com-
mons about my own Elettion, and that was
upon the fecond of Fuwe ; then was a Cife de-
bated in the Houfe, whether a Mayor that was
elected a Burgefs for any Town could fit upon
his own Return; it was then carried he fhould
not, and the next day, which was the third
of Fune, another Queftion came on, whether
Siv Jofeph Williamfor was duly eleGted and re-
turned ; and I remember at that time I was
walking with Sir Robert Cotton in the Court
of Requefts, and Mr. Nea/ came out of the
Houfe and told me, that it was carried by
five, that he was not 3 and then Sit Rebert Cotton
was with me,

L. H. Steward. So you {peak as to the fecond

. and third of Fune ?

Mr, Heveningbam, My Lord, had it not been
upon this particular occafion, I could not have
remember’d the time fo exaétly,

L. H, Stewsrd, You give a very good token
for your remembrance, and my Lords hear what

you have faid,
H h > L. De-
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L. Delamere. Will your Grace pleafe that the
Clerk of the Hoife of Commons may be called,
and examined to the Journai of that Houle,
when it was Sir Robert Cotton preferred his Pe-
tition, and that will fix the ume as to what
Mr. Afbbuinbam and Sic Williain Twifien have
fad ?

L. H Steward, Call whom you pleafe, my
Lord.

L. Delamere. Tt feems he is not ready, but I
hope I have given your Grace and my Lords {ut-
ficient Satisfaction, that Sir Rebert Cotloir was
not there at that time that this Fellow fpeaks of.
I will now go on and prove Mr. Offey was
not there neither ; and the firlt Witnefs I call to
that, fhall be Sit Willeughty Affeir, whom I_(leﬁtj-::
your Grace will be pleafed to hear fpeak in his
Place,

L. H. Steword, 'Well,
[Villonglby ¢ |

Sir . Afior. My Lord, 1 defire to be guided
in what account I fhall give by the Queltions that
fhall be asked.

L. H. Stcweard. What is it you ask Siv 77illoughty
Afton 2

L. Dilamers. Pray can you remember, Sir J7/-
longhhy, what time it was, and whether about the
latterend of May laft, or when, that you know of
Mr. Off y’s being at your Houfe, and how long he
ftaid there ¢

Sir I¥. Aftsn. 1 can give an account of his Mo-
tion for ten Days together, but that perhaps may
be more than 15 neceflary,

L. H. Swward. It will not be improper, S,
for you to give as cxact and particular account as

you can of the Trimes.
Sir /. Afton. It your Grace pleafe, I will do

what do you fay, Str

It.

L. H. Steward. Pray do, Sir.

Sit IV, Aften, Upen the twenty fixth of Mav,
which was Twefday, at Night Mr, Offcy and his
Lady and fome of their Relations, came to my
Houle 5 upon Wedueficy the wwenty foventh of
May Mr. Offl:y was {o fick that he kept his Cham-
ber and his Bed all Day 5 upon the twenty eighth of
May, which was Thurfday, he was fo ill chat he
kept his Chamber all Day, and rofe about five at
Night, and I then waited upon him, and fat with
hum three Hours in his Drefling-Room.  On Friday
the twenty ninth of May he weni to Chureh, that
Day was imployed a great part in Devotion. Upon
the thirtieth of May, which was Satwrday, Mr.
Offley and his Lady went, and a great part of my
Famuly wene with them, to one Mr. Pickering’s {ix
Miles off my Idouie, there they dined, and re-
turned atr Night to my Houfe. Upon Sunday the
thirty firlt of Aay, I have a particular Remark
whereby I remeraber that Mr. Offey went to vifit
Mr. Neechain.  Upon Mondey the firlt of Faie,
Mrs. Offley and the Women of my Family went
to vifit my Lady Breoks, but Mr. Offy not being
well, ftaid at home. On Tuefday the {econd of Faie
he was ftill at my Houfe, there was a great deal
of Company there, and he was in the Company
all the Day long.  On Wedigfday the third 1 fel
iick 1 the Morning about four of the Clock,
but Mr, Offfey was in the Houfe all the Morning ;
but in the Afternoon he went to make a Vific
two Miles from my Houfe, at a Place called the
IVare-beyfe, where the Ships ride at Anchor : And
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Fune, he went from my Houle, Now if your
Lordfhip defire to know any thing about any
particular Time about this Compafs, ll give you
the beft account I can.

L. H. Steward. Can you tell where he wene
when he went from your Houfe?

Siv /7. Aften.  Fle went dweltly home, as he
faid.

L. H. Stewerd,  Did you hear at any time
that he ftaid by the way, between his goIng;
from you and coming to his own Houfe ?

Sir 7V, Affen. My Son went with him two
or three Miles of his way, and I heard that as
Middlewich he flaid to fpeak with fome of the
Militia Officers that he met with by the way
there at & Mufter, and afterwards went direétly
homie,

L. I Stewerd,  Pray s the ufoal Way from his
Houfe to your’s by my Lovd Delasicre’s ¢

Sir IV, Affen, No, my Lord, direttly another
way.

L. H. Stcward. Wil you ofk Six 77 illongiiy
Aften any more Queftions ¢

L. Delaincie. No, my Lord.

Mr, At Gen. I your Grace pleafe, [ would
afk Sir /77 llornghly Afton one Quettion,  Sir, 1 de-
fire to know how far it is irom your Houfc to my
Lord Delaisicic’s ¢

Siv 17, Affonn. Sir, 1t 1s about eleven Miles.

L. I, Stezzard. Eleven Miles you fay, Sir ?

Sir 177 flsir, Yes, my Lord, eleven of thofe
Nowileri DAL,

L. Délcizere. My Lord, 1 have fome more
Witnefles to examine to this Point,

L. 11 Swwwerd, Call whom you pleafe, my
Lerd ¢
L. Delasere. T call Mr. Gregory next, my Lord,

[wwho appecred.] Pray give my Lord an account,
when Mr. Offy went from Siv Willonghby Afton’s
laft Summer, and whither he went ?

Gregeiy. My Lord, my Maflter went from Sir
JVillong by Afie’s Houfe -

L. 11, Stezeard. Who s your Nafter ?

Giceoiy, Mr. Offfey, my Lord. It was upon
the fourth of Fuue at nine of the Clock in the
Morning, and went {rom thence to Adidilwich,
and was at Home at his own Houfe about five of
the clock in the Evening, as I was told, for I did
not go directly Flome with him.

L. H. Stewoard, Was he at Mee that Day at
my Lord Delamere’s ¢

Gregory, No, not that I know of, T was not
with him.

L. Delascre. Then pray call Thomas Kidd,
[77ho appecred.] Pray were you that Day with
Mr. Offfty when he went from Siv 77illsughly’s
Aftow’s ?

Kidd. Yes, my Lord, 1 was.

L. Dclamere. What Day was 1t 2

Kidd. The fourth of fane.

L. Delasere. Then whither went he?

Kidd, He went the diret Road to his own
Houfe, 1 never parted from him, nor did he
ftop any where till he came to Adiddlicich,
where the Country Militia were exerciling 5 i
he juft alighted off his Horfe, and {poke with
Major Minfhaw and fome of the Officers, but ne-
ver fo much as drank by the way ull he came to
his own Houle,

L. H. Steward,  What to his Houfe in Stafioia-

upon hwrfday Morning, which was the fourth of fhire 2
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Kidd. No, but to C?'ﬂEL‘*fifE]f n Cbtﬂ)f?‘c?.

1. H. Stewerd. Does Mere lie in the Road
hetween Sir W illonghby Afoir’s and C're:af-l-{rzﬂ, {o
that your Mafter might be there within that
ﬂn};jd No. that hie could not do.

L. il Steard. Were you with Mr. Offey the

whole Journey home?
}[&fd: Yes, my Lord, 1 was. ‘ ‘
7. Il Stewerd. Were you no time from him ?
1Gdd. No, my Lord, 1 was not.
7. H. Steward. What time did he come home ?
widd. He came to his own Houle about four or

five a-clock at mght.
L. H. Stezvard, And did not he go from thence

that night ¢

Kidd. No, my Lord.

.. Delaimere. Now, my Lord, I will prove as
to my felf that I was in London at the tiume as he

fpeaks of. And firft, I defire Sir Fames Langhaii

may b2 heard to that. |
(He appeaied, but gave no Evidence.

L. Delaizere. Pray call Booth, [who ap-
p{‘ﬂi'fff.] _ ‘
L. If Stiward. What is this  Gentleman’s

Name? |

L. Delamere. He is my Brother, my Lord, his
Name 18— Booth,

L. H. Stezeard, What do youalk him ?

L. Delumere, Pray can you remember what time
in Fune you faw me in Town here?

Mt. Booth. My Lord, 1 {faw my Brother here
in Town, the third, fourth, filth, f{izth, and fo
on to the tenth of Fewe, and the tenth of Frie [
went out of Town my felfs I faw him fometime
twice or thrice a day in that ttme, for I did not
lodge above half a fcore doors from him,

L. H. Stcwerd, Where was that ¢

Mr, Booth, In Great Ruffel-fivcet,

L. H. Stward, How come you to remember the
time fo particularly ?

Mr, Bogth. It was that day Sc’nmignt before
I went out of Town, which was Wednefday the
tenth of Fuie, and had it not been for that par-
ticulat Circumltance, I had not remark’d it
fo much as to pe able particularly to remem-
HEr 1L,

vir, 47 Gen, Pray, Mr. Booth, did you know
of your Brother’s going oat of Town the twenty
feventh of Aday 2

Nir, foath, 1 heard he was gone out of Town
about that time.

L. 11 Szeward, Why then, when came he hither
tc Town again ?

R, Booth, T cannot tell, but T faw him upon
the third of Fuue in the Evening,

BiroAl Gen, My Lord, it is not poffible for
iz fo to do in that time, if he rode Poft.

L I Sicwverd, He did make a great deal of
haflc baclward, and forward, that is certain.

L. Dzce, My Brother does not know when I
went, buias he beard, he fays.

Cil;--?f_f. Seweid. Bat pray, my Lord, mind the

‘ejticn that hos beep made, for 10 cayrics a
gludt eiil of weight in it It is plainly provecl
by two Wimefies, that vou went out of Town
the twenty foventh of Aday at nine of the Clock at
INighe, wid rode to Llpddefifon, and the next Day
e to fiehin about Noon ; then they lefg you
and fecarn’d back agein to Leidon that Night, and
you tuld them you were going to fee a fick Child

for High-Trealon.
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of your’s in Chefbire ; how came you to make fuch
poft-hafte back again, that he fhopld fee you
here in Loidon the third of Fune 2

Mr, Booth, My lLord, 1 4m certain I faw him
that day in the Evening, and fo on to the
tenth,

L. H. Stezzard, Did my Lord then tell you how
your Friends did in Chefbire 2

Mr. Booth. I cannot remember the particular dif
courfe we had,

Mr. 4t Gea, Pray, Sir, when did he tell you
he came to Town?

L. H. Steward. You fay you ufed to fee him
every day oneor twice a day.

Mr, Booth. Yes, I did fo.

L. H. Steward. Pray where was he the Second of
Juae ?

Mr. Booth. He was not come to Town,

L. H. §teward. How long time was it before
that, that you had not feen him?

Mir. Bocth, T had not feen him of feveral days
before,

L. Deamiere. If 1t pleafe your Grace, here is
another Brother of mine that faw me, at the ime
ime 5 and tho’ he be my Brother, 1hope he is a
good Witnefs.

L. H. Steward,
his name 2

L. Dzlamere, Georze Booth.

L. Il Steward, Well, what fay you, Sir?

Mr. George Booth, My Lord, 1 faw my Brother
Delgmere here 1n Town the fourth of Fune, by this
particular Circumftance which I cannot err in,.
That the next day, as I take it, I went down
with bim- to the Houfe of Lords, to hear my
Lord Aacclesfizld’s Caufe, which was then there
to be heard upon the Appeal of Mr. Fitton ; and
my Brother was in the Foufe of Lords at that
time, which was the fifth of Fuue.

L. H, Steward. My Lord Dzlamere, 1 think it
not amifs to put you in mind of ope thing,
which it 1s fit your Lordfhip thould give fome an-
fwer to @ Does your Lordfhip deny that you went
out of Town the twenty feventh of May ¢

L. Delgizere. No, my Lord, I do not;
knowledge I did fo.

L. H. §teward. Then it will be fit for you to
give an account where you were the twenty eighth
of May, and fo all along ull the third of
Fuie,

L. Delgmere. If your Grace pleafe, I hope 1
thall give you {ull Satistaction in that by and by ;
but I have one Witnefs more to this point of my
being in Town at fuch 2 ome, that I conld not
be in Chefbire, when this Fellow fays I was; and
that 15 my Lord Lovelace.

L. H. Steward. There 1s my Lord Lovelace,
what will you afk him™?

L. Delamere. Whether he did not fee me at the
Trial of my Lord Aacclesfield in the Houle of
Lords ?

L. Loveloce, I was n the Houle of Lords
that day that my Lord Macclsfield’s Trial was,
and [ remember 1 did fee my Lord Delamerz
there,

L. H. Stezoard. But we are as much at a lofs
Nnow 3as ever weé were, for what d;l}f that Trial
was, does not appear: What day was my Lord

Macclespield’s Trial ¢
L. Délamere., The Journal of the Houfe of

Lords proves that to be the fifth of Fune.
L. Love-

Ay, God forbid elfe 3 whar is

I ac-
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1. Lovelace. My Lord ftood juft by the Bar,
and if T am not miftaken took Notes.

L. Delassere. My Lord, I hope now I have
fatisfied your Grace, and the reft t.::f my Lords,
that none of us three whom this Fellow has
mentioned were there at that time at Mre, when
he fays we were : For my own part, I do poli-
tively affirm, and I fpeak it as in the Prefence
of Almighty God, that I have not feen Sir Ro-
bert Cotton at my Houfe that I know of thefe
many Years, and I believe Mr. Offley was never
in mv Houfe fince I was Mafter of it: And 1
do likewife proteft, that to my_Knowledgf:, I
never faw the Face of this Man till now that he
is produced as a Witnefs againft me 5 I am fure
I never fpoke with him in all my Life, nor
never fent for him to come to my Houfe: And
if your Lordfhip pleafe to confider the Story
that he tells, it will eafily appear to be very im-
probable, for he neither tells you who the Mel-
{enger was that was fent for him, nor the Way
that he came into the Houfe, which any Body
that has ever been at the Houfe could not mi-
ftake. Tor when I asked him what Door it was
he came in at, it was for this Reafon, becaufe
he maft needs have gone a great way about, if
he had not come in at the ufual Eotry into the
Hoofe, for I have but one Door into my Houfe
except that by the Stables, which 15 a great
way off the Foufe? And it being about that
Time of the Year, if it were eight or nine of the
Clock in the Evening, he muft needs difcern
which Way he came in: And, befides, my
Lords, is it probable what he fays, that he fhould
fee no Body ftirring about the Houle except 1t
were this Man without a Fand, that he fays
was fent for him ? 1 affure your Lordthips, I
have not, nor had my TFather ever that I know
of, any Servant or Tenant that was maimed in
that Manner that he fpeaks of, He faith, he was
recommended to us by my Lord Braudon : But he
capnot tell your Lordfhip any Thing that ever
he had done, to recommend him erther to him
orus, I did ask him what important Service he
had ever done for me, that might give a credi-
bility to my imploying him in fuch a Bufinefs as
this, My Lord, I cannot help it, if People
will tell falfe Stories of me, but I hope your
Lordfhips will confider the Credibility of it
is 1t to be imagmed that I would take a Man
[ knew nothing of, upon another Man’s Word,
into {o great a Confidence, as to employ him
abouta Bufinefs of this Nature? I am glad that
he was called in here again for your Lordfhips
to view him, I befeech your Lordfhips to look
at him 3 is this Fellow a likely Fellow to be ufed
in fuch an Affair?  Does he look as if he were fit
to be employed for the raifing of ten thoufand
Men? Does he feem to be a Man of fuch con-
fiderable Intereft in his Country? A Fellow,
that though 1t be not direét Evidence, yet by
{feveral Witnefles, I have thewn to be a Man of
no Repurtation in his Country, nay of a very ill
one; and could we have none elfe to employ in
a Matter of this Moment buc fuch a Fellow as
his Meighbours would not take his Word for
any Thing ? [t 1s an improbable Story upon thefe
accounis, if I fhould fay no more. Your Lord-
(hips likewtfe fee, that he is fo well thought of,
that he dare not be wofted out of Newgate, but
s kept ftill 2 Prifoner, and as fuch gives Evi-
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dence here: And I know your Lordfhips will
not forget that he {wears to fave himfelf, having
been a Rebel by his own Confeflion, and he
would fain exchange his Life for mine; till he
has a Pardon, which asyet, as I am informeg,
he has not. The Objection will ftill lie wvpon
him, that he fwears to fave himfelf, which wil]
render his Teftimony not credible, and the Lay
requires the Witnefles in Treafon, to be credi-
ble ones: And yet forfooth ! this Man, that no
Body that knows him will believe a Word he fays,
muft be taken to be the Man 'of Integrity, Zcal,
and Induftry ; the Man of Management and
Difpatch, the Man of Intereft and Authority in
his Country, that nothing can be done, byt
he muft have a Hand init. My Lords, I think

"I need fay no more of him; your Lordihips

Time is precious, too precious Indeed to be
fpent upon fuch a Subject, and fo I fet him
afide.

My Lords, there 1sa Thing that T perceive the
King’s Counfel lay a grear weight upon; and
that is my going down upon the 24th Day of
May, and my frequent riding Poft to and fro. ]
fhall now f{atisfy your Lordfhips of the Reafons
of my Journeys. The firft Time, which was be-
twixe the Coronation and the fitting of the Par-
liament was upon this Reafon; I went down :o
take Poffeflion upon a Leafe of a confiderable

Value which was renewed to me by the Bithop.

I did not think of going down at that Time fo
foon ; but I had Word wrote me out of the
Country that the Bifhop was ill, and that obliged
me in Point of Interelt to make hafte down.
And this T fhall prove by one that was Attorney
for me, and another that was 2 Witnefs of my
taking Poffeflion : And for this, I firlt call Mr. Fobi:
Edmonds, [who camein] Pray, Sir, will you tell
his Grace and my Lords, what you know of my
coming down into the Country in the beginning of
May, and upon what Account, and what Time it
was ?

Mz, Edmonds. May it pleafe your Lordthip, up-
on the fifth of May my Lord Delamere did nme
the Honour to come to my Houfe, and he ftaid
there a little while, and defired me to be a2 Wit-
nefs of his taking Pofleflion upon a Leafe of my
Lord Bifhop of Chefies’s, and we went into the
Houfe that was next to mine, which was
and there did take Poffeffion.

L. H. Steward, 'Where 1s your Houfe ?

Mr. Edmonds. At Boden, in Cheflire,

L. H, Steward, When was this, do you fay?

Mr. Edwmonds. The fifth of May,

L. Delamere. Pray Sir, will you farisfy my
Lord, whether the Bifhop was not ill at that
tme ?

Mr, Edmonds. My Lord, I had been a little
before at Chefter, and hearing my Lord Bifhop
was not very well, T went to Mr, Alen, and
told him I was defirous to fee my Lord, and
fpeak with him, if I might; he told me my
Lord was fo ul, that he would fpeak with no
body.

I{ H, Stewward. Was'1t a Leafe for Years, or a
Leafe for Lives?

Mr. Edionds, It was a Leafe for Lives,

L. H, Steward. Then that might require my
Lord’s taking Pofftflion. 'Who do you call nexr,

my Lord ¢
L. Delamere, Mr, Henry.
L. H.
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7. H. Stewasrd. What do you afk this Man, my
Lord? _ _

L. Delainere. Pray will you give his Gracz and
my Lords an account whether you were not
Attorney, and deliver’d mae Poficifion upon the
Leafe of my Lord Bifhop of Chefler ?

Mr. Henry. My Lord, 1 was Attorney by Ap-
pointment, and the sth of May lalt 1 delivered

Poffeflion to my Lord Delzmere at one of the moft
remarkable places of the Land that belonged to
that Leafe of the Bifhop.

L. Dilainere. DMy Lords, T hope this 1s a fatis-
falory Reafon for my going down at that time,
the Bifhop being ill, and the Leafe being worth
6 or 7coo /. The next time that I have to fpeak
to, is, That of my going the 27th of May, and

for that [ give this anfwer; I did go out of

Town the 27th of May, the occafion of my
going was, I had taken up a Refolution before to
o0 fee my Child thar that was not well, b1:1t I had
not taken my Journey fo foon, nor with fuch
Privacy, but that I had notice, there was a
Warrant out to appichend me; and knowing
the Inconveniences of lying n Prifon, T was
very willing to keep as long out of Cuftody as
I could, and therefore I went out of the way,
and under a borrowed Name, When I came to
my Houle mn Chefiire, there were not above five
of my own Servants that faw me all the while
I was there, and I faw no body but them; but
whiie I was there, my Wife fent me an Exprefs,
that as ro the Warrant fhe hoped 1t wasa Mi-
ftake, and rthere was no fuch thing; but my
eldeft Son was very ill, and 1if [ intended to fee
him alive, I muft make hafte up: this was the oc-
cafion of my quick return, and I fhall fatisfy your
Lovdthips by Proof, that I came thither in that
manner to avoid the Warrant, and for no other
Reafon.

L. H, Stezwoard. You fay you went to fee a fick
Child i the Country.

L. Delaincre, May 1t pleafe your Grace, my
Mother thatis here, wrote mc word that my Child
was not well, -

L. H. Steward. Pray what made you come back
again fo {oon ?

L. Delamere. Becaufe T had an Exprefs fent
me by my Wife that my other Son was like to
die.

L. H. Steward. Call your Witnefs, my Lord.

L. Delameie. Mrs. Kelfey, [who came in.] Pray
will you give an account what I faid, when T came
down, was the occafion of my coming fo private-
ly and changing my Name ?

Mrs. Kelfey. My Lord heard, he faid, there was
a Warrant for taking of him up, and he gave me
that for a Reafon; befides his little Son in the
Country was ill.

L. H. Steward, What, the lived in the Country,
did the?

Mrs. Kelfey. My Lord, I was in the Houfe with
him,

L. Delaiiere. 1f your Lordthips.pleafe, my Mo-
ther may be examined ?

L. f. Steward, Yes, with all my heart,

[ She fat by bim at the Bar.

L. . Stewerd. Pray, Madam, will you lift up
i}"’0111‘ Voice, that my Lords may hear what you
2y.

Lady Delagiers. My Lords, this Child of his
t!mt was m the Country, was more than ordina-
rily precious to him, in regard it was born to him
at that time, when he was an innocent honeft

- for High-Treafon.
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Men, (as he is now), a Prifoner i1 the Tower for
High-Treafon, above two Years ago, and I
think it increafed his AffeGtion to the Child, that
God had given it to him when he was in that
Affliction, My Lord, T knowing the Affe&ion
that the Father and Mother both had to the
Child, my Care i their abfence I thought ought
to be more exercifed about him: The Child
fucked, but I faw the Child decline, and there-
fore I was of Opinion thar he fhould be wean*d,
and I fent. up word that if they did not rake
care quickly and ook a little after him, I was
afriid he would go into a Confumption. Upon
this, my Son came down, 1 faw him not indeed,
becaufc he was very private all the while he was
in the Country 5 but while he was there, it plea-
fed God to vifit his cldeft Son with a dangerous
Diitemper, upon which my Daoghrer fent for him
Poft, if he intended to fee his Son alive. And
thereupon I think he made what hafte back again
he could.

L. H. Steward, Were you in the fame Houfe
with him, Madam ?

Lady Delamere. My Lord, Ifay T did not fee
him all the time he was there, T only tell you
what I heard,

L. H. Steward. How long was he in the Coun-
try ¢ |

Lady Delamere. 1 cannot tell exa@ly that, I
think he was not above two days.

L. H. Steward., Hle muft be but one day by Com-
putation of Time ?

L. Delarsere. Pray, my Lord, I will fatisfy you
in that point prefently : Mrs. Kelfey will give an
account what time it was that I came down, and
when  went away, |

Mrs, Kelfey. My Lord came down on the Sab-
bath-dey night, and ftaid there Monday, and went
away the Tuefday Morning,

L. H. §tewerd. Look you, my Lord, the 24th
of May was upon a Wednefday, that night you
went out of Town, and went to Hoddefdon, Thurl-
day, which was the 28th, you came to Hitchin at
Neon. Friday was the 29th.  Saturday the goth.
Sunday was the zift, then you came to your
Houfe ; Monday the firlt of F#ire, Tuefday the 2d,
then you came away, and upon Wednefday the 3d
you were in Town, fo fays your Brother.

L. Delameie. It was fo, my Lord.

L. H. Steward, Which way did you come
back ?

L. Delainere. 1 came Poft through Coventry,
my Lord, and that was the time that Hope {peaks
of, that I told him I had comeanother way into
Chefbire, when 1 came down,

L. H Steward, My Lord, you fay you went
down to fecrete your felf from 1 Warrant that you
apprehended was cut againft you, and that made
you go a by-way, how come you then to come {o
publick back, the ordinary Polt-Road ?

L. Delasiere. 1f your Grace pleafe, I have
told you I had an Exprefs came from my Wife,
that told me 1t was a Miltake as to the Warrant,
but that my Child was very ill; and I muft make
hafte up.

L. H. Steward. Have you any more Witliefles,
my Lord ?

L. Delamere. Xes, my Lotd, T defire Mr. Kel-
[ He care in.

L. A, Steward, Well, what fay you ?
Mr. Kelfey. My Lord came down upon the
Sunday night at ecleven .of the clock, and ftaid

at home all Monday ;3 and on Tuefday Morning
a8




242
.t three of the clock in the Morning, he took horfe
for Loudon, and 1 have Letters by me that are
dated the ath of Fune, which was Thurlday, that
told me my Lord was come to Town the night
before.

1. H. Steward. Whofe are thofe two Letters ¢

Mr. Kelfpy. They were from my Lady and
Mzs, Vere Booth, and both came by the fame
Pof,

L. Delamcre. T fall call one Witnefs more, my
Lord, to prove that my Clild was fick here in
Town, and the time 3 and that is Siv Thoiras Mil-
lington, who was his Phyfician, |

[Sir Thomas was called, and came 11

1., Delamere. Pray, Sir Thomas, can you recol-:

lect "your felf what time my Son was il laft
Year ¢

Sir Thomas Millington, My Lord, 1 was fent
for to my Lord Delamere’s Son upon the 28th cf
May, and I found him then very ill, and he con-
tinned fo for two days, infomuch as I told my
Lady Delamere his Mother that T thought the
Child would not efcape. I told it likewife to
Sir Fames Langhair, who is my Neighbour In
Lincolns-Ini-Fields 3 what they did upon 1,
whether they fent for my Lord Delainere to
Town or no, I cannot tell, but I know punciu-
ally this was the time, by rcafon the Bills 1
wrote are dated on that day, otherwife 1 coull
not have remembred the time 3 but the Bills bemng
fent me from the Apothecary, 1 find that date to
them,

L. H. Stezard. Pray, MNr. Adroraey, vall you
call Edlin again, or Vauy, cither of them,

Mr. A:. Gen. Vlere is Edlin, my Lord.

L. H. Stewwerd. Where did you part with my
Lord Deleinere, and when ¢

- Edlin, Upon Thurfday the 28th of Mey at
Hilchin,

L. H, Sicward. What tunie of the day was it
when you partec ?

Eilin. Tt was about

L. H. Stewward. He
fhire, did he not ?

Edlin. He did not go Poft T fuppofe, for he
went upon his own Horle,

I.. H. Steward. Did he go upon his own Hoife 2

Edliin. It was the fame Horle he went to Hilcbin
upon.

L. A, Steward. ave you any more Witnefles,
my Lord ?

L. Delaiicre, No, my Lord, I hope I have given
their Lordthips Satisfaction in'all Puints, and need
to give ne iurther Kvidence,

L. L. Stcward, Flave you any thing more then
to fay, my Lord ¢

L. Deleinere. My Lords, I acknowledge I cid
go at that time privately a By-Road, and by the
name of Brewn 3 and as for Fones, who it 1s faid
came from Holland that day, T appeal to him him-
felf, and I call God to Witnefs 1 never faw the Man
before now in wiy Life 5 nay, till after I was made
a Prifoner upon this acccunt, 1 never {o much as
heard of his Name: and your Lordibhips fee by
the Proofs, that all that has been faid againft ine,
except what this Fellow Saxer has tefhified, 1s bue
hearfay, nay indeed but hearfay upon hearlay ac
the third and {eurth hand.

My Lords, if People will make ufe of my
Name, and fay this, and that, and the other, and

en of the Clock.
veert forward Polt into Che-

139. Trial of Henry Lord Delamere,

1 Jac 11
ouilty becaufe others intend to draw him into T'rea.
fon? For there i1s no more 1n the utmolt that
this Proof can amount unto. It is at the pleafure_
of any two Men in the World, to wke away
the Lives, Fonours, and Eftates of any of your
Lordthips, if it be a proof {ufhicient to make you
guilty of Treafon, for them to fwear you were
intended to be drawn into Treafon.

And, my Lords, as to the Truth of the thing it
felf, that there was any Meflage or Correfpon-
dence between the late Duke of Monmonth and nie, |
call God to witnefs I have ncither wrote nor fent
Letter or Meflage to him, or received Letter or
Meffage from him, this three Years: I cannot tell
what expectation he might have concerning me
or any body elfe. It is very prebable he might
have Expeftation of Afliftance from lome budy,
and that without fuch Expectaiion he would ner
have made the attempt he did: But, my Luias,
all that is nothing to me, I had no coirefpon-
dence either by Letas or Meflagis with him
fo that all that has heen fard wpon thar point of
his Exvedtations, and what he declared, I muft
uive the fameaniwer to, that T aw. to the kvidence
sbout Foenes’s Meflage, Thar acrsitting 1 to be
true, he did declare fo, vet, ro preed being
made of on aftuel Correlhondence, it is no mere
but only an Intention i him to draw Men into
ComilGon of Treafory ard if that be allowd
for Proor of evily, Imull repeat 1t agaw, therd’s
no Man can b. [apocent,

Upon the whel: matter, my Lords, T mult
leave my Cuofe to the Conlideration of vour
Lordfhips: ITam not Maler of {o ruch Taw or
Rhetoricl: as the King’s Counfcly to plead in my
own Caufe, and 1 have nad but itz time to re-
collet and apply my Defencz to my Acculation;
but I hopz whai Evidenc: & have eficred, has given
your Lorcd'hips full Satislaction thal 1am no: guil-
ty of what I fiand charged with,

And after 2l that bas been farl, my Lords, I
would beg your Lordfips to confider this, that
it in cafe 1 were guilty of thele things, and were
conicious to my feli of having been engaged in
an Affair of this nature, can any Man imagine
I could have been fo hordy as to have {arrendred
my feli upon the King’s Proclumation @ nay, if
I wich thofe other two Gentlemen that he has
named, had had any Tranfactions of this kind,
with fuch a Fellow as he has been miade appear
to be by his Neighbours, (that muft needs be
thouzhta Man of no Faith, becaul: of no Repu-
tation, the' he eives himfelf a great Character as
a Man of great Intereflt, of wonderful Difpatch
and Dexterity in the Management of fuch matters)
foas at firft fight to put this large Confidence in
him; can it be imagined 1 fo hittle regarded my
own Liie and all that 15 dear to me, as to have
furrendred myy {elf, were it not that 1 was certain
of my own Innocence and Integrity ? Life it
felf, my Lords, is to be preferred above all things
but Honour and Innocence s and ol faith, Skin

for Skin, and oll that a Man bath <ill be give for

bis Life: and why fhould I be prefumed to have
fo little value for i, as voluntarily to deliver up
my {elf to Deftruction, had I been confcious that
there was any one, who could really teftify any
thing that could hurt me?

Befides, my Lords, this very Fellow Savon is
but one LEvidence, and how far you will believe

among themfclves talk of Meflages fent to me 3 him, I muft fubmit 1t to you? but furely one Wit-
canl or any Man in the world help it? Atthis nefs will never be fufficient to conviét a Man of
rate who can be innocent, if a Man muft be Treafon, tho’ thoufands of Hear-fays, and fuch

' ' trivial
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o Orecamibances be tacked to it efpecially
trividl Garcam ar;fed to an Evidence, which I dare

they are tac 1ce, Wi
;':; ;Hnu:egaordﬂ]i ps are far from thinking it deferves

. dit. . .
dﬂﬁ;ﬂ ﬁgrds, [ defite your leave to afk this one

ftion; Would not any of your Lordfhips
*%anﬁ;(elf in a bad Condition as to his Fortune,

if he could produce no better Evidence to prove
Lis Title to his Eftate, than what has been _[g_roduced
~oninft me this day to take away my Life? And

i?‘ {uch Evidence as this would not be fuflicient to
fupport a Title to an Eftate, certainly 1t can never
be thought fufficient to deprive a Man of Life,
Honour, Eftate and all.

My Lords, Iam not the only Man that has

heen or may be falfely accufed : God knows how
foon the Misfortune of a falfe Acculation may
fall to the Lot of any of your Lordfhips; I pray
God it never may, but fince that may happen,
I queftion not, bur your Lordfhips will be very
cautions, how by an eafy Credulity you give
Encouragement to fuch a Wickednefs: For Knights
of the Poft will not end in my Tial, if they
profper in their Villany ; and perhaps 1t may come
home to fome of your Lordfhips, if fuch Pra-
&ices be incouraged, as I cannot but firmly be-

lieve they will not, |
My Lords, the Eyes of 2l the Nation are upon

your Proccedings this day 5 nay, I may fay, your
Tordfthips are now judging the Caule of cvery
Man in Eugland, that fhall happen to come under
like Circumftances with my felf at any time
hereafter: For accordingly as you judge of me
now, jult fo will inferior Courts be direted to
give thelr Judgmeuts in like Cafes 1n time to
come, .

Your Lordthips very well know, Blood once
{pilt can never be gathered up again, and there-
fore unlefs the Cafe be very clear againft me,
you I am fure will not hazard the fhedding of
my Blood upon a doubtful Evidence. God Al-
mighty is a God of Mercy and Equity: Our
Law, the Law of Eugland, 1s a Law of Equity
and Mercy 3 and both God and the Law require
from your Lovdfhips, Tendernefs in all Cafes of
Life and Diath: and if it thould be indifferent,
or but doubtful to your Lordfhips, (which upon the
Proofs thar I have made, I cannot believe it can
be) whether I am innocent or. guilty, beth God
and the Law require you to acquit me,

My Lords, Ilcave my felf, my Caufe, and all
the Confequences of it, with your Lordfhips; and
[ pray the All-wife, the Almighty God direct you
i your Determination.

L. H. Steward. Have you any thing more to fay,
my Lord? |

L. Delamere. No, my Lord,

L. H. Stewerd, Then Mr. Attorney, and you
that are of the King’s Counfel, whac have you to
{ay more?

Mr. §ol. Gerr®. May it pleafe your
Grace, and you my noble Lords the
Peers of my Lord Delasucre, the Prifoner at the Bar :

The Yidence thar hath been given againtt
this noble Lord is of two Natures, part of it is
pofitive Proof, and part is circumflantial ; and
though it be allowed that there muft be two Wit-
nefles in Cafes of Treafon, and that Circum-
flances, tho’ never fo ftrong, and fufficient to for-
tify one pofitive Proof, do not, nor can make a
frcond pofitive Witnefs; yet I crave leave to fay,

that  there may be Circumflances fo ftrong and

® 3ir. Finch.
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cogent, fo violentand neceffary to furnifth a pofitive
Teftimony, that will 11 Law amount to make 2
fecond Witnefs, fuch as the Law requires.

My Lords, I do not fay every Circomftance will
do it, but fuch as is neceflarily and violently tend-
ing to the fame thing that was pofitively proved.
As for Example ; |

If a Man comes and fwears againft another that

" he faid he will go immediately and kill the King,

and another Man that did not hear thofe Words,
comes and teftifies his lying in wait; that Cir-
cumftance of lying in wait, that was an Action
indifferent in it {elf, vyet, when applied to the
politive Proof, will be a fecond Witnefs to fatis-
fy the Law, which requires two Witnefles in Trea-
fon. .

I muft confels, my Lords, when we will make
Circumftances to be a fecond Evidence, they muft
be fuch as are neceflurily tending to fortify the
politive Iividence that was given by the fingle
Witnefs : Now whether that be o in this Cafe,
I muft, as becomes me, leave to your Lordfhips
Confideration. It is not my bulinefs to carry
the Evidence further than it will go, and I am
fure it is not my duty to let it lofe any of its
weight 5 and if it have not that force ir oughs
to have, I fhould be to blame, as not having
done what belongs to me to do. I will therefore
ftare the Faét to your Lordfhips plainly as it fiands
upon the Proof, and fubmit the whole to your
Lordfhips Determination.

My Lords, our pofitive Proof, with which I
crave leave to begin, is but by one fingle Wit-
nefs, and that is Saxen 5 and his Evidence is this,
that being m Chefbire, where he lives, he was
fent for about the third or fourth of Feme laft to my
Lord Delnmere’s Houle at Mere, that there he was
brought into a lower Room, where he faw my
Lord Delamere, Siv Robert Cetten, and Mr, Crem
Offfey : That my Lord Delamere told him he had
recetved a Meflage lately by one Fowes, that was
{ent from the Duke of Moimnonth, whereby he
underflood that the Duke would fpeedily be in
Englaind, and that they muft provide Men and
Arms to aflift him when he came ; that he was
a Man recommended to them by my Lord Brau-
don, and that upon his Recommendation they had
thought fit to intruft him in the matter, and
withal told him, they were to raife o000/ and
10co0 Men in that County ¢ He tells you Lkewife;
thefe Gentlemen gave him cleven Guineas and 5/
in Silver to go of an Errand for them to the Duke
of Mommenth, which he undertook to do, and
hired a Horfe to that purpofe. .

This, my Lords, is the politive Procf, and
this, I muft acknowledge, {tanding fingle and
by it felf, will make but one Witnefs 5 but whe-
ther the Circumitances that have been offered to
your Lordfhips by the other Witnefles, be fuch
violent Circomftances as neceflarily tend to for-
tify and fupport that pofitive Evidence, and fo
will fupply the defet of a fecond Witnefs, 1s the
next Queftion that I come to confider, and I fhall
take them into Confideration in the fame order that
the Evidence was delivered.

The firft Step, my Lords, that was made as to
any Evidence that toucheth this noble Lord at
the Bar, was what was teftified by my Lord
Gray 3 for as to the other part of the Lividence
that related to the Confpiracy in general, I need
not trouble your Lordfhips with the Repetition

of it, (that there was fuch an one, 1s notorloully
known)
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known) but I fay that part of the Evidence in his

Hiftory of the Confpiracy, which my Lord Gray -

brought home to my Lord Delamere, was this :

That upon the firft Meeétings and Confultations,
it was refolved upon, that the Duke of Monmouth
fhould go into Chefhire to make an Intereft there ; and
among the Perfons that-he was direted to go to,
and to apply for advice there, as Perfons fit to
be trufted, this noble Lord was one.

That upon the Duke of Mpumonth’s Return out
of Chefbire, he did give his Confederates here 1n
Town an Account, how well he had been receive_d,
and that he liked all things very well there, Thus,
my Lords, is the firft Circumftance that has been
offered to you, to fhew that he had a Confidence
in my Lord Delamere, as a principal Support of
his Defigns at that very time.

The next thing that we offer, 1s this Meflage
of ¥ones’s, and for that, our Evidence has fully
and plainly made 1t out to your Lordihips, that
Fones did go over into Holland, and his Bufinefs
there was an Errand from Difney and Major #ild-
san, and the Confederates here. The eftfe&t of his
Meffage was, that it was their Opinion, that
the Duke of Mommoeuth fhould go for Scotland and
join with my Lord Argyle; but upon the Re-
ceipt of the Meffage, he being angry, faid, 1t
was too late for fuch a Meflage now, and he
would come into England, for he was ready to
fail : and thereupon he did fend this fame Fones
back again into Exugland upon a Meflage, to in-
form the Lords and others of his Party, among
whom my Lord Delamere was one, that he would
have them betake themfelves into their feveral
Countries, and not ftay to be taken or clapp’d up
here, for that, he did underftand, wasthe De-
fign : and this Meffage was delivered in Writing ;
.(now that the Duke of Monmonth did write a
Note and give 1t to Fomes, is verified by my
Lord Gray’s Teftimony too) and this fealed up,
and he was not to open it til he came to Sea ;
and when he did open 1t, he found it contain-
ed a Signification of the Place where he was
to land, and where he was to rendezvouz, which
was Tauntor, and who were the Perfons that
were to have Notice of it, among whofe Names
we find my Lord Delamere’s to be one : but he
likewife tells you, he was not the Man that was to
carry the Meflage to thefe Perfons, but he was to
deliver it to Matthews or Wildiman, and they were
to tranfmit it to the other Perfons.

He tells you likewife that when he came to Town,
which was the 27th of May, he met neither with
Matthews nor Major Wildnan 3 whereupon being
at a lofs what he fhould do with his Meffage, for
wang of thofe other Perfons, he acquainted Difiey,
that was executed, with his Etrand, who promifed
to take care that it fhould be delivered.

This, my Lords, isall Fones’s Evidence ; for
Jones does not fay that he himfelf acquainted, or
that Difney did acquaint my Lord Delamere with
the Meflage.

But .here, my Lords, is the main Circumftance
that renders the matter fufpicious ; that very
Night that Fones came to Town, and Difiey being
acquainted with the Meflace, had undertaken
to get 1t delivered, does my Lord Delamere at
Ten of the clock at Night go out of Town, in
the Company of two Friends under the Difguife
of the Name of Brown, and a By-Road, and fo
goes down to his own Houle in Chefbire ; this, I fay,
15 the Circumftance that renders the thing fufpicious,
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Now, my Lords, if' we do prove by fuch fuf.
ficient Ewvidence, as may make the matter m;-
nifeft to you, that my Lord Delamere had no-
tice of Fones’s Meflage, (for upon that Point the
Cafe will turn, whether he had Notice fuch a
Meffage was brought, that fuch things were iy

agitation, fuch Preparations made, and that they
were all to go into the Country) then I fay, his

" ooing down is a violent Prefumption, he had an

Intent to comply with the Meffage, and join in the
Defign.

But now, my Lords, comes the Queftion, the
main Queftion, how is it made out that he had no-
tice Fones brought fuch a Meflage ?

Fones indeed, my Lords, does not fay that he
himfelf imparted it to him, or that Difey told
him he had communicated 1t; but I think there
is another Witnels, and that 15 S/erey, who faith,
that Brand, one that knew of the Meflage, did
acquaint him, that 'my Lord had received it ac
the Coffee-Houfe, and that Night went out of
‘Town,

It 15 true, my Lords, this is but a Hear-fay,
but that which followed being Matter of Fad,
my Lord’s going out of Town that Night, fo
late 1n the Night, and in fuch an unufual fuf
picious manner, gives more Credit to the Rcla-
tion, than a bare Hear-fay could have of wfelf.

For unlefs there be fome good account given

of my Lord’s thus going out of Town, it is a kind
of neceffary Prefumption, thut he was acquainted
with the Meflage, partof v:hich was, that he fhould
go out of Townj; and If fo, it can have no o-
ther Conftruction, with Submifiion, than to be
in purfuance of, and complying with the Diretions
that that Meffage brought him from the Duke of
Monmonth,
. My Lords, to carry thisa little further, there
were two Witnefles produced that went out of
Town with him ; they feem indeed unwillingly to
give their Evidence, but I fhall faithfully repeat
what Teftimony they gave: Their Names weére
Vaux and Edlin. .

Vaux, he faith, he met my Lord Delanere at the
Rummer-Tavern in Queen-fireet the 26th day of
May, which was the day before Fowes came to
Town, and that then he appointed to go out of
Town the next day, which was the 27th, and ac-
cordingly he did go.

Edlin, he faith, he met Paux at the Cuftom-
houfe upon the 2%th of May in the Morning,
and being defired by him to go with him out of
Town, he didfo, and there was with him a Gentle-
man whofe Name was Brown, and who now ap-
pears to be my Lord Dzamere; they went in
Company with him as Yor as Hitchin, where they
left him upon Thurfday the 28th at Noon.

This Evidence 1s produced to fhew, that my
Lord did go out of Town at that time, and in
that manner as has been alledged, and that thefe
Perfons went with him to conduét him a private
way, that he fhould not go the common Road.
Your Lordfhips will confider what Anfwer hath
been given to this, and what account my Lord
Delamere has given of himfelf.

Another thing, my Lords, that renders this
matter fufpicious, is the Name which my Lord
was pleafed to aflume to difguife himfelf by, it
being a Name by which the Party ufe to call
my Lord in their Difcourfes of him ; and to prove
that, we hiyve likewife produced two Witnefles,

Babington and Paunceford,
Babinglon,



1685, Weltm.

. Babington, he fays, That in their Confulta-
tions there were Difcourfes of my Lord Delanere,
under the Name of Brown 3 and once at a Tha-
vern, when my Lord De/aere was named by one
in the Cgmpany, he was prefcntly catched up for
it, and replied to, You mean Mr. Brown 5 and
{o it {eems that was the Cnntmg Name ullder which
they difcourfed of my Lord Delamere.

The other Witnels Paunceford, he tells you,
That being at Difuey’s Houfe, and concerned with
him in printing the late Duke of Monmonih’s
Declarations (for the printing of which Difuey
was executed) one Locke came for fome of thofe
Declarations for Mr. Brewn, and they were to
be fent into Chefbire : So that though your Lord-
fhips obferve the Witnefs faith, fome body elie
was called by the Name of Brown, yetyou have
had no Account given you, that there was any

other Brown in Chefbire.
It is true, indeed, my Lords, that thefe are

only things that Difsey faid, and Lacke faid 5 but
T muft take leave to fay, it is very fufpicious,
that if my Lord went out of Town into Chefbire
under the Name of Browir, and fome Perfons
fhall, on the behalf of Brewn, come for Declara-
tions to be fent into Chefbire, and my Lord com-
monly in that Party go by the Name of Brown,
that thofe Declarations were for my Lord, and
that will be a great Evidence of his Correfpon-
dence with Monwouth.

But I confefs, my Lords, all this while our
Proof 15 circumftantial, and indeed there is no
pofitive Proof but that of Saxen, and in him our
Proof muft center 3 for without him, I muft ac-
knowledge, nothing that has been offered will be
Proof againft my Lord upon this Indi¢tment : for
bare Circumftances, and bare Sufpicions will be
no Proof agamnft any Man, but fuch as are violent
and neceflary, and thofe jomned to a pofitive Proof,
fuch as the Law requires,

Now then, my Lords, I come to the Confide-
ration, of what Weight and Strefs 1s to be laid up-
on this pofitive Evidence of Savor : And here
I muft coniefs there are Objections made to this
Teftimony, to which I cannot readily give an
Anfwer 5 tor Saxeir bas fivorn, That he was there
at fuch a Tume, and that he was fent for, and en-
terain’d as a Perfon recommended by my Lord
Biandon, as fit to be entrufted with the Secrer,
and capable of being employed to ftir up the
Country, in order to the Profecution of a Defign
they had on foot to raife a Rebellion 5 and he does
charge S Robert Coitenn and Mr. Crew Offfey to
have been there at the fame Time.

The Evidence, my Lords, that has been pro-
duced to falfify this pofitive Witnefs, in the Point
of Sir Robert Cottoi’s ‘being there, has been by
five or fix Witmefles, who teltify Sir Robers
Cottoi’s being in Town, and not elfewhere, from
the tenth of April to the lacter end of Fuly 5 and
1 do not fee what we have to fay in anfwer to
their Teftimony. I muft agree the Proof to be
tull 1n that Point ; and if the Evidence they give
be true, I canpot fay that Saxen’s Evidence can be
true 1n that Point.

Likewife as to Mr. Offer, Sir Willoughdy Afon
and others have teftified that he was not at my
Lord Diameres at the Time Saxos fpeaks of :
For he gives you an Account where he was
every Day, from the twenty-fixth of May to the
fourth of Fuie ; and his own Servants bring him

to his own Houf upon the fourth of Fune in the
Voi, IV,
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Evening, which is quite another Way than fron
Sir Willoughby Affon’s to my Lord Delamere’s: T
this likewife be true, what Saxon fays cannot bs true;
I muft agree to 1t.

There is another Thing that 1s offered on my
Lord Delamere’s Part, that he was himfelf in
Town at that Time that Saxon fays he was at Mere:
But here indeed the Matter feems to be a little more
ftrange and dubious, that my Lord fhould make
fo much Hafte down, as to go out late at Night,
and fo cautioifly, as to go by a wrong Name, and
yet to ride to Town again the Poft-way, to be hiere
juft the third of Fune, when Saxon fwears he was in
CZ‘?t.:{]in*E.

I muft confefs there is the Proof of his two Bro-
thers, that fay, they faw him in Town the third
and fourth of Fume : There is likewife fome Ac-
count given of his going out of Town, that it was
upon a Meffage received from his Mother, that his
Child in the Country was fick; and indeed he did
go a By-way, and change his Name, for fear of a
Warrant in a Meflenger’s Hands that was out
againft him to apprehend him. :

Now, my Lords, I do not hear any thing that
has been offered, that there was any fuch Warrant,
or any Difcour{e to ground that Apprehenfion upon :
My Lord had the firft and'only Avprchenfion of a
Warrant ; but upon what Reafons he himfelf beft
knows: This Apprchenfion made him go out of
Town fo privately, he fays, becaufc he would not
be prevented of feeing his fick Child.

But how comes 1t to pafs, that my Lord makes
fuch a{peedy Return ? By the Proofs, it appears he
did not get there till $undey Night, and upon
the Tuefday Morning comes Poft for Loudos.

The Account that he gives of that, 1s this, His
Hafte was to fee another Child that was here fick
in Town: For he had received an Exprefs from
his Wife upon the Menday, to acquaint him, that
the Coaft was clear, and there was no Warrant out
again{t him; but if he intended to fee his Child
alive, he muft make Hafte up to Town 3 and accor-
dingly, upon the Twefd y Morning early, he fets
out, and upon the X ednefday in the Evening is here
in Town agam.

But, with Submiflion, my Lords, there is no
cood Account given by this noble Lord, what
Reafon there was for fo many Poft-Journies back-
ward and forward, as, has been teftified, he made
within a very little Compafs of Time; for befides
this of his Return Poft upon the fecond of fune,
there is only an Anfwer given to one of the reft,
which 1s that of the fifth of Afay, when he faith
he went to take Poffefiion of the Land that he
held by a Leafe then renewed to him by the Bifhop,
which being of fome Value and Confideration to
his Lordfhip, and the Bifhop being fick, he thought
it neceffary to go down Poft himfelf, and would
not be content to receive Livery by Attornment.
This 15 the only Anfwer that is given to all thofe
Times of his riding Poft that have been given in
Evidence,

Thefe are Matters of Sufpicion that are oftered
to your Lordfhips ; but I confefs, Marters of Suf-
picion only, unlefs clear, pofitive, probable Proof
be joined with them, will not weigh with your
Lordlips to conviét a Man of High-Treafon,
where two Witneffes are required, But whether
thefe Matters of Sufpicion be fuch violent and ne-
ceffary Prefumptions as tend to fortify the pofitive
Teftimony, I muft leave that to the Confideration

of your Lordfhips.
I i d L. H, Stz
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7.. H. Steward. You do not call any more Wit-
neffes then, I perceive,

Mr. Sol. Gen. No, my Lord.
L. H. Steward, My Lords, it has not been ufual

of late, for thofe who have fat in the Pla:t:e where
I now am, upon thofe Occafions to give your
Lordfhips any Trouble in repeating or obferving
upon the Evidence. In this Cafe the Evidence
that hath been given has been very long, and it
would be too great a Prefumption in me, fhould I
have any manner of Doubt in the leaft, that ei-
ther your Lordhips have not well obferved it, or
the learned Counlel for the King have been de-
(eftive in colle@ing or remarking upon it, fo as to

need my Affiftance. _ -
But, my Lords, I confefs there s fomething I

cannot omit taking Notice of, not _f'or your Lord-
fhips Sakes, but for the Sake of this numerous arEl
great Auditory, that one Miftake in Point of Law
might not go unrectified, which feemed to be
urged with fome Earneftnefs by the noble Lord ac
the Bar, That there is a Necefity in Point of Law,
that there fhould be two pofitive IWitneffes 1o con-

vift a Man of Treafon.
He feemed to lay a great Strefs upon that; but

certainly his -Lordfhip 1s under a great Muftake,
as to the Law in that Point; for without all
doubt, what was urged in anfwer to this Obje-
&ion by that learned Gentleman that concluded
for the King, is true, There may be fuch other
fubftantial Circumftances joined to one pofitive
Teftimony, that, by the Opinion of all the
Judges of Eugland, feveral Times has been ad-
judged and held to be 2 fufficient Proof.

As for the Purpofe, in this Cafe, fuppofe your
Lordthips, upon the Evidence that has been given
here this Day, fhould believe Saxon {fwears true,
who is a pofitive Witnefs, and fhall then likewife
believe that there was that Circumftance of Fones’s
coming over from Holland with fuch a Meflage
upon the twenty-feventh of May (which is di-
redtly fworn in Evidence, you are the Judges of
that Evidence) and what the other Witnefles have
fworn likewife, and is notdenied by my Lord, the
Prifoner at the Bar, that he went out of Town
that Night, changed his Name, and went in an
indire& By-Road ; certainly thefe Circumftances,
if your Lordfhips be fatisfied he went for that
Purpofe, do neceffarily knit the pofitive Teftimony
of Saxon, and amount to a fecond Witnefs,

That is, if Saxon’s pofitive Teftimony be true,
then fuppofe all thefe Circumitances that gave
the Jealoufy, do make up a firong Prefumption to
join with the pofitive Evidence of Saxen; then
you have two Witneffes, as the Law requires, efpe-

cially if the Anfwer given by the Prifoner to thofe-

Circumftances be not fufficient (as the {lender Ac-
count he gives of his fo frequent Journies in fo
fhort 2 Compafs of Time) but that there ftill re-
mains fome Sufpicion. I could have wifhed, in-
deed, that Matter might have been made fome-
what more clear, that no Shadow of Sufpicion
might remain. ,

Your Lordfhips ate. Judges: And if you do
not believe the Teftimony of Saxon, whofe Tefti-
mony hath been fo pofitively contradicted by
divers Witnefles of Quality, the Prifoner ought
to be acquitted of this Indictment: If your

Lordlhips pleafe, you may go together, and con-
{ider of it. -

1 3"9. Trial of Henry Lord Delamere.

[ Jac. il
Lords. Ay, withdraw, withdraw.

Then the Peers withdrew in their Order, ar.
cording to their Precedency, with the Serfeant af
Arims before them.

L. H. Steward. Lieutenant of the Tower, take
your Prifoner from the Bar.

The Prifoner was laken inlo the littly Reom ap-
pointed for bim at the Entrance into the Court,

The Peers fiaid out about balf an Hour, and 1h;
veturned in the fame Order that they weut ot in,
and feated themfelves in their Places as before.

Cl. Crown. Serjeant at Arms, take the Appear-
ance of the Peers. Lawrence, Earl of Rocheter,
Lord High Treafurer of England. |

He flood up uncovered, and anfwered,

Lord Treafurer. Here.

And (o did all the refk.

L. H. Steward, My Lords, are you agreed of
your Verdict ?

Lords. Yes.

The Lord High Steward took their VerdiF Se-
riatim, beginnzig with the puifue Peery in this
Manner,

L. H. Steward. How fay you, my Lord Charchill,
is Henry, Baron of Délamere, guilty of the High-
Treafon whereof he ftands Indicted, and hath
been Arraigned, or Not guilty ?

The Lord Churchill ffood up uncovered, and
laying bis Hand on bis Breaft, anfwered,

Lord Churchill, Not guilty, upon my Honour.

And [o did all the veft of the Peers.

L. H, Steward. Lieutenant of the Tower, bring
your Prifoner to the Bar,

The Prifoner was brought again to the Bar.

L. H, Steward, My Lord Delamere, T am to ac-
quaint you, that my Noble Lords, your Peers,
having confidered of the Evidence that hath been
given, both againft you and for you, after they
were withdrawn, have returned, and aoreed on
their Verdi€t, and by that Verdict have unani-
moufly declared, that you are not Guilty of the
High-Treafon, whereof you have been Indifted,
and this Day Arraigned, and therefore I muflt dif-
charge you of it.

L. Delamere. May it pleafe your Grace, I fhall
pray to Almighty God, that he will pleafe to give
me a Heart to be thankful to him for his Mercy, and
my Lords for their Juftice ; and I pray God de-
liver their Lordfhips, and all honeft Men, from
wicked and malicious, lying and falfe Teftimony ;
I pray God blefs his Majefty, and long may he
reign.

L. H. Steward. And I pray God continue to him
his loyal Peers, and all other his loyal Subjelts.

Cl, Crown. Serjeant at Arms, make Proclama-
tion.

Serfeant at Arms. O-yes | My Lord High-Stew-
ard of Eugland, his Grace, ftraightly willeth and
commandeth all manner of Perfons here prefent
to depart hence in God’s Peace, and the King’s,
for his Grace my Lord High-Steward of England

now diffolves his Commifiion.

God fave the King,

At which Words bis Grace taking the While-
Staff from the Ufber of the Black-Rod, held it

over bis own Head, and broke it in two 5 thereby
diffolving the Court,

CXL. Pro.
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HeEnry CoMmrrTON, Lord

the Council-Chamber at W hite-Hall,

ihe Lords Commiffioners appointed by bis Majefty to infpect

Foccle fiaflical Affairs, for uot [ulpending + Dr. JoEN SHARP,
Redor of St. Giles’s, Auguit 1686. 2 Jac.
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The King’s' Ecclefiagtical Commuiflion.

AMES the Second, by the Grace of Ged, King
of England, Scotland, France aird Ireland,
Defender of the Faith, &c. To e inoft Reve-

end Father in God, Our Right Trufty and Well- [

beloved Counfellor, William Lord Archbifbop of Can-
terbury, Primate of all England, and Metropolitan.
Aud fo Our Right Trufly end Right 17 ell-beloved
Counfellor, George Lord Jeffereys, Lord Chancellor
of England. And to Our Right Trufly, and Right
Jell-belved Coufin, and Counfellor, Lawrence Ear!
of Rochefter, Lord High-Treafurer of Lngland.
Asd 1o Our Right Trufty, and Right IWell-beloved
Confiz and Counfellor, Robert Earl of Sunderland,
Prefident of Our Council, and Our Priucipal Secrela-
7y of State, And to the Right Reverend Falber in
God, Qur Right Trufly and Well-beloved Counfellor,
Nathaniel Lord Bifbop of Durham. And to the Right
Reverend Pather in Gody, Ouar Right Trufty and Well-
beloved Thomas Lord Bifhop of Rochefter. Aud to Our
Right Trufty and Well-beloved Counfellor, Sir Edward
Herbert, Kut. Lord Chief Fuftice of the Pleas, be-
fore Us Lo be bolden, Affigned, Greeting. We for di-
vers good, weighty and neceffery Canfes and Confrdera-
ticus, Us heveunto efpecially nioving, of Our inecrr Mo-

tion, and cerlain Knowledge, by Force and Viriue of

Our Supreme Authority and Prerogative Royal, do
afficn, nane and authorize by thefe Our Letiers Paten!
snder the Great Seal of England, you the faid Lovd
Archbifbop of Canterbury, Lord Chancellor of Eng-
land, Lord High Treafurer of England, Lord Piefi-
deat of Our Council, Lord Bifhop of Durelme, Lord
Biftop of Rochefter, and Our Chicf Fuftice aforefaid,
or any thice or inove of you, whereof you the faid Lord
Chancellor 1o be oney from Time to Time, and at clf
Times during Our Pleafure, to Exercife, Ufe, Occupy
and Execute under Us, all wanner of Furifaiclions, Pri-
vileges, and Prebeiinencics i any wwife tonching or con-
cerning any Spiritual o Ecclefiaftical Furifditiions,
within this Our Realw of ¥ongland, and Deminion of
Wales, and 1o wifii, reforin, rediefs, order, correff, and
aineid all fuch Abufes, Offences, Contempts, and Enor-
itics swhatfoever, which by the Spiriiual or Ecclefiaflical
Lazos of this Ouir Realir can or may lawfully be veform-
ed, rodreffed, coriefTed, veffrained, or amended, to the
Pleafore of Alminhiy God, and Increafe of Virtne, and
the Confervation of the Peare and Unity of this Reelm.
snd e do bivesy give and grant unto you, or any

VoL, 1V,
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three or more of you, as is aforcfaid, whereof you the

faid Tord Chancellor 1o be one, thus by Us nained,

afficned, antborifed and appointed, by Force of Our
upreme Authority and Perogative Rayal, full Power
and Authority, from Time to Time, and at all Tiines,
duriug Our Pleafure, uner Us to exercife, ufe, and
execute all the Premifes, according lo the Tenor and
Effe® of thefe Our Letters Patenls, any Matter or
Caufe to the contrary, in any wife notwithflandisg.
And We do by thefe Prefents give full Power and
Authority unto you, or any three or move of you, as 15
aforefzid, whereof you the faid Lord Chancellor to be
one, by all lawful Ways or Means, from liine 1o Tie
bereafter, during Our Pleafure, to enquire of all Of-

fences, Contempts, Tranfgreffons and Mifdemeasors

done and committed, and bereafter to be done and com-
mitted, contrary to the Ecclefiaftical Laws of this Our
Realin, in any County, City, Borough, o other Place
or Places, exempt or not exempted, within tbis Onr
Realn of England, and Dominiois of Wales, and
of all and cvery Offeuder or Offcuders therein, and.
them, and every of them, lo order, corredl, reform. and
punifp by Cenfire of the Church. And alfo We do
aive and grant full Power and Autborily niio yoit, or
any three or more of you, as is aforefoid, whercof

you the faid Lord Chancellor to be one, n ltke Man-

ner as aforefaid, from Time to Tiwe, and at all Times
during Our Pleafure, to enquire of, fearch out, and
call before you, all and every Ecclefiaftical Perfon or
Perfons, of what Degree or Digntly foever, as fhall
offend i any-of the Particulars before-mentionta, and
them, and every of them, to correlt and punifp for

fuch  their  Misbebavionrs and Mifdemeanors, by

fufpending or depriving thein froi oll Promotions fic-
clefioftical, and from all Funétions in the Chureh,
and 1o infli&E fuch other Punifbmients or Cenfures upon
than, according- to the Ecclefiaftical Laws of thus
Realin,  And furtber We do give full Power and
Authority tito you, or any three or nire of you, as 13
oforefaid, whereof you the faid Lord Chancellor to
be one, by Virtue bereof, and in ltke Manner aid
Form as is aforefaid, fo enquire, baar, delerinine and
punifb all Tnceft, Adulteries, Fornicalions, Outrages,
Misbebaviours, and Diforders in Marriage, and all
oiher Gricvances, great Crimes or Offences, which are
puitifbable or reformable by the Ecclefiaftical Lows of

this Our Realn, committed or done, or hereafter fo be
I12 coni=
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